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Chang Yun Holdings

WH WH Group
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High Zenith Limited

Norson Holding,
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1998 10 15
Henan Shuanghui Investment & Development Co., Ltd.
000895
1994 29
100

Henan Luohe Shuanghui Industry Group
Co., Ltd. 2019

1997 25
100
Smithfield Foods, Inc.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited
2013 25 BVI

Sure Pass Holdings Limited
us the United States of America

Uss

76 76028 -7604A
(Unit 7602B-7604A, Level 76, International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon,
Hong Kong)
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

28,136 27,293 25,589 24,103 22,605

3.1 6.7 6.2 6.6 1.0
2,003 1,966 1,729 2,031 1,650
7.4 7.2 6.8 8.4 7.3
2,132 1,700 1,315 2,052 1,411
(482) (402) (223) (357) (258)
1,650 1,298 1,092 1,695 1,153
1,370 1,068 828 1,465 943
280 230 264 230 210
1,650 1,298 1,092 1,695 1,153
1,401 1,043 973 1,378 1,046
10.68 7.55 5.62 9.96 6.43

19,855 19,411 18,715 17,282 15,298
9,443)  (9,724)  (7,730)  (7,830)  (6,880)

10,412 9,687 10,985 9,452 8,418
9,600 8,748 10,005 8,684 7,746

812 939 980 768 672
10,412 9,687 10,985 9,452 8,418
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2022 2021 ()
( )
14,559 13,808 +5.4
11,797 11,969 -1.4
1,780 1,516 +17.4
28,136 27,293 3.1
2,065 1,895 +9.0
30 3 +900.0
@) 68
2,093 1,966 6.5
28,136
6.5 2,093
2022
98.7 51.7 2021
1.4

2021 0.2 43.9
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2022 2021 ()
( )
4,009 4,216 -4.9
9,260 8,512 +8.8
1,290 1,080 +19.4
14,559 13,808 +5.4
910 902 +0.9
1,058 885 +19.5
97 108 -10.2
2,065 1,895 +9.0
2022 0.7 3,344
0.1
2022
2022 0.8
10.6
2022 5.4 14,559
4.9
8.8
19.4
2022 2021 9.0 2,065
0.9
19.5
10.2
3.0
2022 2021 ()
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4,419 5,336 -17.2
6,430 5,585 +15.1
948 1,048 -9.5
11,797 11,969 -1.4
94 (53)
43) 64
(21) (8)
30 3 900.0
2022 48,915 2021 3.5
1.7
2.7
2022 ASF
14.9 2022
4,019 2021 7.9
2022 1.4 11,797 2022
17.2
2022 elol!
15.1
9.5
2022 900.0 30 2022
94 2021
53
2022 43 2021 64
2022
21 2021
2022 240

2021 30.2
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2022 2021
3.1 6.7 -3.6
EBITDA
11.2 9.1 +2.1
7.4 7.2 +0.2
— 14.2 13.7 +0.5
— 0.2 0.0 +0.2
— 617.5 570.8 +8.2
— 7.5 0.7 +971.4
6.0 4.7 +1.3
1.6 1.7 -0.1
37.0 39.1 -2.1
32.3 41.4 -9.1
EBITDA
1.1 6 -0.5
8.4 6.8 +1.6
14.9 11.4 +3.5
2022 12 31
1,394 2021 1,556
2022 12 31 431
2021 437
2022 12 31 1.6
2021 1.7 2022 12 31 5,725
2021 5,796
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2022 1,803 2021 1,958
2022 350 2021 409
Saratoga
2022
1,542
2021 1,569
2021 2022
89 2021 20
IDR BBB+ S&pP
BBB Baa2
IDR BBB S&P
BBB-
Bal
2022
2021
2021 13.0 1,916,937,202
14,952 1,923 2021
2021
2022 12 350
2025 275
250
2021 2.6250

500 2031
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
( ) ( )

1,976 1,973

1,387 2,038

3 3

3,366 4,014

1,993 1,995

1,145 1,877

228 142

3,366 4,014

2,176 2,195

573 539

370 1,135

247 145

3,366 4,014
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2022 12 31 3,395 2021 4,049
2023 25
2024 4
2025 11
2027 18
2029 12
2030 15
2031 15
100
2022 12 31 99.8 2021 99.8
2022 12 31
32.3 18.9 2021 41.4 25.4 2022 12 31 EBITDA
EBITDA EBITDA EBITDA
1.1
0.6 2021 1.6 1.0
2022 21.6 169

2022 12 31 4.0 2021 2.7
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2022 975 2021 933
2022 2021
( )
554 647
338 207
83 79
975 933
2020 10
Shuanghui Investment & Development Co., Ltd.
2022 12 31 2021 12 31 14,135 6.5 12,082
1,137 13,219 2021 12 31
12,663 53.5 17,096 2,340 19,436
2021 12 31 1,431
2022 12 31 1,544
21

2022 33
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Goodies
2023 Goodies Meat Production S.R.L.
Goodies 100
Goodies
Norson
Norson Holdings, S. de R.L. de C.V. Norson
Norson
2022 11 Norson
12
Saratoga
Saratoga Specialty Foods Saratoga
2022 10
Saratoga Saratoga 575
414 Saratoga
2022
151
Dominion Energy RNG Holdings, Inc. Align RNG, LLC Align Roeslein Alternative Energy,
LLC Monarch Bioenergy, LLC Monarch 2022
Monarch Viceroy Bio Energy, LLC Viceroy
Monarch Viceroy 2022
Monarch TPG Rise Monsoon, LP Monarch 33
Monarch 50 33 2022 52
GCM
2021 Granjas Carroll de Mexico S. de R.L.
de C.V. GCM 50 66 GCM
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Mecom
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Mecom

2009

2021

42

MECOM GROUP s.r.o. Schneider Food, s.r.o.

100

Mecom

2018

2022
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2022 12 31

50,000,000,000

12,830,219,550

37,169,780,450

2022 12 31
0.0001
0.0001 12,830,219,550
12,830,219,550
2022 12 31
2017 12 31 14,664,229,111 1,466,422.9111
2018 30 11,255,000 | 14,675,484,111 1,125.5 1,467,548.4111
2019 28 557,500 | 14,676,041,611 55.75 1,467,604.1611
2019 31 9,697,500 | 14,685,739,111 969.75 1,468,573.9111
2019 30 23,562,000 | 14,709,301,111 2,356.2 1,470,930.1111
2019 31 359,500 | 14,709,660,611 35.95 1,470,966.0611
2019 30 886,000 | 14,710,546,611 88.6 1,471,054.6611
2019 31 74,000 | 14,710,620,611 7.4 1,471,062.0611
2019 31 145,291 | 14,710,765,902 14.5291 | 1,471,076.5902
2019 10 31 6,024,754 | 14,716,790,656 602.4754 | 1,471,679.0656
2019 11 30 2,459,102 | 14,719,249,758 245.9102 | 1,471,924.9758
2019 12 31 1,500,000 | 14,720,749,758 150 1,472,074.9758
2020 31 6,749,706 | 14,727,499,464 674.9706 | 1,472,749.9464
2020 29 25,000 | 14,727,524,464 2.5 1,472,752.4464
2020 30 1,000,000 | 14,728,524,464 100 1,472,852.4464
2020 31 51,500 | 14,728,575,964 5.15 1,472,857.5964
2020 30 1,000,000 | 14,729,575,964 100 1,472,957.5964
2020 31 3,310,445 | 14,732,886,409 331.0445 | 1,473,288.6409
2020 31 5,139,969 | 14,738,026,378 513.9969 | 1,473,802.6378

40/302




EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

oOoOooodn
2020 30 3,377,964 | 14,741,404,342 337.7964 | 1,474,140.4342
2020 11 30 2,660,000 | 14,744,064,342 266 1,474,406.4342
2020 12 31 1,150,000 | 14,745,214,342 115 1,474,521.4342
2021 31 306,444 | 14,745,520,786 30.6444 | 1,474,552.0786
2021 31 150,000 | 14,745,670,786 15 1,474,567.0786
2021 30 1,485,966 | 14,747,156,752 148.5966 | 1,474,715.6752
2021 30 (1,916,937,202) 12,830,219,550 | (191,693.7202) | 1,283,021.955
1PO 1PO
38
2021 1,916,937,202
2021 16 30
2021 30
1,916,937,202
2022 12 31
3,473,820,000 27.08
3,473,820,000 27.08
2023 28 2022 12 31
0.25 2022 2021 0.14
2022 30 0.05 2022 12 31
0.30 2021 0.19 3,849
490 2021 2,534 325 2022
2023 2023 15
2023
30
2022 12 31 2,790
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5/5 N/A N/A 1/1 N/A 2/2 1/1 1/1 N/A
5/5 N/A N/A N/A 2/2 N/A 1/1 1/1 N/A
5/5 N/A N/A N/A 2/2 2/2 N/A 1/1 N/A
5/5 N/A N/A N/A 2/2 2/2 1/1 0/1 N/A
5/5 N/A N/A N/A 2/2 2/2 1/1 0/1 N/A
5/5 N/A 1/1 N/A N/A N/A N/A 0/1 N/A
5/5 3/3 1/1 1/1 N/A N/A N/A 0/1 N/A
2022
3/3 1/1 1/1 N/A N/A 1/1 0/0 0/1 N/A
5/5 3/3 N/A 1/1 2/2 N/A N/A 1/1 N/A
2022
2/2 2/2 0/0 N/A N/A 1/1 1/1 N/A N/A
N/A
CPD

CPD
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3,000,001 3,500,000 3
3,500,001 4,000,000 1
4,500,001 5,000,000 1
5,000,001 5,500,000 1
6,000,001 6,500,000 1
46,000,001 46,500,000 1
47,000,001 47,500,000 1
9
2014 17
(N
(i) (i)
(iv)
()
(vi)
(vii)
3.13
3.13
2022 12 31
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58 42

(D
ESG

(i) ESG
(i) ESG
(iv)

2022

2022

(i)

2022

2022
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() ESG

(i) ESG

(i) ESG

@iv)

Q)

(vi)

2022
ERM ERM
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www . hkexnews . hk www .wh-group.com
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www .wh-group.com
2022
Wan Long
Wan Long 82 2007 10 16 2010 11 26
2013 12 31
2013 10 2021 11
2012 20
000895 1968 Henan Luohe
Meat Products Processing United Factory 1984
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50 1998 2003 2008 2013
12 China = s National People ®s Congress
2001 China Meat Association 2006 12 2011
12 China Meat Association 1991
Henan University of Animal Husbandry and Economy The Henan
Business College 1999

Henan Province Advanced Professional Titles Adjudication Committee (Economic Disciplines)

Guo Lijun
Guo Lijun 52 2013 12 31 2021 12
2021 31
2016
2021 11 2016 2021 11
2013 10 2014 2014 2016
20
1993 1996 Henan Luohe Meat
Products Processing United Factory 1996
2001 Luohe Chinachem Shuanghui Packaging Industry
Co., Ltd. Luohe Chinachem Shuanghui Plastic Processing Co.,
Ltd. 2001 2012
2012 2013 10
000895
1994 Henan Radio and Television University
2004 12 Graduate School of Renmin
University 1994 10
PRC Ministry of Personnel
Wan Hongwei
Wan Hongwei 49 2021 12
2018 22
2014 2021 11
2004 2013
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2002
Ma Xiangjie
Ma Xiangjie 51 2018 26 2018
000895 2018 22 2017 12 26
2012 15 2012 24
2012 25 2017 12 25
26
2008 2010
2010 2012
2001 Shuanghui Development Ingredients Factory 2003
Luohe Shineway Haiying Seasoning Food Co., Ltd.
2004 Luohe Tianrui Biochemicals Co., Ltd.
2012 10 26 Luohe Shuanghui Food Sales Co., Ltd.

2013 22 Fuxin Shuanghui Meat Processing Co., Ltd.

2013 22 Heilongjiang Baoquanling Shuanghui
Beidahuang Food Co., Ltd. 2013 11 19 Shaanxi Shuanghui
Food Co., Ltd.

1996 Henan Agricultural University
2005 Graduate School of Renmin University
2010 Northwest A&F University
2003 2019
2020
49 2021 11
2021
2003 2021 2021
2019 2021 2017 11 2019
2012 2019
2009 2000
2001 2017 10

40
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Jiao Shuge
Jiao Shuge 57 2006 28 2013 12 31
2010 11 26 2018 14 2012 20 2021
31 000895
CDH
2015 Hainan Poly Pharm Co. Ltd
300630 2016 2021
Ningbo Akin Electronic Technology Co., Ltd. National
Equities Exchange and Quotations 830806
2016 2022 2016 2022
2018 Mabpharm Limited
2181 2021
OCI International Holdings Limited 329
1989 1995 710 No. 710 Research Institute of
China Aerospace Service and Technology Corporation 1995 12 2002
China International Capital Corporation Ltd.
2005 13 2012 22 China Yurun
Food Group Limited 01068 2005 11 30
2014 16 China Shanshui Cement Group Co., Ltd.
00691 2007 12 2020 27
Joyoung Company Limited 002242 2015
30 2021 30 China Southern Airlines Company Limited
1055 2012 12 2021 11 30
China Mengniu Dairy Co., Ltd. 02319
2004 18 2012 12
1986 Shandong University 1989 10

No. 2 Research Institute of Ministry of Aeronautics and Astronautics of
China

Huang Ming
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Huang Ming 59 2014 16
1996 1998
1998 2001 2001 2005
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business 2004 2005
2008 2010 2010
2019 China Europe International Business School
2006 2009 Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics 2005
2014 JD.com, Inc.
JD 2018 360
360 Security Technology Inc. 601360
SJEC Corporation 601313
2011 2014 Tebon
Securities Co., Ltd. 2011 2016 360
Qihoo 360 Technology Co. Ltd. QIHU 2016
18 2011 2017 12 Guosen
Securities Co. Ltd. 2013 10 2017 12
00867 2009 10 2019
01777 2018 2019
China Shenhua Energy Company Limited H
1088 A 601088
2008 2020
Yingli Green Energy Holding Company Limited 2018
17 YGE
1985 1991
1996
Lau, Jin Tin Don
Lau, Jin Tin Don 66 2014 16
2013 2017 Spring Real Estate
Investment Trust 01426
Spring Asset Management Limited
2013 Yuexiu
Property Company Limited 00123
2005 2010 Yuexiu Real Estate Investment Trust
00405 Yuexiu
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REIT Asset Management Limited
Zhou Hui
Zhou Hui 60 2022 28 2022
2021 11 Ruimaotong Supply Chain
Management Co., Ltd. 600180 2019
China Vered Financial Holding Corporation Limited
245 Huaneng
Power International, Inc. 902
1600011 HNP
2006 2016 2012 10 2018
2005 2016 12 Huaneng Sichuan Hydropower Co., Ltd.
2006 2016 10 China Huaneng Finance Corporation
2010 2016 China Yangtze
Power Co., Ltd. 600900 2011 2017
Hainan Nuclear Power Co., Ltd. 2011 12 2017
2008 2018 Singapore Huaneng Tuas Power
Ltd.
Renmin University of China
Chau Ho
Chau Ho 57 2014

2011 2014
China Rongsheng Heavy Industries Group Holdings Limited
01101 2010 2011
00845
30 1994 10 2010

1991 11 1992 11
2003 1994
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2006

Yan Kam Yin
43 2021

2012

Yan Kam Yin

2007
2012 11

Zhou Feng

Zhou Feng 54 2021 12

2021 11
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12

Luohe Shuanghui Import & Export Company Limited

2009 2011
Company Limited
2005
Wang Dengfeng
Wang Dengfeng 46 2021
2021 11
1999
Qiao Haili
Qiao Haili 58
2014 11
2016 11
2009 2012
1986
1995
1998
Shuanghui Canned Foods Company Limited
2004 11 2009

Processing Division Factory

1986

Veterinary Medicine

ooooood
2008
2013 2021 11
10
2002 12
2011 10
2000
Zhengzhou Synear Food
1988
12
2014
1999 2014
2019
000895
2019
2012 2014 10
1995
1998
2004 10 Luohe
2001 11 2004 10
Shuanghui Development Meat

Zhengzhou Junior College of Animal Husbandry and
2005
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Graduate School of Renmin University 1998 12
Wang Yufen
Wang Yufen 55 2012
000895 1998 23
31 1987 10 1991
Henan Luohe Meat Products Processing United Factory Meat Product Branch 1991
1992 Henan Luohe Meat Products Processing United Factory
Meat Product Branch 1992 1993 Henan Luohe
Meat Products Processing United Factory Meat Product Branch 1993 1998

Henan Luohe Meat Products Processing United Factory Food

Institute 1998 2001 11

1997 Zhengzhou University of Light Industry
2002 2005

Graduate School of Renmin University

Liu Songtao

Liu Songtao 46 2017 12 26
000895
2012 25 2017 12 25 2003
2012 2003
Shuanghui Development Luohe Slaughter Factory 2002 2003
Luohe Huayi Food Co., Ltd. 2000

Henan University

53 2023
2014

2015

2019
2020

25
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1992

56

1989
2018
2006
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2014
USA

1991 12
2001 MBA

2020 11
2002

Agriplus Spz.o.o0

Grupo VALL COMPANYS SA

University of Zaragoza

Instituto de Empresa Business School
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2021
2022
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( )
2022 12 31 ( )
( 38 59 ) 131
134.12 UFJ 2023 24
( ( 23 103 )
) (

23 25 ) 193
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€H)
12 31
2022 2021
5 28,136 28,136 27,293 27,293
(23,202) 243 (22,959) (22,587) 290 (22,297)
4,934 243 5,177 4,706 290 4,996
(2,082) (2,082) (2,038) (2,038)
(842) (842) (803) (803)
(76) (76) (81) (81)
@23) @23) 167) @167)
6 127 127 133 133
7 278 278 131 131
62) 62) (366) (366)
8 (169) (169) (139) (139)
8 8 9 9
) 2 [0)) 25 25
9 2,186 D) 2,132 1,658 42 1,700
11 (503) 21 (482) (381) 1) 402)
1,683 (33) 1,650 1,277 21 1,298
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12 31
2022 2021
5 3,773,600 3,773,600 3,660,537 3,660,537
(3,111,852) 32,591  (3,079,261)  (3,029,368) 38,895 (2,990,473)
661,748 32,591 694,339 631,169 38,895 670,064
(279,238) (279,238) (273,337) (273,337)
(112,929) (112,929) (107,698) (107,698)
(10,193) (10,193) (10,864) (10,864)
(29,909) (29,909) (22,398) (22,398)
6 17,033 17,033 17,838 17,838
7 37,285 37,285 17,570 17,570
(8,315) (8.315) (49,088) (49,088)
8 (22.666) (22,666) (18,643) (18,643)
1,073 1,073 1,207 1,207
(804) 268 (536) 3,353 3,353
9 293,187 (7,243) 285,944 222,371 5,633 228,004
11 (67,462) 2,816 (64,646) (51,099) (2,817) (53.916)
225,725 (4,427) 221,298 171,272 2,816 174,088
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12 31
2022 2021
102 .
102 4
(354) @n
)N O
(387) (53)
(285) (49)
1,365 1,249
1,370 1,068
280 230
1,650 1,298
1,161 1,010
204 239
1,365 1,249
10.68 7.55
10.68 7.55
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45

13
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Oooooooo
12 31
2022 2021
13,681 536
13,681 536
(47,479) (3,621)
(4,426) (3,487)
(51,905) (7,108)
(38,224) (6,572)
183,074 167,516
183,744 143,240
37,554 30,848
221,298 174,088
155,713 135,461
27,361 32,055
183,074 167,516
14.32 10.13
14.32 10.13
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ooooood
@
12 31
2022 2021
14 6,536 876,608 6,367 853,943
16(a) 749 100,456 711 95,350
17 201 26,958 168 22,532
18 1,992 267,167 2,070 277,628
19 1,717 230,284 1,757 235,649
20 126 16,899 62 8,315
21 126 16,899 191 25,617
24 78 10,461 67 8,986
25 1 1,475 12 1,609
27 5 671 7 939
31 58 7,779 42 5,633
247 33,128 335 44,930
11,846 1,588,785 11,789 1,581,140
15 117 15,692 150 20,118
17 1,343 180,123 1,263 169,394
22 2,855 382,913 2,625 352,065
23 1,087 145,788 1,064 142,704
24 981 131,572 668 89,592
6 805 20 2,682
25 149 19,984 232 31,116
/ 27 77 10,327 44 5,901
27 1,394 186,963 1,556 208,691
8,009 1,074,167 7,622 1,022,263
28 1,395 187,007 1,149 154,104
29 2,513 337,044 2,371 317,999
16(b) 85 11,400 110 14,753
130 17,436 71 9,523
30 862 115,611 874 117,220
4,985 668,588 4,575 613,599
3,024 405,579 3,047 408,664
14,870 1,994,364 14,836 1,989,804
29 408 54,721 383 51,368
16(b) 449 60,220 377 50,563
30 2,504 335,836 3,140 421,137
31 697 93,482 725 97,237
32 38 5,007 46 6,170
33 362 48,551 478 64,109
4,458 597,907 5,149 690,584
10,412 1,396,457 9,687 1,299,220
36 1 134 1 134
9,509 1,287,418 8,747 1,173,147
9,600 1,287,552 8,748 1,173,281
812 108,905 939 125,939
10,412 1,396,457 9,687 1,299,220
64 182 2023 28

Mr. Wang Long Mr. Guo Lijun
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2021

2021 12 31
2022

2022 12 31

12

12
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C@ CE C @ o)
3,011 791 25 (249) 269 6,157 10,005 980 10,985
1,068 1,068 230 1,298
(36) (36) 9 @n
4 4 4
(26) (26) (26)
(36) (22) 1,068 1,010 239 1,249
6) ®) (©)] ©
1 1
74) Q74)
(332) (332) (332)
3 @ 2 2
" *
(1,931) (1,931) (1,931)
O] O
+ 2 )
(1,928) (6) @ 2 (334)  (2,267) (280)  (2,547)
1,083 785 (1) (272) 271 6,801 8,748 939 9,687
1,083 785 (1) @72) 271 6,801 8,748 939 9,687
1,370 1,370 280 1,650
@78 @78) (76) (354
102 102 102
(33) (33) (33)
(278) 69 1,370 1,161 204 1,365
(O] ®
2 2 @
1 1
312) 312)
(311) 31D 31D
[6)) 1
(0> (D))
@ 2 3 @
1 1 3 (314) (309) (331) (640)
1,083 786 (289) (202) 274 7,947 9,600 812 10,412
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(@ @ C @ o

2021 134 403,836 106,088 3,353  (33,396) 36,079 825,777 1,341,871 131,437 1,473,308

143,240 143,240 30,848 174,088

(4,828) (4,828) 1,207 (3,621)
536 536 536
(3,487) (3,487) (3,487)
« ) (4,828)  (2,951) 143,240 135,461 32,055 167,516
(805) (805) (402)  (1,207)
134 134
(36,749)  (36,749)
12 (44,528)  (44,528) (44,528)
+ 402 (134) 268 268
M *
+  (258,986) (258,986) (258,986)
® (536) (536)
+ 268 (268)
+  (258,584) (805) (134) 268 (44,796)  (304,051) (37,553) (341,604)
2021 12 31 134 145,252 105,283  (1,475) (36,481) 36,347 924,221 1,173,281 125,939 1,299,220
2022 134 145,252 105,283  (1,475) (36,481) 36,347 924,221 1,173,281 125,939 1,299,220

183,744 183,744 37,554 221,298

(37,286) (37,286) (10,193) (47,479)

13,681 13,681 13,681

(4,426) (4,426) (4,426)

« ) (37,286) 9,255 183,744 155,713 27,361 183,074

(536) (536)

269 269 (269)

134 134

(41,846)  (41,846)

12 @1,7111) (4,711 (41,711)
(133) 133

® (1,878)  (1,878)
(134) 268 402 (536)

135 135 402 (42,114)  (41,442) (44,395) (85,837)

2022 12 31 134 145,252 105,418 (38,761) (27,091) 36,749 1,065,851 1,287,552 108,905 1,396,457
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50 10

25

2021 12 31 NCI
NCI
NCI NCI
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
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®
12 31
2022 2021
2,132 285,944 1,700 228,004
@nN (4,962) (30) (4,024)
169 22,666 139 18,643
®) @,073) ©) 1,207)
4 536 (25) (3,353)
660 88,520 538 72,157
131 17,570 130 17,436
Qan (2,280) 4 536
9 1,207 9 1,207
2 268 2 268
®) @,073) @4 (3,219)
62 8,315 61 8,181
223 29,909 167 22,398
1 134 4 536
1 134
0 (269) 10) (1,341)
24 3,219
(414) (55.526)
0) (5.365)
@ (134)
26 3,487 18) (2,414)
2,917 391,228 2,638 353,808
(303) (40,639) 407) (54,587)
(452) (60,622) 25 3,353
(140) (18,777) (170) (22,800)
21 2,817 Qan (2,280)
200 28,031 177 23,739
2,252 302,038 2,246 301,233
(449) (60,220) (288) (38.626)
1,803 241,818 1,958 262,607
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12 31
2022 2021
(948) (127,146) 922) (123,658)
@n (3.621) I¢E)) (1,475)
6)) (268)
1,174 157,457 2,112 283,261
(1.186) (159,066) (1,591) (213,385)
(123) (16,497) 1) (9,523)
87 11,668 84 11,266
35 4,694 12 1,609
35 4,694 22 2,951
6 805 3 402
5 671
©) (1.207) G7) (7,645)
®) 1,073)
12 1,609
2 268 1 134
4 536
O) (536)
606 81,277
(350) (46,942) (409) (54,856)
3,730 500,268 5,220 700,107
(4,335) (581,410) (3,978) (533,529)
(299) (40,102) (283) (37,956)
@31D) (41,711) (332) (44,528)
G9) (7.,913) ©) (1,207)
2 268
(118) (15,826) (123) (16,497)
(1,931) (258,986)
(151) (20,252) (136) (18,240)
1 134 1 134
(1,542) (206,812) (1,569) (210,434)
(89) (11,936) 20) (2,683)
3) 9.792) 23 3,086
1,556 208,691 1,553 208,288
1,394 186,963 1,556 208,691
1,39 186,963 1,556 208,691
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WH ( )
2014

2022 12 31
( )

46

2.1

1ASB IFRS

2.2

2022
12 31

(b
(c

(a
(b
(c
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)

IFRS
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2.3
IFRS

IFRS

IAS 16

IAS 37

IFRS 2018-2020 IFRS IFRS IFRS 16 IAS 41

IFRS

IFRS

IFRS IFRS
2018

IFRS
IAS 37 IFRIC 21
IFRS
IAS 37 IFRIC 21
2022

IAS 16
IAS 16

1AS
2021

IAS 37
IAS 37 IAS 37

2022

IFRS 2018-2020
IFRS 2018-2020 IFRS IFRS IFRS 16 IAS 41
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IFRS

2022

IFRS 16 IFRS 16 13
IFRS 16

IAS 41 IAS 41
IAS 41 22

2.4
IFRS

IFRS 10 IAS 28

IFRS 16 2
1AS 2020 2, 4
1AS 2022 2

1AS IFRS 1

1AS 1

IAS 12 1

2023
2024

2022 2020 2024

IFRS

IFRS 10 IAS 28

IFRS 10 IAS 28
IFRS 10 IAS 28

IFRS 10 IAS 28
2015 12

IFRS 16
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IFRS 16
2024 IFRS 16
2019

1AS

I1AS

12
IASB 2022
2022 12
2024
2022
2022

1AS

1AS

IFRS
IAS 2023
IFRS

IAS

1AS

2023

IAS 12

IAS 12 IAS 12

2023
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CGU

IFRS

CGU

oely

cGu

ey

IAS 19

CGU

cGU
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IAS 12

IFRS

CGU



(a

'

(

(

(

(

(

)

)

)

)

)
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) @()

IAS 36
IAS 36
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(a

30

90

84/302

IFRS 15
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(b

©

(a

50
50

13
18
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(b

(c
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40
10
20

I1AS
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CGU
CGU
CGU
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CGU CGU
CGU
CGU
FVPL
FVPL
FVOCI
FVPL
IFRS 15
SPP1
SPPI
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FVPL

FVPL

30

FVPL

90
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ECL

12
12

12
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MPF

MPF

NCI
NCI
NCI
NCI
NCI
IAS 32
NCI

NCI
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2022 12 31 1,308 2021 1,243
17
2022 12 31 2,855 2021 2,625 22
2022 12 31 102
2021 2022 12 31

376 2021 490 33
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2021 12 31

99

2021
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2022 2021

14,559 13,808

11,797 11,969

1,780 1,516

28,136 27,293

99

2022 2021

523 520

2022 12 31
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2022 12 31

4,010 5,033 1,529 10,572
@ (614) (421) (1,036)
4,009 4,419 1,108 9,536
910 94 36 1,040
9,262 10,393 75 19,730
@ (3,963) (3,965)
9,260 6,430 75 15,765
1,058 (43) (75) 940
1,339 1,420 720 3,479
(49) (472) (123) (644)
1,290 948 597 2,835
97 @D 37 113
14,611 16,846 2,324 33,781
2) (5,049) (544) (5.645)
14,559 11,797 1,780 28,136
2,065 30 @ 2,093
260
(54)
(169)
8
®

2,132
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2021 12 31
4,216 6,123 1,360 11,699
787) (396) (1,183)
4,216 5,336 964 10,516
902 (53) 81 930
8,515 9,789 87 18,391
®3) (4,204) (4,207)
8,512 5,585 87 14,184
885 64 (30) 919
1,124 1,489 557 3,170
(44) (441) (92) 77)
1,080 1,048 465 2,593
108 (8) 17 117
13,855 17,401 2,004 33,260
47 (5.432) (488) (5,967)
13,808 11,969 1,516 27,293
1,895 3 68 1,966
(203)
42
(139)
9
25
1,700
2022 2021

3,541 3,237

6,866 7,024

1,098 1,225

11,505 11,486
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2022 2021
47 64
37 30
11 15
32 24
127 133
2022 2021
(26) 18
8 24
17 10
(€)) O]
o
(24)
12) 1
34 40
7 24
34 414
N 12)
33 105
(48) (20)
278 131
2022 2021
@8) (81)
(65) (35)
(23) (19)
©) ®)
1 1

(169) (139)
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9
2022 2021

5 4

1 1

660 538

131 130

9 9

2 2

62 61

@ (10)

132 112

182 179

4,050 3,843

20 353

10.
2022
()
A)
(Wan Long)
(Guo Lijun 1 +
(Wan Hongwei) 1 + 1
(Charles Shane Smith) 2 4 +

Ma Xiangjie 1 + + 1
6 4 + 10

2022 12 31
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B)
Jiao Shuge
0)
Huang Ming * +
Lee Conway Kong Wai
C ¢) ¥ ¥
Lau Jin Tin Don * +
Zhou Hui () + +
+ +
2022 12 31
2022 12 31 10
)
( ) 2022 12 31
() Lee Conway Kong Wai 2022
() Zhou Hui 2022
2021
()
A)
(Wan Long) ( ( ) 1 1
(Guo Lijun C () 1 + 1
(Wan Hongwei) () + + +
(Wan Hongjian) ( ( )) + + +
(Charles Shane Smith) ( ( )) 1 3 + 4
(Dennis Pat Rick Organ) ( ( )) 1 9 + 11
Ma Xiangjie 1 + * 1
5 4 9 * 19
+
2021 12 31
B)
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Jiao Shuge
)
Huang Ming + +
Lee Conway Kong Wai + +
Lau Jin Tin Don + +
+ +
2021 12 31
2021 12 31 19
)
) 2021 12 31
) Wan Long 2021 2021 11 2021 12
2021 12 Guo Lijun
) Wan Hongwei Charles Shane Smith 2021 12
2021 11
) Wan Hongjian 2021 17
) Dennis Pat Rick Organ 2021
2021 15
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2022 12 31

24,000,001
39,500,001
42,000,001
44,000,001
45,500,001
46,000,001
47,000,001
114,500,001

2021

24,500,000
40,000,000
42,500,000
44,500,000
46,000,000
46,500,000
47,500,000

115,000,000
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2021

2022 2021

3 3

19 10

2 1

7

31 14
2022 2021




EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

OooooOodd
11
2022 2021
(241) (192)
(205) (45)
(23) 24)
* "
€ (32)
44 (109)
(482) 402)
N
EIT EIT
25
( ) EIT
2008 149 EIT
EIT 86
EIT
( EIT
EIT
(
[2020]23
15
( EIT
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2019
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2020 10 16
Corporation

2018

2021 29

2022 19

2022

Smithfield
Smithfield

Smithfield

77

Smithfield

2022 10

2022 11
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90

Indiana Packers

83

42
19

75

2022 11 29 75



Maxwell Foods

2020 13 Maxwell Foods, LLC Maxwel l

PSA
Maxwel l

PSA

Smithfield
Maxwel l
Maxwel l

2021 Maxwel l
Smithfield
Maxwel l

Maxwel l
2020

Barden
2020 18
Murphy-Brown LLC

2020 13 Smithfield

2021 15

2022 12 30
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1994 12
Maxwell

Smithfield
Smithfield
2020 Maxwel |
2021 22
Smithfield
(UDTPA)
2021 13 Maxwell
UDTPA
Maxwel |
20 Smithfield
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Maxwell

Smithfield

Smithfield



42.
(a

(b

2022 12 31

(c

2021 12 31

155/302

EDINETOOOO

O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

oOoOooodn

2021
9 21
20 17
207 144
22 19
2021
+
8 12
12 31
2021
+
11 10
6 9
7 9
1 1
25 29
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2022 2021

5,139 5,139
151 151
+ 1
1 +
152 152
1,867 1,126
1 1
1,868 1,127
(1.716) (975)
3,423 4,164
352 1,128
3,071 3,036
36 1 1
1,083 1,083
61 61
219 220
1,707 1,671
3,071 3,036
2021 1 3,011 61 221 1,609 4,903
394 394
12 (332) (332)
+(1,931) (1,931)
+ 3 @ 2
(1,928) D) 62 (1,867)
2021 12 31 2022 1 1,083 61 220 1,671 3,036
346 346
12 (1) (311)

@ 1
36 36
2022 12 31 1 1,083 61 219 1,707 3,071
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2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Henan Shuanghui Investment &
Development Co., Ltd.
29.67% 29.67% 261 223 803 932
19 7 9 7
280 230 812 939
12 31
2022 2021
2,905 2,559
2,328 2,755
(1,948) (1,562)
(106) (135)
(3,134) (3,566)
45 51
758 881
803 932
12 31
2022 2021
9,237 10,286
(8,396) (9,541)
841 745
582 522
14 3
245 220
841 745
8 18
1,161 922
(555) (78)
(954) (930)
(348) (86)
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2022 2021
130 23
(28) (19
102 4
(354) @7
(45) (36)
12 10
(387) (53)
(285) (49)
46
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
2022 2021
- 100 100
Rotary Vortex Limited 33,883,510,411
— 70.33 70.33
3,464,661,213
100 100

Smithfield
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Resuls
bedoae

biokogical  Biological

Fair value fair valoe

Adjustments  adjustments Total o
UsE'million  USE'million USS'sillon

AEWEMLIE . 28,1368 -— 28,138 ar.293
1 of $ak {23,202} 243 IH.E‘E‘F}_ 22 B
5 pradil 4,934 43 5177
lign and N1 (HIEHEN e {2.082) = {2,082) 2 D38 2038
irative axpenses {842} — (842] (803 B
Fair i 5. CO5]5
- of hapese == 178) [(76) 21
— I (223
127 — 127
278 - 278
-3 — a2y
{haa} — (hem
1 i B —_ B
(1] 2 1.4}_
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9 2,188 154) 232 1.6508
1 S R i L
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,683 {33) 1,580
ol e
ct IP_E_
o2

# hedga, net of tax _ {33

(38T}

B4 WHGROUP LBITED -
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)

Eesulis
befare

biological  Biokgical

Falr value fair value
adjustments  adjusiments Toaad
U million  US%'million UEE'million

(285)

NCOME FOR THE YEAR 1,368

1,370
o

1,650 1,298

% oF M Dot 1181

1,385

10,68
10,68

'WH GROUP LMMTED ]

160/302



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

e
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2022

UES million

HON-GURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equigsment 14 B 536 B 367
Reght-of-iise assels 1464a) T49 Ml
Biodogical assels 17 m 168
Goodwill 18 1,802 2T
Intangible assets 19 1,717 1.757
Interests in associates 20 128 L
Interests in joint ventures 21 126 191
Othed receivables 24 7a [
Financial assets al tair value through prolil or loss 25 n 12
Pledged bank deposits 27 5 7
Delerred tax assels 31 58 42
CHhad non-ciiirent assels 247 335
Total non-carment assets | 11,846 11,789

CURREMT ASSETS

Properties under developmen 15 117 150
Biodogecal assels 17 1,343 1,763
Inveniores 22 2,855 2625
Trade amd bdills recenvables 23 1,087 1,064
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets 24 as1 (7
Tax recoverabla G 20
Fimancial assels at falr value through peolil or loss 5 149 32
Pledgedirestricted bank deposits 27 T 1
Cash and bank batances 24 1,3‘94 1.556
Total cument assels 8,009 1.622

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables 28 1,385 1.14%
focrued axpenses and other payables 29 2513 2,371
Lease liabilities 16{b} 85 110
Taxation payable 130 i |
I'illri-:m'lllg.‘- A BE2 8ra
Total current liabilities | 4,985 4575
HET CURRENT ASSETS 3,024 3.047
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 14.3?0_ L4836

(i1 WHGROUP LBITED -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

2022 X021

UsS'million LESS il lson

NOM-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other payables et 408 383
Lease leabilties 1&{b) 449 ari
Baoarowimgs 3 2,504 3,140
Defemed tax l@bilities 31 697 725
Dderred pavenue 3z A g6
Pension laabilty and obher retirement benefits 3 82 478
Total pon-current labilities 1l 4458 5,149
MET ASSETS 10412 9,687

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share captal 36 1 |
Reserves 8,588 B.7a7
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 9,600 8748
Non-controlling interests B gz 939
TOTAL EQUNTY 10412 9,687

The consabdated linancial slatements on pages &4 to 182 woere approved and authorised o issee by the Board ol
Directors on 28 March 2023 and are signed on its behall by:

Mr. Wan Long Mr. Guo Lijun
Director Lhirector

'WH GROUP LMMED 1)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Ikl w wawe ol i [Eegain

L
\isn Thuw Eprul  (riwdsinn e gl Nnamid
feere] pumas o - raam wam i
" = £ . 3 " %

LR A LI g
- crber W a ] ']
M L ey 20 1 (] & i T m L% are o asr
el e P 11m Lam & 124
[ohgegs Sf-mnoy g o tambdoe o
g o Eric] am e 124
w0 B ) D
i = w Hy W
B i (A - L) - (=] %
i g - S
e Fri ] =] (R LI XA (F )
Fraiw i [T
r i & -
- 1 i
- = X £na 3y
= 2 = H = = o anp 2 iy
= = = il L] = =
it
e L.
i} | 3 il -
= = 1 = ] 3 =1L 1] i aan e
B 1L Detwnter 0T i 1.8 ) N L] T LEHF L] 3 Al
Lok |
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

Bows

R Capital reserve
Capiwd reganve representy the dfsence Dolween Iha smounts By which the fon-oininelog miersst s adpsied 160 e change i the
Group's ownemhip interests in exsting subsidisres and the fair vides of the conmderstion paid or recdimd.

B SAnutory Sedphel ressTve
Puriant to (B rélvant regulshong in Maniand China. and The arbiies of sttociaton of he Groen’s- subtdmnes regissnsd m Manand
China, sach of them is requited 1o transher 0% of im poofit, pn detonmised wndel the Ching scoounting reguiations, bo fue ststutory surpius
ielanve URBL M Fakeive BRgterited o BOE ol itd negaleied capiesl The trangfer o This Pelaive TUSY De isds Debade dimvibution . of
diyldends 8 shamholdes

Tha: sialulofy- Surplus ressnes ghall cndy Bé wsad 10 mate U pRevioUS pRais’ Kees o 10 incréass 1B relevast company's capital. Lipan
apgroval by 8 igsclubon of shacholders” peneml mesbeg, sach oF the felswant companies’ may convrl B shalubory sarplus Fesanes inks
capial, provided {he Dalenie of Mhe teparve Mis such isee B ool et Bun 25% of (he regualscsd cagatal

[ Trazalstion reseive
The fanststion misree comprises all fcplgm aschangs difamnces anzng from the framslaton ol ghe financlal statements of loselgn
cperatinns

d b rebee
CRher resenve mainky incledes the lak valug of the share codons, iemessuremend deficit of the delined benel® pension plars and curulsine
el c¥gega in Reir walue in ihe cash fow. hedge stinksistls i B Gioup

e Tramden of costiaciusl pet opiesn in 1elstion b asn-costioling inberesty
Dating the yeir snded 31 December 2021, the Group enlaied inle 3 condaciual pul option in mldion 1o non-conlroling . intansst (*MCE)
shares i @ subaidiary, The MGl shareholder can mguire the Group fo doquing. the shares of The subsidary #t-a fubare date, The Group
agpdnd tha quin] eecognition of MCH medhod or its pat oplion, of which e profil dod [he year Ehaned by the NG aharehoider in misbon o
tho partion of tha Pl oplion i racorded s A lishility i “acohued expentes snd other payables® in tha contolidsted statérnent of fnancisl
pegition a4 ot 31 Decermbar 2022 and 31 December 2031
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

USE ' million LS million

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Prodit bedore tax 2,132 1,700
Adjustimants for
Imterest income {am (300
Finance costs 168 139
Share of pralils o associElies :a? {2
Share o (profits} lesses of joinl ventures 4 {25)
Cepreciation of property, plant and equipment GE0 his
Creprecipion of nght-ol-use asselks 1 130
{Gain} loss on dispesal ol property, plant and equigment “mmn 4
Amortisation of intangble assels a 9
Armartisation of oller non-current assels 2 Z
Fair value gain on financial assets al fair value heough peofil o loss (8) {24%
Ivwerlorses [rossions, mel 82 4l
Loss arsing om changes in fair walue bess costs to sell of beclogical
assets 223 167
Imijsairnent ks an |:-||||_u-:rl5r_ plant @nd e paent 1 4
Impaimment kss on right-of-use assels e 1
Reverssl of impainnsent losses on bade recérabdes, nel (2 {10
Impairment kss on investment in joint venture 2 -
Gain on disposal of assels {414} =
Met gain on disposalidesmed disposal in investment in joint ventures {40
Gain on insuanoe recoveny s {1}
{Gain) loas on mon-cualified retirement plan assets 28 {18}
2,917 2638
Increase in bdological assels (203) (L
{Increase) decrease in inventories {452} 5
Inciease in trade, balls and other receivables {1400 [1F00
(lezrease) decrease i properties wnder development 21 (L)
Increase in trade and other payables 208 177
CASH GEMERATED FROM OPERATIONS 2,952 2,246
Taxation paed [E 2 H ] (Z88E)
Met cash flows from operating activiies 1,803 1958

T WHGROUP LBITED
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

2022

USS million LISE million

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase ol property, plant and equipment (948} (%22
Additicns of righl-of-use assels {27} {113
Additions of intangible assels {2)
Proceeds lrom disposal of financial assels al tair value through profit o

Ies, ancd debl investments at amoitised cost !111'4 2112
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through peofit or bees and debl

mvestments al amortised cosl {1,188) (1.581)
Placemnent of pledgedirestncled bank deposils (123) {1
Withdrawal of pledgedfiestricted bank deposits &7 a4
Procesds Irom disposal of peoperty, plnt and equipment a5 12
Interest received 35 22
Dwvidends received from associabes <3 4
Diviclends receivesd from jednd weastures = 5
Met cash outllow on acquisflion ol subsidianes {9) {57
Acquisition of nlerests 0 assocuabes —_ =)
Receipt of repayment of laans — 12
Insurance claims on property, plant and equipment 2 1
Mel proceeds from disposal of and capital mjection to jant venluies 4
Purchase of other non-curent asseis {4)
Procesds Trom sales of other assels of a subsidiany I 606
Met cash flows wsed in investing activilbes {3500 {05

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceseds from bomowings, nel of ransachon costs 3,730 h 220
Repayment of borrowings {4,335) (3,978)
Dhvickend papd bo non-controlling mberests (2a0) {283)
Dividend paid to shameholders of the Company (311 {332)
Met cash oulllow on deterred payment and acquisition of additional

miterests in subsidiaries 1589 )]
Proceeds Trom issue ol shares = 2
| é&ase Eaymenls (118} {123
Payment for shewe réepurchase - (1,931)
Interest paid (151} {136}
Contrilsulion from non-controlling inerest 1 1
Mt Gash Nows wsed in linancing achivbics {1.5432) {1,560

'WH GROUP LMITED n
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

2022 2021

US% million LIS million

et decrease m cash and cash equivalenls (a9 (200
Ellect ol forelgn exchange rate changes {T3) 23
Cash and cash equivalents al beginnimg o year 1556 1,563
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 1,394 1,556

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 1,334 1,556

] WHGROUP LBITED -
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|
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
WH Group Limited (the “Company”} was incorporaled and registered a5 an exempled company with limited
liability in the Cayman lslands under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares were
lisked on Uhe Main Board of Steck Exchange on 5 August 2014,

The address of the registered office of the Company and the address of ils principal place of business ame
disclosed In e sechion headed “Corposate Information” v he annual repoil

The Company acts as an mvesiment holding company. The consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 Decernber 2022 compise the Company and s entities (incliding strsctused entities,
controlled by the Group) (collectively referred to as the “Group”™) and the Group's interests in assocales and
interests in jont ventures, The Group s premanly imvolved in the production and sale of packaged meats and
pork. The principal aclivitkes of its prncipal subsidiaries are sel oul in note 46 to the consolidated financial
slalemaents.

The lunctioasl curéncy of the Comgany s the LISE.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION
The consolidated linancial stalerments have been prepaned n acoodance with  Infernational  Fmancial
Reporting Standasds (IFRS™) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB") and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,

The consclidated financial statements hawe been prepared under the histonical cost convention, excepl for
biological assets, linancial assols at falr alue through prolil or loss, certain non-current assols and derivative
fimancial assets and liabalities which have been measured al fal value These fimancial statements are
presented in USE, and all values are rounded to the nearest million ("US$'million”) except when otherwise
indicated

2.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
The consolidated fmancial statements comprse the Bnancial statements of the Company and its enlities
{including structured entities, confrolled by the Group) during the year ended 31 December 2022 Confrol is
achicved when the Group is exposed, or has righis, lo varable returns from ils involwement with he invesios
amnd has the abdlity to attect those refumns through #s power over the investee, Specifically, the Group confrols
an investee o, and only iof, the Group has:

{a) power over the mvestes (e, existing rights that give & the curtent abdity to direct the relevant activities.
aof the mvestee),

{by exposure, or righls, Lo varable relums rom (s invodvement with the ineestes; and

(e} 1he ability to use its power over the investes to affect its retuims.

'WH GROUP LMITED 13
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)
Generally, there is & presumplon thal 8 majonty of voling nghts results in control,. To support this
presumplion and when the Group has less than a majority of the voling or similar righls of an investes, the
Group considess all rebevant facts and circunslances in assessing whether L has power over an invesiee,
including:

fa)  the contraclial anangement(s) with the other vole hobders of he invesbes;
by rghts ansing lrom other contractual amangements, and
{c} the Group's voling rights and polential voling rights.

The Group re-assesses whelher or not it controls an investea il facts and cicwmstances indicale that there
are changes to one o mose of the thiee elements of contiol, Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group oldains control over the subsidiary and ceazes when the Group loses confrol of the subsidiany. Assets,
Ratsilies, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired of diposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated linancial statements from e date that the Group: gains: control until the date Ihe Group ceases
to contiol the subsidiary,

Profit of ks and each component of other comprehensive income (“0GIT) are attributed to the owners of the
Company and 1o the non-controlling inferests, even iF this resulls in the non-controlling imlerests having a
defict balance. When necessary, adjustments are made lo the fmancal slatements of subsidiaries 1o brng
their accounting policses into line with the Growp's accounting policies. All intra-group assets and: liatlities,
equily, imcome, cxponses and cash flows relaling to transsclions - between members of the Gioup are
elminated In full on consalidation,

Changes in the Group's ownership interests i existing subsklianes thal do not result in the Group losing
control over lhe subsikdianes are accounded lor &5 equity lransactions. The carmying amounls of the Group's
relevant components of equity mcluding reserves and the non-controlling inlerests are adjusted o reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsideanes, Any dilference between the amount by which the
mo-controlfing imteresis are adjusted after re-athribation of the relevant equity component, and the fair value
of the consideration pasd of received 08 recogmised diectly nooequily and attributed 1o owners of Hhe
Company.

When the Group kses contrel of a subsidiary, 8 gam of kas s recognised in profil of ks and is cabculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the teir value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (i) the carrying amounts ol the assels fincluding goodwil} and liabilities of the
subsidiary  attributable to the owners of the Company, AN amoants previsusly recopnised in other
comprehensive income i refation o that subsidieny are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets o liabalities of the subsidiany (e, rectassified to profit or kess of t@nsferred dieclly to
retained earnings). The fair valee of any mvestmenl retained in the fomer subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded @s the fair value on initial recognition ol subsequent accounting under IFRS 9
Financial nstroments o, when applicable, the cost on inital recognition of an investment in an associate or
a joim venture

T WH GROUR LIMITED 50000 AL HET
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first teme for the cument year's linancial

statemants.

Amendments o IFRS 3 Refarence 1o the Conceplual Framework

Amendments o IAS 16 FProperty, Planl and Equipment: Proceeds befre Infended Uise

Airendments 1o |AS 37 Onerous Conlracts — Cost of Fuliling a Contract

Annual Improverments o Amendments 1o IFRS 1, IFRS 9, llustrative Examples accompamang
1FRS Standards 201 8-2020 IFRS 16, and 145 41

The natune and the mpact of the revised IFRSs ae described bebow:

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference o te Concephiral Framework

Amendments to IFRS 3 eplace a relerence to the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentalion
of Financial Statements with a meference 1o the Concepfual Framework  for  Financis! Reporting  {the
“Conceplual Framework') Esued in March 2018 without significantly changing ifs  requirements.  The
amendments also add ko IFRS 3 an exception 1o ®5 recognition princigle for an entity to refes to the
Conceplual Framework to delermine whal conslitules an assel of a liabdity. The exception specifies thal, for
liabilities and contingent labdities that would be within the scope of 1AS 37 o IFRIC 21 il they were
incumred separately rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity apphying IFRS 3 shoulkd reter 1o
1AS 37 of IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the Conceplual Framework. Furfthermore, the amendmeants clarity
that contingent assets do nob cuaality for recognilion af the -acquisition date, The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to business combinations thal occcumed on or afler 1 January 2022 As there were
no contingent assels, Babilities and contingent liabilities within the scope of the amendmants ansing in the
business combination thal ocourred during the period, the amendments did not have any impact on the
tmancial position and pedormance of the Group.

Amendments o IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds hefore Intended Use

Amendments 1o IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of an ilem of property, plant and
equipment any proceeds from selling tems produced whilte bringing that asset to the lecation and condition
necessary for if lo be capable of operaling in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity
recoamises the proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost of those items a5 delermined by IAS 2
Irventories, in paofit or kess: The Group has-apphied the amendments refrospectively to items of property,
plant and cquipment made available for use on or after 1 January 2021, Since (here was no-sale of idems
preduced while making property, plant and equipment avastable lor use, the amendments did not have any
impact on the financial posiion o performance ol the Groap,

Amendments o IAS 37 Onerods Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments 1o 1AS 37 claly that for the purpose of assessing whether a contracl is operous under 1AS 37,
the cost of lullilling the contiact comprises the costs that relate directly to the confract. Costs that relle
directly v a contract include both the imcremental costs of Tulfiling that contract {e.g., direct labour and
metersi) and an allecation of olher costs that relate directly (o fulfilling that conlract (e.g.. an allocation of
the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fullilling the contract as well as
contracl management and supetvision cosks). General and adminstative costs do not relale directly to a
contract and are excleded unbess they are expliclly chargeable to the comnterparty under the contiact. The
Group has applied the amendments prospectively to conlracts for which 0 has not yel fulidled all its
obligations @ 1 January 2022 and no ondrops conlracts were identiled. Therefore, the amendments did nol
have any impact on the financisl posilon o performance of the Group,

ENNUAL REF SO0 WHGRIUP LMITED 15
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (Continueed)
Anmual fmprovements fo (FRS Standards 2018-2020
Annugl improvemends fo IFRS Standards 2018-2020 sels oul amendments o IFRS 1, IFRS 9, [Hustative
Examples accompanying [FRS 16, and 1AS 41 Detals 'of the amendments thal are applicable to the Giodp
are a5 follows:

. IFRS O Financal! instraments: clailies. e feis thal an entily includes when stsessing whelv the teins
o 8 new or modified financial Rability are substantially different from the ternes of the orgimal financial
Eabilty. Thess fees include only those pad or received belween the borrower and the lender, ncluding
fees paid of recelved by either the borrower or lender on Ihe others behall. The Group has applied the
amendment prospectively 1o financiad liabdlities thal are modilied o exchanged on or afler 1 January
2022,

. IFRS 16 [egses: removes the ilustation of payments from the lessor relaling 1o lesasehold improvements
n lhstrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16, This removes potential confusion regarding the
treatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS 16

* IAS 41 Agricufture: removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of 145 41 that entities exclude cash flows
for taxation when measuring the fain value of assets within the scope of 1AS 41

The above amendmants did not have any impact on the financial positicn or petffonmandce of the Group.

24 |SSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL FINAMNCGIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has nol applied the following now and revised IFRSs, that have bean issued but are not yol
effactive, in these linancial statements

Amendments to IFRS 10 Safe or Contribetion of Assels between an fnvesior and its Associaie
and IAS 28 or Joird Venfure!
Amendments o IFRS 16 Lease Lisbiity in 8 Sale and Legseback®
Amendments fo 145 1 Classification of Liabiifes a5 Current o Moan-current (ihe “2020
Amendments”)*
Amendments o [AS 1 Non-current Lialiitles wath Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)*
Amendments o 1AS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies!
IFRS Praclice Statement 2
Amendments to 185 8 Dafinition of Accounting Estimates:
Amendments o 1AS 12 Deforeed Tar melated lo Assels and Liabilies avsing from a Single
Trarsachon”

Edfectivn for amnual periods Beginning on or afied 1 January 3024

2 Efecti hor annual periods Beginning on o sfler | January 2009

o mendatory efectve date vel delevmned bul avalable for earky adoption

. A3 A consoqience Of (he 02T Amandmest, e’ effectun dam of he 2020 Amonciments wars defeamad 10 aanusl peiods teginning
on o afied 1) Januany 2024
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERMATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)
Further information abmd those IFRSs that are expected o have an impact on the Group upon adoption is
describied Bedow. Whilsl management has performed an assessment of the estimaled impacts of these
standards, that assessment is based on the information currently available 1o the Group. The actual impacis
upon adoplich could be diflerent to hose below, depending on additional reasonable and supportable
information being made awailable to the Group ol the lime of applying the standards.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and |AS 28 Sale or Contrifution of Assels between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to IFRS 10 and [AS 28 addiess an inconsklency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in
IS 28 in dealng with the sale or contribution of assets between an imestor and ils associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a lull recognition of a gain or loss resulfing from a8 downsiream transaction
when the sala o coninbufion ol assels between an investor and its associabe or joinl venlure constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do nol constitute a business, a gain of koss esulfing from
the transaction is recognised in the investor's profit o loss only to the edent of the unrelated investor's
inberest i thal associabe of ol venture. The amendments aie to be applied prospectively, The previous
mandatory effectve date of amendments to IFRS 10 and |AS 28 was removed in December 2015 and a new
mendatony elfective dale will be debermined after the completion of a breader review of accounting for
associates and joink venlures. However, the amendments: are aallable for adeption now,

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

Amendments to IFRS 16 specily e requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease labdliby
Mising in & sale and leaseback ransaction o ensure the seller-lessee does nol recognise any amount of the
gain of loss that retates to the right of use it retaing, The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied refrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entesed into alles the date of iitial application of IFRS 16 (le, I January 2019). Earler application is
permitted. The amendments are nol expected o have any smoificant impact on the -Group’s linancial
statemants

Amendments to 185 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

Amendments 1o IAS 1 Ciassification of Lablites as Current or Nen-current clanily the requirements lor
classifying liabilities as current oF non-cumend, in paticular the determinabion over whether an enfity has a
right to defer setllemsant of the liabilities for at least 12 months aller the reporting period. Classification of a
liabslity & unaffected by the Tkelhood that the enfity will exercise its nght to defer seltlement of the lebility.
The amendments alse darity the situations that are considered a seftfement of a Rability, In 2022, the |ASE
issued the 2022 Amendmenls [o further clarify thal, among covenanls of a liability arising from a koan
arrangement, only thise with which an enlity must comply on o betore the reporfing dale affect the
classification of thal Bability as current o non-current. In addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional
disclosures by an entily that classilies liabdlities arsing from loan amangements a5 mon-current when it has a
right to defer seltbenmen of those liabilities that are subject lo the entily complying with future covenants
within 12 monthes after the reporting period, The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
of after 1 January 2024 and shall be apphbicd ieiospectively. Earlier application & pemstled. An entity that
applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to apply simultanecusly the 2022 Amendments, and vice
wversa, The Group ks cumrently assessing the impact of the amendments and whelher existing loan agieements
may require revision. Based on & preliminary gssessment, the amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.4 |ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Conlinued)
Amendments to 1AS 1 Disclosure of Accouniing Policles
Amendients to IAS 1 Diselesure of Accounting Pobcles require entities o disclose thir maleial aceounting
peodicy information rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is matesial if,
when considered together with oher information mcluded i an enlity's  Ginancial -st#lemaents, 1 can
reasonably be expected o inlleence decesions thal the primary users of gencral porpose financial statements
make on the basis of those fimancial statements, Amendments fo IFRS Practice Statement 2 provide
non-mandatory  guidance on how o apply the concepd of matenality to accounling policy dscksures.
Amendments to |AS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on o after 1 January 2023 and esilier
application is peamitted. Snce the guidance provided in the amandments to IFRS Practice Stalement 2 is
nom-mandatory, an effecdive date for these amendments s nol necessary, The Group s curmently revisiting the
acoounting policy disclosures 1o ensure consislency with the amendments.

Amendments to IAS 8 Disclosure of Acconnting Estimates

Amendments to 1AS 8 clanfy the distinclion between changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounling polcies. Accounting cstimabes are definged a5 monelary amounts n linancial slatements tal ane
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments atso clarily how entities wse measuremen! fechniques
and inpuls 1o develop accounting estimates. The amendments ae effective lor annudl repofing periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply o changes in accounfing policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or afler the starl of thal pericd. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any sigmificant impact on the Group's linancial salements.

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax refated fo Assets and Liabilities arising from a Simgle
Transaciion

Amendments 1o 1A5 12 narmow the scope of the initial recognition exception in IAS 12 so that it no lager
applies to tansaclions thal give s to equal baeble and deductible temporary differences, such a5 leases
and decommissoning obligations. Theretore, entities are required to recogmse a deferred tax assel (provided
that sufficient laxable profit s available) and a deferred tax Fability for lemporary differences ansing from
thess Wansactions. The amendiments are ofective for annoal iepoitng penods beginning of of alter
1 January 2023 and shall be applied to ransactions related to feases and decommissioning -obligations at the
beginming o the carbes! compaative period presented, with any cumulative effect ecognised as an
adjusiment to the opening balance of retained profits or olher component of equity as appropaiate al that
date. In addiion, the amendments shall be applied prospeclively o tansactions otheds than leases and
decommissioning obigations. Earlier application s permifted, The amendments are not expecked to have any
skgnificant impact on the Group's financial statements
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business combinations and goodwill
Acquisitions of businesses are accounted o using the acquisition method. The comsideration transferred in
bisiness combinalion s imeasured atl fai value, which i calcufiled as e sum of the aoquisition date Eair
values: of the assets iransferred by the Group, Habilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
goquires and  the equily interests issued by the Group in exchange lor confrol of the acquires,
Acruigition - relaod cosls are recognised in prolit on loss as incurned,

The Group delamines thal it bas acquired a business when the acquired set of aclivitics and assels includes
an Iinpul and a substantive process thal together significantly contribade fo the ability to create oulpats,

Al the soquesition date, the kenliliable assels acquined and the labdities assumed are recogmised ab their Bar
wvalue, except that

*  deferred tax assels of l@bilities, and assels or liabilities related fo employee benefil arangements are
recognised and measued in accordance with 1AS 12 fncome Tares and 1AS 19 Employee Bonedits,
respeciively;

. lEabalities oo equily instiuments sclaled 1o share-bated payment armngements of the aoquirés of
share-based payment amampements of the Group entered into to replace  share-based  payment
arrangemants of the acquiree aie measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date (see the accounling policy below); and

. assols (or disposal groups) thal are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 AMon-cuvrent
Aszets Held for Sale and Discorfimeed Operations are measured In accordance with that standard,

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration fransfermed, the amount of any
non-contolling interests in the acquires, and the fair alue of the acquigers previously held equity inferest in
the acquires (i any) over the net amount of The identifiable assels acquined and The liabilities assomed a5 al
acquisition date I, aller re-assessment, the net amount of the idenhilable assets acquired and liakslities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of amy non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair walue of the acquirer’s previowsly held inlerest in the acquires ( any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain

Non-contrelling nterests that are present owneiship interests and entile their holders 1o a propostionate share
of the relevant subsidiany's net assels in the event of liquidation are indtially measured edher at tair value or
o the non-controlling inferests’ proportionate share of the recognesed amounts of the acrquiree’s sdentifiabbs
net assets. The choice of measuremend basis s made on a ransaction-by-transaction basis.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition ol a business is camied al cost as established al the date of acquisition ol
the business (see the accounting policy above) less any accumiilated impaiment keses, i any

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill ks allecated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
{"CGls") (or group ol CGLks). that is expected 1o benedil from the syneéngies of the combination. which

represent the lowest level al which the goodwill is monitored for intemal management purposes and nol
larger than an operating segmaent.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Confinued)

A CGL (or group of CGLEs) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impainmend annually, of more
fiequenlly when there s indicalion thal e uni ey be impaiied. Foi goodwill ansing on an acquisition (i a
repeoeting panied, the CGLU {or group of CGLUs) to which goodwill has been allocated is fested for impairment
before e end of thatl reporting pedod. | the recovemble amount @5 less than its canying amount, the
imgairment loss s allocaled fist to reduce the carying amaunt of any goodwill and then io the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carving amount of each asset in e unit (or group of CGLIS),

On disposal of the relevant CGL, the attributable amount of goodwill is Incleded in the determination of the
amounl of profit or loss on disposal.

Fair value measurement

Fair walue is the price that would be received fo seil-an assel or paid to bansfer a liability in an orderly
transaction befween market participants al the. measurement date, The lair value measurement & based on
the presumpdion that the fransaction to sell the assel or transfer the liabdity takes plBce eithor i the
principal markel for the asset of l@bility, o in e absence of @ princpal nackel, in e most advantageoes
market for the asset or lability. The principal o the most advantageous market mast be accessible by the
Group. The fair valee of an assel or @ lability s measured using the assumptions thal mearkel participanis
wolld use when pricing e asset or kabilly, assuming thal markel participants act in thelr scomomic best

A fair valie messurement of a non-linancial assel takes into account 8 markel paticipant’s ability 1o generate
coonomic benelits by using the assel in s highest and best use or by sellmg it o another markel paticepant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Group uses vahuation techmigues that are appeoprste: in ihe cicumstances and for which sulficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inpuls and ménimising the use
ol unobsarvabla inputs.

Al assets and Rabilities for which (s value B messued of disclosed in e linancial statements are
categormed withan the fair walue hierarchy, described as lollows, based on the lowest level inpol that e
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or labilitkes;

Level 2 =  bated on valuation lechniques for which the lowest level mpat that s signiticant to the fag
value messurement & obsenabbe, either directly of indirectly; and

Laval 3 —  based on valuation techniqoes for which the bowest level input that i skgnificant 1o the Tai
wvalue measuremant i unobservabla

Foq assels and labilities thal are recognised in Ihe financial statemends on a recurring basis, the Group
defermines whether ransfers have occumed bebween levels in the hierarchy by reassessing calegorisation

(based om the lowest level mput that is significant to the fair walue measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting pericd
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties
A party s considered to be related to the Group if;
{a} the parly i a person of 8 close member of that person's family and that person
{i¥  has controd o1 joint control over e Group:

{iiy  has significant inlluence over the Grougs; o

{il)  is a moember of the key managemant personnel of the Group or of a parent of the Groug;

{b} the party i an entity where any of the following conditions agphes:
{i}  the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

{ii}  one enlity 35 an associate of joent ventore of the other entity {or of a parent, subsidiary o lellow
subsidiary of the other entityl;

{ii}  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;
{lv)  one enlily = A jand ventore of a thind entity and the othes entily is an sssociste ol the thind entsty.

(v} the enlity is a post-employment benelil plan for the benefit of emplyees of either the Gioup of
an entity related to the Group;

(i) the entity = contiolled o jointly controlled by a person identilied n (a);

{vil] & person identilled In (aXi} has signilicant iMluence over Lhe entity of is a member of the key
managenent personnel of the entily (of of a parent of the entity); and

{villy the entity, o any member of a group of which it 5 a part, provides key management personnel
sanvices to the Group o to the parand of the Group.

Investments in associates and joint venlures

An mssociate is an enlily over which the Group has signilicant influence. Signilicant influence is the power lo
participate in the financial and operating policy decssions of the investee bt 15 not control or joint control
over those policies

A joint venture s a8 oint arrangement whereby the parbies that have joint control of the armangement have
rights to the net assets of the jpinl amangemant. Joint control s the contractually agreed sharing of control o

ai aranpement, which exists only whien decisions: aboul the réevant activitles require the unanimeus consent
of the parties shawing control.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The resulls and assets and Eabilities of associates and joint ventures are incorporaled i the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Adjustments are made to bring ino line any
dissimibr accounting policies thal may cxst The fmancial statements of associates or joint veniures used Ton
equity methed accounting purposes are prepared using unifoom accounting policies as those of the Group for
like trEnsactions and evends in samilar croumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in an
aseocite of @ joinl ventude i inltially fecognised n the consolidated statemment of inancial position al cost
and adjusted therealtar to recognise the Group's share of the prolit or bess and other comprehensive income
of the associate o joint venture. When the Group's share of losses of an-associate o joink venlure exceeds
the Group's interest in thal associate o joint venlure (which inchedes any long-term inferests thal, in
substance, form part of ihe Group's nel mvestment in the assoclale o joint ventured, the Group disconlines
recognising its share of further bsses. Additional losses are recognised only o the edent that the Group has
ncurred legal of constructive oblgations or made payments on behall of that associate or joint venbure.

An investmend in an associate o a point veniure S oaccounted b using the equity method lrom the dale on
which the investee becomes an assoclate or a joinl venlure, On acquisiion of the investment in an associate
or & joint venture, any excess of the cost of the invesiment over the Group's shase of the net f&ir value of the
identifiable assets and labdlities of the investes s recognised as goodwil, which b Inchaded within the
camying amount o the investment,

Any excess of the Groups share of the net fair valse of the identifiable assels and liabilities and contingent
ladvililties over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, i recognised mmediately in prolit o loss in the
pegiod In which the investment Is acquired.

The Group. assesses whether ihere is an objective evidence that the interest in an associate of a joint venture
may be impaired. When any objective evidenoe exists, the enlire canying amount of the investment
(mcluding goodwall) is tesled for impairment in accordance with 1AS 36 impaimnent of Assels a5 a single
assel by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and 13l walue less costs of disposal) with
s canrying amounl. Any impairment koss recognised forms part of the canning amount of the mvestment
Any reversal of that impaioment loss s recognised in accoadance with 1AS 36 lo the edent ihal the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases

When the Group ceases fo have significant influence over an asseciale of joint control over ajoint venture, i
im accounted for a5 a disposal of the entive inberest in the investee wilh a resulting gain or koss beng
recognised in profit of less. If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in & joint venture o vice
versa, the relained inlerest s pol remeasured, In other cases, the Group messures and recognises any
retained investment af its falr value. The difference between the carrying amount of the associate or jont
verdure and the fair value of any relained mberest and any proceeds Trom dispesing the redevant mterest in
the assockte of jolnl veplure i included in the delermination of the gain or loss on disposal of The associale
o jeint venlure. In  addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in olher
compehensive income in relation 1o that assocsle o joinl venfure on the same basis @5 would be requined
il that associste of joml venlure had ditectly disposed of the related sssels o labilities. Therelore, il a gain
or koss prevously mecognised in other comgeehensive meome by thatl associate o poinl ventore would be
reclassified to profit o loss on the disposal of the related assels or labilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity lo profil o loss (a5 & aeclassification adjustment) when the equity method s
discontinweed.

When o group entity transacts with an associale o joint wenture of the Growp, profits of bosses resulling from
the transactions with the associate of joind venture are recognised in the consolidated financial statements
only 1o the extent of mlerests in the associale thal are nol elated to the Group,
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment tesling for an asset i equired (other
than mventones, confract assels, delered L assels, Tmancial assels, investmenl propeiies and non-current
assetda disposal group classified as_held for sake), the: assel’s recoverable amount = estimaled. An asset’s
recovemable amount is the higher of the assel's o cash-generating units value i use and its ir value less
costs ol dispesal, and is debenmined for an individual assel, unbess the assel does nol generate cash indbows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is detesmaned los the cash-genersting unil o which the assel belongs. In testing a cash-generating
unit Tor impairment, @ potion of the carmying amount of 3 colporate assel (e g, a headquaners buliding) Is
allocated fo an individeal cash-generating unit # #t can be allocated on & reasonable and consisten! basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of goods of services is transierred 1o the
custormes al an amount thatl rellects the conshdesation 16 which he Group expects to be entiled in
exchange for those poods of services

Contial of the goods o serviees & ranslened ovwd Hme | e Group's peilolmance:
. provides all of the benclils received and consumed simultanecusly by the customer;
. creates of enhances an assel that the customer controls as the Group pedforms; of

. doss not create an asset with an allernative use o the Group and the Group has an enforceabla right
te payment for perormance completed fo date.

It control of the asset ransfers over lime, revenue is recognised over the period of the conteacl by reference
to the plogess towards complate satisfaction of that perfomance obligation. Otherwse, revenue 15 (eoognised
at a point in fime when the costomer oblains controd of the assel.

The progress towards complele salistachon of the parormance obligation s measured based on the Group's
clforts o inputs o the satistaction of the pesformance obligation relative to the fotal expecied efforts o

inpats.

Depending on the fterms of the conlract and the lws that apply fo the confract, the conteol of the goods o
services may be transfened over time orat a point in time,

When the considesation in & contract includes a vanable amonnt, the amount of considealion & estimated 1o
which the Group will be enfilled in exchange for ransferring the goods of services bo the customer, The
variabde consideration s oestimated af conbract moeption and constrained ontil it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will nol occur when the
asociated uncedainty with the varable considerstion is subsequently resolved.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinued)
Revenue recognition (Conlinued)
Revenue from contracts with costomars (Continued)
When Lhe contiact contains a liancing component which provides the customer wilh a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services fo the customer for mode than one yest, revenue is measured at
the presond value of the amount receivable, discountied using the discount rate that would be refllecled inoa
separale financing transaction between the Group and the customer al contract nception. Wien the conlract
containg a financing companent which provides the Group with a significant financial benefit lor more than
one yoar, revenue recognised ueeder the oconfract includes the inferest expense acoeted on the contract
liaby iy wndes e efiechive inlerest method. For a conract whese the peiod between the payment by the
customer and the transfer of the promised goods of services s one year of less, the lansaction gice is not
adpusted for the effects of a sigmilicant linancing component, useng the practical expedient in IFRS 15

Revenue from the sale of meal and relbted prodects s recognised at the point in e when control of the
aseel B transtermed to the customes, generally on delivery of the meal and related products.

Revenue from e sale of propestes is recognised at the poinl in time when the purchasers obdained the
physical possession of the legal tile ol the comgdeted property and the Group has the present rght to
paymnent and the collection of the consideration & probable.

Payment is genemlly due within 30 to 90 days from delivery, except for new customers, whete payment in
advance b nomally required. Some contiacts for the sake of meal and related products provide customerns
with & right of retum and rebates which give rise to variable consideration subject to constiaint.

Service income B recognised over lime when sesvices are rendered becawse the customer simallaneously
receives and consumes the benefdl provided by the Group.

Rewenue from other sources

Interast income is recognised on an accrnual bask usigy e ellective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated Tulure cash receipts over the expected lite of the francial nstroment of
a shorler period, when appropeiate, to the net carrying amount of the Tinancial asset.

Dividend income s recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable thal the economec benelits associated with the diindend will flow 1o the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured iediably.

Contract assels

A contract Assel s the rght to consideration In exchange lor goods or services transfarred to the customes, I
the Group peforms by ransfeming goods of services looa customes before the customer pays considerafion
of before payment is due, a contract assel is recognised for the earned consideration that i condtional,
Conbract assels are subject lo mpairment assessment, details of which are included in the acoounting
peoficies for impasrment of fnancial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liabality 15 recognised when @ payment is received or a paymient 15 due (whichever is earleer) rom
a customer before the Group traosiers the relaled goods of services, Conlract lEabilfies are recognised as
revenue when the Group pesfonnes under the contract (e, transfess control of the related goods or serdces
to the cusiomer},

4 WH GROUP LIMITED 20000 AL FEF

179/302



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

S PR PRR |
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Conftract costs
Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventorses, propedies under development, properly, plant amnd
equipment aind ntangible assets, cosls incuired Lo Wllil & conlacl with a costomer e capitalised as an
asset it all of the following criteria are mal:

fa) U costs relate diecctly to A eontract of 6 arn anticipated contracd thal the entity can speciically identiy.

(b} the cosls generale or enhance resources of the entity that will be used in satistying (or in continuing o
=atisty) performance obligations in the fulure; and

{c)  the costs are expected to be recovered

The capitalised contract costs ae amortised and chaged to profit or loss on a systematic bass that is
consistent with the ransfer to the customer of the posds or services o which the assel relates. Other
contrac] costs are expensed as incurred:

Right-of-return assets

A right-of -returm assel s recognised Tor e right to recover the goods expected to be returned by customens,
The assel s measured at the former canrying amount of the goods lo be refurned, less any expected cosls to
recovier the goods and any potential decreases in (he value of the relwned goods. The Group updsles the
measuremenl of the assel o any revsions to the expected level of relurns and any additional decreases in
the value of the returned goods.

Retand liabilities

A refund Rability s recognised for the obligation to refund some o all of the consideration recened {or
receivable) from a customer and s messured at the amoum the Group ullimately expects it will have 1o
reburn b the customer. The Group updates ils estimates of relund liabilities (and the corresponding change
in the transaction prical al the end ol each reporting period.

Leases

The Group assesses al contract mceplion whether a8 contracl i, of contains, & kease A conbiac s of
contains, a kease if the confract conveys the right to conlrol the use of an identilied assel for a period of Hime
In exchange (or consideratbon

Group as a lesses
The Group apples a single recognilion and messurement approach for all leases, excepl for shori-term

leases, The Group recognises bease labilities to make lease payments and right-ol-use assels regresenting the
nght to use the undedying assels
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Caonfinued)

Leases (Confinued)

Grovp 35 a lessee (Continued)

{a)  Right-ol-use assels
Right-of-uze ascets are recognised at the commencement date of the lesse (lhat & the date the
underlying @ssel i avadable for use). Righl-of-wse assels are measured a8l cosl, bess any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusied for any remeasurement of lease Rabiliies, The
cost of right-ol-use assets includes the amount of lease labiltios recognised, initial direct costs
meurred, amnd bease payments made atl or belore the commencement dale less any lease incenlives
recelved. Righl-of-use assels are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shofer of the lease fenms
and the estimated useiul lives of the assels as follows:

Leasehold land maee than 1 year to 50 years
Buikdings moset than 1 year lo B0 years
Motor vehickes mage than 1 year to 8 years
Plant, machmeny and equipment moge than 1 year to 13 years
Contiact lagms iose than 1 year 1o 18 years

Il ownership of the leased asset ransbers to the Group by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculbted using the estimaled useful He of the
assel

When the righl-of-use assels relates 1o inlerests in leasehold land held as propertees under
development, they  ae subsequently measured al the bwer of cost and nel realsable walue in
accordance with the Group’s policy foe “Propedies under development”™.

(B Lease Salwines

Lease liabifities are recognised at the commencement date of the lease &l the present valee of lease
pevmients 1o be mode over the kease teame The ke payments incude lixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, varsmable lease payments that depend on
an index or a ale, and amounts expected 1o be paid under residual value guaramess. The lease
payiments alio inclide the exercise piice of a puichase option ressonably cemtain o be exercised by the
Group and payments of penaliies for tesmination of 8 lease # the lease term reflects. the Group
exercising the option o terminate the kease The vanable kease paymaents that do nol depand on an
mdex or & rate are recognised as an expense in the period i which the event o condition that trigrers
the: payment occus.

In calculating the presenl value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental burowing rate at the
kease commencement dale because the interest rate imglicit in the lease = not readily determinable,
Arter e commencement date, the amount of lease liatdlities s increased o reflect the accretion of
mterest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the canying amaount of lease Rabilities
B remesured o e is o modification, & change in he lesse bem, @ change in lease payments (eg.,
a change to futwe lease payments resulting from a change in an index o rate) of a change in
essessment ol an oplion 10 purchase the underlying asset.

The Group's lease labilities are separately disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position,
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continusad)

Leases (Continuwed)

Growp as a lesses (Continued)

fel  Short-lerm feases
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to #s shot-term leases of baikdings,
plamd, machmnery and equipment, molor sehicles and conliact larmes, {(that is those leases thal have a
lesese lenm o of 12 months or kess from the commencement. dade and do nat contain a puchase apbion).
Lease payments on shoet-leem leases are recognised as an expense on & siraight-line basis over the
leasa term

Group as a lessor
When the Group acts 85 a lessor, it classifies al lease inceplion {or when there 5 a lease modification) each
of fs leases as either an operating lease or a fmance lease,

Leases in which the Group does mol fransier substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownesship of
an assel are clhssilied as operating leases. When a condract contains kase and non-lease components, the
Group aflccates the consideration in the contract to each component on a redative stand-alone selling price
basis, Rental income 5 accounted for on a straight-line basks over the lease lerms and is recognised in
“Ciher Income” in profit o loss. Initial direct costs incurred in negoliating and asranging an operaling bease
aie added o the caimyng amounl ol Uhe leased asset and recognised overs the lease lerm on the same basis
as rental income. Contingen! rents are recognised as revenue in the pericd in which they are earned

Leases that transfer substanbally sll the riks and rewands incidental fo ownership of an undeslying assel to
Ihe lesses are accounted for as finance leases

Property, plant and equipment

Property, phnt and eqanpment, mcluding buldmgs held for use in the production o supply of goods o
services, of fof administrative purposes other than properties under constriction, as described below, are
stated im the consobidated stalerment of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumukated impaioment ksses, i any.

Freahold land is ndd depreciated.

Depreciation is recognissd so a5 to write off the cost of tems of poperty, plant and equipment other than
frechold land and properties under constischion less theil residual valees over thelr estimated uselul lives,
using lhe straight-line method. The estimated wselul lives, residual valees and depreciation method are
revizved at the end of each reporting peded, with the ellect of any changes in esltimate accounted for on the

following basis:
Buildings 0 1o 40 years
Maolor vehicles 5 o 10 years

Plant, rachinery and equipment 5 1o 20 years

Construction in  progress lor production, supply or administrative purposes is camied a1 cost, less any
recognised  Impainment kess. Costs include professional fees and, for qualiying assets, borrowing  cosls
capilalised in accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such assels are classilied to the approprale
calegories of property, planl and equipment when completed and ready lor infended ise Depeeciation o
these assets commences when the assels are ready for their ilended use
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Caonfinued)
Froperty, plant and equipment (Conlinuaed)
An item of property, planl and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no lubure economic
benelils are expected o arse from the conlinuwed use of the assel Any gain of kss ansing on e
derecopnition of an item of propedty, plant and equipment determined as the difference between the: sales
procesds and the canyng amount ol the assel s recognised in profit or loss,

Properties under development

Properlies unded development are stabed al the lower of cost and net realisabde walue and comprise land
costs, construction costs, borowing costs, professional fees and other costs directly attributable 1o such
properties incuned durting the development period.

Propesties under development are classified as cumrent assels unless the consbruction period of the relevant
proparty developmend project s axpected to complele beyond the normal operating cycle. On completion, the
properties are ranstened o completed properties hekd for sale

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated al the lower of cost and nel realisable value. Cost s
determined by an apportionment of 1ot land and construction costs attributable to the unsold propedies, Mat
realsable value is delermined by reference bo he sales of proceeds of groperties sold in the ordinary course
ol business, less applicable vamable seling expenses, o by management eshimates based on prevailing
mEarkel comdiions

Borrowing costs

Baoarowing cosls directly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assels, which
are assets thal necessarily take & substantial period of time to gel ready for their intended use of sale, ae
added to the cost of those assels until such ime a5 the assets are substantally eady Tor ther mtemded wse
or salbe

Al other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or koss in the period in which they are incureed.

Biological assels

Biological assels represent live hogs and poultry, which fall into five calepoaries: suckling hogs, nursery hogs,
finesher hogs, brollers and beeeding stock thogs and poultry), They are measured on inilial recognition and at
the end of each reporing period at their fair value less oosts o sell A gain o loss anising on initial
recognition of bickogical assel al fan value less costs o sell and from a change in fair value less costs lo sell
ol a bilogical ass¢l s included in profit or loss for the period m which & arises.

The: agiculiuwal produce (e, carcass) hanvested from the biological assets s measured al its fir value less
costs to sell al the point of harvest Such measurement is the cost at that date when appling 1AS 2
Invertories upon initial recogniion. A gain of loss arising (rom agricullural produce at the poinl of harvest at
falr value less costs to sell is inchieded in prolt o boss for the pesiod in which it arises

Intangible assets
Intangible assels acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from gocdwill are nitially
recognised at thelr fadr value at the acquisition date (which s regarded as their cost)
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets (Conlinued)
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination {Continued)
Subsequent 1o mitial ecognton, intangible assets soquired in a busines combination with lnile wseful Bies
are repoited al cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment: ksses, on the same
basis as inlangible assels thl ate acquired separately. Alternatively, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with mdefinite useful lives ame caried at cost less accumuolated snpairment losses (see the
gocounting policy in respect of impairment ksses on tangible and intangitde gsets below)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangibbe assets with finite wealul bves thal are acquired separately are camied at cost bess accumulatied
amaatisation and any accumutaled impaiment losses, Amoisation lor intangible assets with linite useful Hves
is recognised on A shaight-lne basis ower their estimated useful Bves. The estimated wseful life and
amorlisation method ae reviewsd al the end of each reporting period, with the affect o any changes in
estimate. beng accounted for on a prospective basis

Internally-generated intangible assets — Research and development expeadilune
Expendilure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-peneated intangible assel arsing from develspment activities (or from the deselopment phase of
an infernal propect) is recognised if, and only i, all of the following have been demonstrated;

. the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available o use oF sale;
. the Intention 1o complete and s ability and intention o use o sell the assel;
. howe the intangibde asset will generate probabde fulure economic benefits;

. the avaalabilty of adequale technical, financial and other resources b complels the developaent and 1o
use of sell the inlangible asset; and

. the abudlity to measure rekably the ependiture attnbutable to the intangibée asset duning its development.

The amaounl inially ecognesed lor mlemally-generated mtanmgible assels s the sum of the expenditure
incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above, Where no
internally-generated mtangible assel can be necognised, development expenditure s recognised i prodit or
loss i the penod inowhich it 1s ineured,

Derecognition of intangible assels

An ntangible assel s derecognised on disposal, of when no fultive economec benelits are expected (rom use
of disposal. Gains and bosses ansing Tom: derecognilion of an iMangible asset, measured as the difference
Letween the ne disposal procesds and the carng amount of the assel, are recognised in polil o loss
when lhe assel is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinued)
Inventories
Inventosies are stated al the lower of cost or the deemed cost for agnculiure produce harvested from
biological assets and nel icatisable value Cost is cadculated Using the weaighted avermpe el

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carying amounts of #s langible and intangible
assids with Imite useful lives 1o delermine whether there is any indication that those assels hive saflered an
mpatiment kss, Il any such indication exists, the recoverable amount ol the assel & estimated in order bo
delerming the extend of the mmpairment boss, if any. When it i ol possible 1o esimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGLU o which the asset
belongs, When a reasonable and consistent basis of allecation can be jdentified, corporate assels are also
allocated lo individwal CGUs, o otherwise they are allocaled to the smallest group of CGUs for which a
reasonable and consisent allocation basis can be idenfified.

Intangible assels with indefinite useful Bves and intangible assels not yel avaidable for use are lested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there s an indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount i the higher of fair valoe less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash Hows ate discounted to their present value wsing a pre-lax discount rate that
reflects current markel assessments of the time value of money and the risks specilic 1o the asset Tor which
the estimates of Tlure cash flows have not been adjusted.

H the recoverable amound of an assel {or a CGU} is estimated o be less tan ils carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the assel {or a CGU) s reduced to its recoveable amound. In allocating the impairment
lass, The ipairment boss is aBocabed first o reduce the canying amount of any goodwill (it applicablel and
then to the other assels on a pro-ata basis based on the carrying amount of each assat in the unit, The
carmying amount of an assel s nol reduced below the highest of 85 lair value less cosls of disposal (if
measurable), s value in use (f determinabde) and zero, The amount of the impairment boss that would
otherwise have been allocated 1o the assol is allecated pro rata lo the olher assels of the unil An

impairment loss is recognised mmedately in profit o loss.

Where an impairment loss s subsequently reversed, the carying amount of the assol {or CGUY) & increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying ameant does nol exceed The
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment ks bean recognised for the asset {or
a CGUY in prior years, A reversal of an impainment loss s recognised immediately moprodit o boss

Fimancial instruments
Financial assets and financaal kabiliies are recognised when a group enlily becomes a parly o (he
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Transachion costs thal are direcly atinibutabde to the acquisition of issue of financial assets and financis
liabvilies {other than financial assets or financial labililes al fair value through profit o loss ("FVPL")) ae
added to of deductsd from the fair value of the financial assels o financisl labilities, as appropriate, on
imitial recogmilion, Transaction costs direclly attributable to the acquisition of financil assels of Tinancis
lialpillses al FVPL are recognised immedately moprold o boss.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuad)
Financial instruments (Conlinued)
Financial assels
Imlial recogrition and rhedsurement
Financial assels are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequenily measured 8l amodised cost, far value
through other comgrehensive income {“FYOCI™), and FYPL

The classification of financial assets al initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contrachaal cash
Tl clharaclerstics and the Group's business model lof managing them. With the oxception ol Irade
receivables thal do not contain 8 significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of nol adjusting the effect of a significand financing component, the Group inilially
measures a financial asset at s fair vabue, plus in the case of a financial asset nob al fair walue: through
profit or loss, ransaction costs. Trade receivables that do nol contain a significant fmancing component of for
which the Group has applied the pactical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under
IFRS 15 i acoordance with he policies set out for “Revenue recognition” above,

In order for a financkl assel o be classidied and measured at amortised cost o Tai value theough other
comgaehensive mcome, it needs to give rise o cash llows that are solely payments ol principal and inferest
{"SPPI"} on the prncipal amounl oulstanding. Fimancial assels with cash flows thal are nol SPPI are
classilied and measiied ol lair vabee thiough prolit o loss, irespective of the Lissmess mode,

The Group's business model for managng linancial assets relers to how 1T manages its financial assels in
order 1o generate cash flows. The business model detarmines whether cash flows will resull from collecting
contraciual cash flows, selling the financal assets, or both. Fmancial assets classified and measured . at
amoieed cost are held within a business model with the objective 1o hold financial assets in order 1o collect
confractual cash flows, while financial assets classified and messured al fair value thiough  other
comgrehensive income dre held within a business model with the olgective of both holding 1o colled
contraciual cash llows and sefing, Financial assets which are not held within the. alorementioned business
models are classified and measured al fair value through profil or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales ol financial assels are recognised on the trade date, that is, the dale
thal the Group commils bo purchase o sell the assel. Regulan way purchases on sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within (he pencd gencrally established by regulation o
convention in the markelplace,

Suhsequent measurement
The subseguent measurement of Iinancial assels depends on thesr classilication as Tollows:

Eigncial assets gt smovtised cost (dabt nstruments)

The Group's financisd assels at amortised cost indudes bade, bills and olher recebabdes, pledgedirestncted
bank deposits and cash and bank balances are subsequently messured wsing the effeclive inberest method
amd are subject o impaiment. Gains and losses are recognised in profil o boss wien the asssl s
derecognised, modified or mpaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinued)
Financial instruments (Conlinued)
Financial assets (Conlinued)
Sibsegient messirement fContnred)
Financigl assals al FYPL
Financial assets at FYPL are camied in the stalement of fmancial positon at fair value with nel changes in
T value recognised in profil or loss,

This category includes dervative. and  unquoled  equity instruments which the Group had nol irmevocably
elected o classity al FYOCL Dividends on equity invesiments classiflied as financial assets at FWPL are akso
recognised as other income in profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, 8 is probable
that the economic benefils associated with the divedend will flow o the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably,

impaitrnent of fnancid aisels

The Group ecognises an allewance for expected credit bosses ("BCLs™) for all debd insttuments nol held at
FYPL, ECLs are based on Ihe dilference between the confractual cash flows due in accordance with e
confract and all the cash flows that the Group expects lo receive, discounted at an approximation ol the
orighnal effective interest rate. The expected cash Hows will include cash llows from the sale of collateral hedd
of other credil enhancements that ane mitegiral 1o the conlraciual bermes

Gneral appreach

ECLs are pecognised in two siages For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase
i credd sk since mitial recognfion, ECLs are provaded for credit losses that resull from defaull events that
are’ possibke within the nest 12 months (a 12-month ECLY, For those credit exposames for which there has
been a stgnificant increase in credil risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance s requited for credit losses
eapeirchiod over the remaining life of e cxposure, inespeclive of the timang of the delawlt (a litetime ECL).

Al each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credil risk on a financial insbiument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occourring on the financial nstrument as al the repoding date with the risk of 8 defaull cccuming on the
linancal nstrument as at the date of inilial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable nformation
that s available without undue cost or efiol, including historical and ferward-looking infarmation. The Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due

The Group considers a linanced assel in defaull when contiaciual payments are 90 days past due. Howewer,
i ceitain cases, he Group may also conskder a linancial assel 1o be (o defaull when internal of exlémal

information indicates that the Group is unbikely to recelve the culstanding contractaal amounts in full before
taking info account any credit enhancements held by ihe Groug
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Confinued)
Finamcial assets {Continued)
Sulsagiant measurement (Continued)
Impairment of i i
Gongral approach (Coptinuged)
Financial assets al amortised cost are subject te impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the folkwwing stapes for measurement of ECLs except for tade recelvables which apply the
simplilied approach as detailed below.

Slage 1 — Financial instruments Tos which credit risk has nol nereased signilicantly since initial recogndion
and for which the loss allowance 15 measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLS

Slage 2 — Financial instruments fof which credil risk has increased significanily since initial recognition
But that are nol credit-imgaired linancial assels and for which the loss allowance s measured
at an amount equal o lifetinw ECLs

Steme 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date (but that are not purchased o
oviginated credit-impaired) and for which the loss allwance is measured at an amount equal
o lifetime ECLS:

Simplified approgch

For trade receivables that do not contain a signilicant mancing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedéent of not adjusting the effect ol a significan financing component, the Group applies the
simplilied approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simpliied appioach, the Group does not lrack changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises & loss allowance based on flifetime ECLs at each reporting date The Group
has establshed a provision matric that s based on #s historical credit loss expenence, adjusted for
forward-looking faciors specific o (he debtors and the economic environment.

For tade receivables that contain a significant linancing component, the Group chooses as:its accoanting
palicy 1o adopl the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with polcies as described above.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Dbt aned equity nstrements mseed by a group entity are classified as either financial liabslibes of &5 equity
in pocordence wilh the substance of the contractual anangements and the definitions of a financial liabdlity
avd an equily instrument.

Eqinly’ insfrumaeants
An-oequity instrument B oany conliact that evidences a residual inferest mo he assels of an oenlity after
deducting all of #s liabdities. Equity mstruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs,

Financial fabiities 81 amoriised cost
Financial labalities, including bormowings, bank overdrafls, and brade and other payables, are subsequently
measured al amortised cost, wsing the elfective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinued)
Financial instruments (Conlinued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments {Continwed)
Effective inferest mathod
The effective interest method & a method of calculating the amortised cosl of a financial liability and of
allocating inlerest expense during the year. The elfective nterest mate is the rale thal easclly discounts
estimated fuluie crsh payments (ncluding all fees and points paid o received thal fom an integral part of
the effective inferest rate, Wransaction costs and othes premiums. o discounts) threugh the expected Bfe of the
financial liatality, o, where appropriate, a shofer period (o the net carying amount on iniial recognition,
Interest expese |s recognised on an elfective Inlerest basis.

Oltsetting of financial instruments

Financial assels and financial lisbilties are offset and the nel amount s reported in he consolidated
staterment of financial position if there i a cumently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there i an intention to sefle on 8 net basis, or fo reslise the assets and seftle fhe Eabilties
skmultaneously.

Derivative firancial instruments

Drerivastives age initially recognised at fair value at the date when dervative contracts are entered nto and are
subsequently remeasuied 1o their e value at the end of he repoiting pered. The resulting gam o oss i
recognised in profit o loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as 8 hedging
istrumsesdt, o which event the timing of the recognition i peolit or ks depends on the nature of e hedge
relationshig.,

Hedge sccounting
The Group designates certain derivalives as hedging instruments for fair value hedges and cash llow hedges,

Al the inception of a hedging relationship, the Group documends the relationship between the hedging
mstrument and the hedged dem, along with its sk management objectives and ils strategy Tor underaking
various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group
documents whelher the hedging instrumend is highly ellective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash
fMows of the hedged: item attributabée o the hedge risk

Fair value hedges

Changes in the falr value of denvalives that are designated and qualify a5 falr vahee hedges are recognised in
profit or boss immediately, together with any changes in the fain value of the hedged asset or liabilty that are
atinbutable o the hedged ek The change m the fair value of the hedging instrement and the change in the
hedged item atiributable 1o the hedped risk are recognised i profit o loss in the line dtem rebiling o the
hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, when the hedging
imstrument expires of 5 sold, terminated, of exercised, of when It no nger qualifies (o hedge sccounting.

The fair value adjustment to the canying amount of the hedged flem arising from the hedged sk is
recognised to profit o loss from that dale.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuad)
Financial instruments (Conlinued)
Derivative financial instruments (Continued)
Cash flow hedges
The effective porlion of changes in the falr value of derivatives that are designated and qualify a5 cash flow
hedges are recognised in other comgeehensive income and accwmulated in other eserve. The gain or loss
relating bo fhe ineflective podbon is recognised immediately in poofit or ks and s ncluded in the "Other
gains and (osses)” line dem

Amounts previously recognised in ofher comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (olher reserve) se
reclassifiod to prolit o loss in the periods when the hedged item allects: paodit or loss, in the same line of the
consalidaled stalement of profit o loss and ofher comprehensive nconme as. the recognised hedged item,

Hedgee accounding i5 discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, when the hedging
instrument expires of is sokd, termanated, of exercised, of when it ne longer qualdies for hedge accounling
Ay pain o loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity al that fime remains
in equity-and i recogmised when the forecast ansaction i ullimately recopnised in prefit of boss. When a
foeecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain of loss accumulated in equilty s recognised
immediately i profit or loss

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial assel only when the conbrachual rights 1o the cash lows from the asset
expire, of when il transiers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership ol the
assal lo another enlity, On derecogmibon of a linancz asset i its enlirely, the diflerence bebween the asset's
camying amount and the sum of the consideration received and recehable is recognised in profil or Joss

The Group derecognises linancial labilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are- discharged or
cancelled, of expare. The difference betwean the camrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideation paid and payable & recognisad in profl or less.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present oblgalion (legal or constiuctive] as & resull of & pasl
event, it s probabbe tkal the Group will be required o setthe thal obligation, and a rellable estimste can be
made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimale of the
considesation required o seltke the present obligation at the end o the reporting period, taking info account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obdigation, When a provision is measured using the cash flows.
estmated to settle the present obdigation, 05 camying amount s the present value of those cash lows: (where
the effect of the time value of money |5 maberal),

When some or all of the econamic benehits required to setlle a provision are expected 1o be recovered from
a third party, a receivable 5 recognised a5 an asset if il is virlually ceriain thal reimbursement will be
recenved and the amount of e receivable Gin be measured reliably,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Caonfinued)
Share-hased payment arrangements
Awarded shares’share oplions granted lo employees
For grants of sharesishare options that are conddional upon sliilying specilicd vesting conditions, the fae
value of services recetved ks detesmined by reference to the fair value of sharesfshare options granted at the
date of grant and s expensed on a straight-line basis over the westing period, with a comesponding incresse
i equity {other resesve). For grants of sharesfhare oplions thal vest immediately af the date of granl, the
tair value of e awarded shares i recognised immediately in profit o loss.

Al the end o the reporting period, the Group revises iis estimates of the mumber of share options thal are
expircled o ullimately vest. The impact of the revision of the orginel estimates, i any, is recognised in profit
of loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
other eserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previowsly recognised in other reserve will be transtermed to
shae pramiume When the share oplions ane forfeited alter the vesting date or are still not exercised al the
expdry date, the amound previously recognised in olher reserve will be transferred Lo retained profits.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as:a liabilty when they ane approved by the stercholders in-a genesal
meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interimn  dividends are simultaneously proposed and declased, because the Company's memorandum and
articles of association grant the divectors the authorly to declare mbterim dividends. Consequently, inlerim
dividends are recognised immedialely as a ability when they are proposed and declared.

Taxation
Income lax expense represents the sum of the tax cwrently payable and deferred fax,

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year, Taxabde proft diflers from “profit bedore fax”
as reported in profit o bss because of income of expense that is taxable o deduchible in other years and
Hems st are never taable of deductible. The Groug's: lability for current ax i calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted o substantively enacted by the end of the repotting penod,

Dederied lax is recognised on lemporary differences between the camrying amounts of assels and labdities in
the consolidated financial statements and the comesponding tax base used in the computation of taable
profit. Delerred tac liabdilies e generally recognised lor all taable tempoary diiercnces. Defened ax assels
afe generally recognised for all deductibbe temporary differences that can be ulilised, Such delerred tax
assels and labillies are nod recognised il the lemporasy difference arises from the infial ecognition (other
than in a business combination} o other assels and Eabdlities in a transaction that affects neither the Laxable
profil o the accounting profit
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Conlinued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences  associaled with investments in
subsidiwies, astociales and joind ventures, excepl wiheie the Gioup & able o contiol Lhe feversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foresecable
future. Delerred tax assels arising from deductible termpadany differences associated with such investiments
and inberests are only recognised to the extent that i s probable that there will be sufficient taable profits
against which to ulilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expacted o reverse in the
loreseeable Tulure.

The camying amounl of deferred tax assels s reviewed at the end of each reporling peried and reduced 1o
the extent that it & oo lenger probabde that sufficient laxabde profits will be available to allow all or part of the
assat fo be recovered. Unrecognised deferred tax assels are re-essessed al each reporting date and are
recognised 1o the exent that it has become probable thal fulure taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
assel o be recovered,

Deferred tax assels and labalities are messored al e tax rates that are expected to apply in the peniod in
which the Habilly is seltbed of the assel & realsed, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been
cnacled of substantively enacted by the end ol the reporting period.

The measurement of defened lax liabdities and assels relbects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, ol the end of the reporting period, 1o mecoves o sellle the carying
amaunt of its assets and [Eabilities.

Current or delerred tax s recognised in profit or less, ecepl when it relates to items thal are recognised in
olher comprehansive income or directly in equity, in which case the curent and defemed tax s also
recognised n other comprelwnsive income of dingclly in equily respectivaly.

Foreign cwrrencies

I prepanng the tmancal sktements of each individual group enfity, Iransactions in curencics olhws than the
funclional currency of that entity (foreign curmencies) are recorded at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the lansachons. Al the énd o the reporting perod, monclary dems denomenated o foreign
currencies are relranslated at the rates presailing at that date. Non-monetary dems that are measared in
lermes of hisloncal cost na foréign cunrency are nod relranslated.

Exchange differences arsing on the seltlement of monetary dems, and on the relranslation of monsetary ibems
ara recognised in prolil of loss in the pened in which they anse.

For the purposes of presenting these consolidaded financeal statements, the foeign curmencies denominated
assets and labilities of the Group are translated into the presentation currency of the Group {US$) using
exchange rales prevailng al the end ol each reporting pericd, Income and expense dems are Wranslated al
the exchange rales that spprodmate o those prevadling at the dates of the ransactions. Exchange dillerences
arsmg, i any, are recognised in other comprelensive income and accumolated in equity in the irasslation
resenee (altributed to non-conbrolling interest as apgropriste).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Caonfinued)

Foreign currencies {Continued}

In determining the exchange rate on initial ecogniticn of the relaled assef, expense of income on the
derecognilion of a non-monelany aesel of non-mondlary Babildy ielaling o an adwance consideration, the date
of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initialy recognises the non-monelary assel o
nod-moncky [Ebility arsing from the advance consikdemtion. | there @re multiple payments o receipls in
advance, the Group defermines the hamsaction date for each payment or receipd of the  advance
conssderation.

On the disposal of a lorelgn operation, all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation atiribatable to the owners of the Company aro reclassified to profit or loss

Government grants
Governmant grants are recognised where there i ressonable sssuamee that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the granis will be recelved,

Govermment grants are recogmsed m profit o loss on 8 systematic: bases over the perods in which e Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are ntended fo compensate. Specilically,
povernment granis whese primary condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or othenwise acquine
nodu-current assets ane recognesed as defermed revenue in the consalidated statement of financial position and
transtemed to profit or loss on a8 systematic and rational basis over the uselul lives of the relaled assels

Government grants that are receivabde as compensation for expences or losses already incumed or for the
purpose of giving immedate inancial support 16 the Group with no fulure relsled costs ame recognised in
profit o boss in the perkd in which they become recelwable.

Cash and cash equivalents

Fin the purpose of the consolidaled statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and sherl teom highly liquid investments that aré resdily converlible mbo known
amounts of cash, are subject 1o an insggnificant risk of changes in valee, and have a-short maturity o
penerally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafls which are repayable en demand and form
an integral part ol the Group's cash management

For the purpose of the consohdated statement of fnancial posibion, cash and cash equivalents comgn ise cash
on hand and at banks, including term deposits and assets similas in nature 1o cash, which are nol restricked
a5 o use
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits
For defined benefil retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefils is determined using the projected
unil credit method, with acluarial valeations being camied ool al the end of the repoling pediod.

Defined benelit cosls are categorised as follows:

- sevice cost {including current sesvice cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtagments.
and seltlements);

. net inferest expense or ncome; and
. remeasurement.

The Group presents the fisst two compenents of defined benefit costs In profit or loss. as employee benedit
expense. Curlailment gams and bsses are accounbed fof as past senice costs Pasl senice cost s
recognised i prodit o less o the perod of a plan amendment. Neb interest 15 calculated by applying the
discount rate al the beginning of the period to the netl defined benefit iabdlity or assel.

Remeasuremend, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling. (i
applicable) and the retum on plan assels (excluding inferest), i reflecled immediately in the consolidated
statement of linancial posiion with a charge of credd recognised in ather mlemnsim income in the
period in which they occur, Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive incoms s rellected
imimediately moretsined prohls and willl not be reclassilied o prodil or boss.

The refwemeent benedd obdigaton recopnised in the consolidated statement ol Tnancial position represents the
delict of surplus in the Group’s defined bencfit plans. Any surples resulling from this calculation is limited to
the presenl valie of any economic benefits available i the form of refunds and reductions in future
contribadions o the plans.

The employess of the Group in China and Hong Kong are members of siale-managed reliement berselil
schemes and members of the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPFT) respectively, the obligations-of the
Group under which are equivalent 1o those arsing in a delined contribution  1etirerment  benefit  plan.
Contribations 1o state-managed retireemend benefil schames and MPF are recognised as an expense when
employess have rendered servoes entitling them o the contributions

Payments bo defined contilbubion reliiement benefil plans are recogiised s an expense when emiployees
have rendered services enfiting them to the contribarions.

A ligbilty for & legmination benedfil &5 recopnised at the eailier of when the gicup entity can no longer
withdraw the offer of the lanmnation benefit and when it recognises any relafed restrucluring costs
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Caonfinued)

Put option over non-controlling interests

A put option held by NC1, whereby the hoelder of the pul oplion can require the Group to acouire the MNCI's
shareholding in the subsidary at a fulure date, the Gioup exwmines the nature of sich a pol option. The
Group assesses whether of not the MCI continues o have a present ownership inflerest in the shares subject
to the pat oplion, Present ownership interest can be evidenced by NCI continuing to have & right o the
receipl of dividends, or benefifing Trom incresses inonet assels while holding a voling enfillement 1o e
shares subject to the put option, I it 5 deamed thal the put opticn holders confinue to have a present
ownership interest, the Group applics the partal recognilion. of NG method and recognise the amound that
would have been recognised for the non-controlling interesl, mcluding its share of profit or losses, dividends
and other changes, as a Hability. The Group recognises a linancial liability in accordance with 1AS 32 being
the estimate of the tar valee of the consideration Bo acquire the MCL shares hat are subject to the pul opbion
and records this in “other reserve” in equity. Any changes in the fair value of the financial lEbility are
rellected a8 a movement in othed reserve

It the NCI pul option ks exercised, the same treatment i applied up 1o the date of exercise. The amount
recognised a5 the lnancial habdity at that date i cdmguished by e payment of the exercise jrke

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
The prepacation of the Group's financial statenents equires management o make judgements, esliinates and
assumptions that affect the repoled amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and  thehn
acormpanyeg disclosures, and the disclesure of contingent liabalities. Uncertainty aboul these assumplions
and estimates could result in oufcomes that could require & material adjustment o the camying amounts of
the assets of liabilities alfected in the future

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumplions concerning the future and othes key sources of estimation uncertadanty at the end of the
reporting pericd, that have a significant sk of causing a material adjustment 1o the carrying amounts of
assels amnd Rabilities within the next imancial year, are described befow.

Fair value measarement of live hogs included in biological assets

The Group engaged an indepandent qualified valuer to peform the v hog valuations at the end of each
repegting period, the fai vakses Jess costs (o sell are delermined based on the price of hogs in the actively
traded markel, reduced by the breeding costs requited to raise the hogs to be slaughlered and the margins
that would be requited by a mise and less costs 1o sell, with reference to the Etest budgels approved by
management. This determination involved the use of significand judgements and estimates. Il the achus
results differ o the onigind estmales made by management, such diferences from the onginal estimates will
impact the fail value change recognised in profit or loss. The carmng amount of live hogs was USE1 308
million as al 31 Decemnber 2022 (2021: USE1243 million) {see noda 17).
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Conftinued)
Estimation uncertainty (Conlinusd)
Inventories
Inventories are staled al the lower ol cosl or lhe desmed cosl lof agncullure produce harvested from
biological assels and net realisable valee. Met realsable value is the estimated sefling price in the adinary
course of busingss, kess the estimaled costs of production and selling exgpensas

The management of the Group persodically reviews inventornes for skoew-moving mventories, obsolescence o
declines. o markel value, This. review requires: them to estimate the nel realsable walue based upon
assumplions aboul futere demand and market conditions. 1 the estimate of net realsable value is bedow the
cosl ol invenlonies of the canying amount, the Group will record a write-down of inventories for the difference
between cost of camying ameunt and nel realisable value, which will resull in a coresponding increase in
cosl of sabes, The canying amount of mveniores was USE2.855 million as at 31 December 2022 (2021
US$2 625 million) {see note 22,

Valuation of the obligation in respect of defined benefit plans

In determining the oblipation in respect of defined. benel! plans, the Group has engaged an actuaial expent
1o periorm the actuarial waluation of plan assels and the present value of the defined benclll obligations, and
the key assumphbions used including discount rate, expected salary increases and morlalty rates. The
discount rale assumplbons aie delermined by relerence bo yiglds on high-quakly conporate  bonds and
government bonds yields of appropriate duration and currency at the end of the reporting pericd. The
expicled relurns on plan @ssets are determined on the histonical returns and assel allocations by considering
the fulure market and economéc conditions. The expected rate of salary incremse i referanced by the salary
scale projected by management and the mortality rsles are referenced by demographic market data.

During the year ended 31 December 2082, remeaswemenl gains after tax amouniing to US$102 milflion
(021 US4 mullion) were recognised divectly in oquaty in the period in which they occurmed. The Group's
obligation in respect of nel pension labiity as at 31 December 2022 amounted to USES70 million (2021
LIS3450. million) (see nole 33).

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

An anabysis of revenun is as follows:

2022

US55 million LIS% million

Packaged meats 14,559 13,808
Pork 11,787 11,969
(b 1,780 1.516

28,136 27,293

Crer 99% (A0Z1: over 99°%) of the Group's revenue was recognised at a poind in time.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Conlinued)
32l oul bebow 15 the amount of revenue ecognised from:

2022

LSS million

Amounts included in contract abilities at the beginnimg
of the year 523 B0

The remaining perloimance oblgations (unsatshed of partially oosatishied) as al 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2021 regarding the sale of meat and related products, sale of properlies and service income
arg aipecled o be recognised as revenue within one year,

Segment information

The Group determines ifs opesating segmenis based on the repords reviewed by the execulive directors of the
Company, who are also the chief operating decision-makers, that are used 1o make strategic decisions, The
Group's seporlable segments, which are also the operaling segments, are cassified based on their kcations
including Chima, U5 and Mexico, and Europe and the nature of operations as {i} packaged meats, (i} pork,
and {im) othars.

The dietadls of the Group's business activities are as Tollows:

{n Packaged meats —  megresents production, whotesale and retail sales of kow temperature and high
temperature meal products,

() Pk — mepresents slyughtering, wholesale and retail sales of fresh and frogen pork
and hog faming

(i} (thers — represents slaughtening and sales of poultry, sales of ancillary producis and
services such &5 provision of logelics services, manufactming of (Bvounng
ingredients and  nalural  casings, manufacture and sales of packaging
malerials, operating finance companies, property dewlopanent companies, a
chain of retail food stores, sales of biclogical phamaceutical materials,
trading of meal related products, and corporate expenses incumed by e
GG,

Each reportable segment derives s revenue (rom the sales of produects and provision of services based on
the location of opemations. They ate managed separately because each segment requires different production
and markeling strategies.

Segment results represent the profit eamed by each sepment before biobogical fair value adjestments without
allocation of other mocme nol altributed to the respective segments, other gains and losses, olher expenses,
finance costs and share of profits (losses) of associates and joind venlures, This is the measine repored to

the chiel operating decision-makers for the puposes ol resource allecalion and assessmenl of segment
el

Inter-segment evenue was charged al cost plus marging basis
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5. REVENUE AND SEEMENT INFORMATION (Corlinusd)
Segment information (Conlinued)
The tollwing is an analysis of the Group's revenue and resulis by reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Packaged

meals Park Others Tolal

WSS million WSS 'million WSS million USS million
China
Gross segment revenue 4,010 5,033 1,529 10,572
Less: Inter-segment revenue m @ 2 0.0
Rewvenue 4,008 4419 1,108 8536
Reportable segment profit a1 a4 38 1,040
U.5. and Mexico
Groes segment evenue 5.232 '|u.,393 15 !E.Taﬂ
Less: Inter-segment révenue (2) (3,963} = (3.965)
raa H2R0, S ik Bl
Reportabla segment profit (loss) 1,058 {43} {73 40
Europe
Gross segment revenue 1,338 1,420 T20 34789
Less: Inter-segment revenue {49) (472} {123) (B4}
i untlal BRSSP Lanie 591 ek
Regportable segment profit (boss) a7 {21} a7 113
Total
Gross segment revenue 14,611 16,846 2,324 33,781
Less: Inter-segment revenue 52) (5,0490 {544 {5,645)
Rewvenue 14,559 11,787 1,780 28,136
Reportable segment profit {hoes) 2,085 a0 (2 2,093
Met unablpcated inCome 260
Biclogical fan value adjustiments {54}
Finance costs {169}
Shage ol prodits ol assocales ]
share of kbases of joind venlures {Gh
Frofit bebore tax 2,132
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment information (Continued)

Foa the year ended 31 Doecembear 202
Packaped
eals Ptk Olhers Tostal

LISH |||;!'|--|| LSS million LSS million LIEE milllon

China

Gross segment revenuse 4216 6,123 1,360 11,6550
Less: Inler-segment revenue {787 {3063 {1.183)
Hewvene 4216 3,330 i 10516
Reporatde segment poalit {loss) i (53) a1 s

U5, and Mexico

Gross segment revenise 8515 9,785 &7 18,391
Less: Imler-segment revenue {3} {4, o) {4, A7)
Revenie a512 b 5EG a7 14,184
Reportablbe segomenl ool (loss) HE5 i {0 D)k
Evurape

Gross Segiment revenoe 1.124 1489 hal 2170
Less: Inler-segment revenoas 144} {441) (92} {a/7F)
Reveniie 1080 1048 A65 2593
fi‘|1|.)l.||l.-ll|f:' aemment pralit {loss) 108 {8 1¥3 117
Tatal

Gross segment revense 13855 17,401 2 (04 33260
Less: Inter-segment révenus {47} (5,432) (458} {5.96/1)
Hevenue 13,808 11.9:9 1.5616 27,233
Reportable segment prolil 1,895 3 L 1,566
Mel unallocaled expenses {A03)
Biological tair value adjstments 42
Finanoe costs {139)
Share of profits of associates 9
Share of prodits of joint ventures 25
Prodit before tax 1700y
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Confinued)

REVEMUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Conlinued)
Segment information (Conlinued)

Mo sepment assels and Habilies are disclosed as they are nol regularly provided fo the chiel opemating

decison- makens

Geographical information

Informalion aboul the Group's revenue presenled above i based on the geographical locations o operalion

Infoamuation aboul the Group’s non-cument assels, exchading lancial mstmements and delerred ta assels, s

presented below based on the geographical locations of aperation

2022

US$ million

MNon-current assels

China 3,241
U5, and Mexico 6,866
Europe 1.008

11,505

LIS$ million

LT
Fza
1,225

11,486

OTHER INCOME

2022

UsSS million

LS% rl;l| '|.- i1

Lo nrment subsewdy 47 %}
Bank interes! income 37 30
Ineorrse: an sales of raw malemnats 11 15
(Mhers 3z 24
127 133

WH GROUP LMIMED
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

7. OTHER GAINS AND (LOSSES)

2022 2021

UEL million LS million

Gain (lossd on non-qualified retirement plan assels {286} 18
Fair value EAIN on fancial asseds at @i value theough

profil or boss ] 24
Gamn (lossh on depasal of properly, plant and

equipment 17 ()
Impament loss on property, plant and equipmant {1} {4)
IrmpaErmient loss on right-of-use assels _ {1
Impairment loss on investment in a jeint ventore {24)
Met exchange gains (bsses) {12} 1
Met gain on disposabideamed disposal of nwesiment

in joint veniures 34 40
Gain on INSIEANGE ecovery T 24
Gain on disposal of assets of a subsidiary 34 414
Acoelerpld depiacaeon and amaoriesalion {97} (12
Gain upon modilication of defmed benelsl plans 34 - 165
Others {48} {20

278 131

8. FINANCE COSTS

2022

UsSE'millian LIS Sl o

IMledes] on Send unseciied nolaes {78) (B1)
Interest on bank and other loans (ESh (35)
Imeest on hease liabdaities {23y 15
Amortisation of fransaction costs {4y {5
Less; Amounts capialised in the cost of qualifying assets 1 1

(169} (1359}

106 WHGROUP LBMITED *
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Prodit belore tax has been atived ot atber charging (crediting)

2022

US% million LISE million

Auditor's remuneration

Audit services 5 E|

MNon-aisdil sermvaces 1 1
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 660 538
Deprecation of dght-of-use avsets 131 134}
Amaortisation of intangible assets incleded in administrative

CPENSES B 9
Amortisation of othel non-culient assets 2 2
Inventories provisions, nel, included in cost of sales G2 [:11
Reversal of impaiment losses on ade receivables, noet,

ncluded i administiative expenses {2) {103
Lease paymants nol included in the measurement of lease

liabilities 132 112
Research and development expenses 182 179
Stall costs (excluding dirgclons’ remuneration) 4,060 A.H43
Legal confingencies 20 353

The cost of sabes represendod the cost of invenlories and services provided recognised in prolit or loss duning
bath years.

'WH GROUP LMITED LI}
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

10. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
Direcloes’ and chiel executive’s remuneation lor the year, desclosed pursuant to the applicable Hules
Governing the Listing ol Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”} and the Hong
Kang Companses Ordinance, s as Tollows:

Baic
salaties and  Peformance  Shae-hased  Termination
Kame of dieche Feet  allowmncet o payment benefits

USEmillien  USFmillien  WUS¥Fmillien  US§millien  USSmillien
{Woke (1}

A} EMECUTIVE DIRECTORS

M. Wa — 1 = = ] £ ]
e — 1 — -~ == — 1
i . 1 —_ — _ = ]
— 2 4 = = e -}
— 1 e S == iy '
= L 4 — — = 18
£ ¥ e [
Wity e o it r N
B) HON-EXECUTINE QIRECTOR
Bir, N Shige = = - - - = —
iy emolumsnts wad (i 1o Bie non-ssdulive diveclal shown above Lor Bis service a8 dimstlor af the Comgary of i b
C) INDEFENDENT KON-EXECUTIVE
[MRECTORS
M Huacg g -, — = = -, o= =
Wi Lee Dormas o
T e - - o — - o
M ke {iv - - - - - - -

WHGROUP LBITED -
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

10. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

M. ‘Wan Long {P

B} NONEXECUTIVE DRECTOR

£} INDEPENDENT WOM-EXECUTIVE
DRECTORS

'WH GROUP LMITED L1k}
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

10. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Confinued)
The five highest paid mdividisals lor the year ended 31 December 20622 mcluded one director of the
Company (2021: twoe), details of whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the remaining four
(2021 three) Ron-dinector Righest pasd individuaks diuring the yeas were as lollows:

2022

USE'million

Ermplorpess

Basic salaries and allowances 3 3
Perlotmance banis 18 1}
Ratirerment Benefil scheme contributions 2 1
Tenmination beneit 7 =

31 14

The remaining non-director highest paid individuals were within the following bands-

Humber of employees

2022

HE$24, 000,001 (o HES24, 500, (0 = 1
HE$3S 500,000 to HEEA0, 000, 000 - 1
HE$42 GO0 001 1o HESA2, 500, 0000 1

HE b 000 00 ]
HE$45. 500,001 o HE$46, 000, 000 — 1
HE A0, 000,001 1o HE$E, 500, 000

HESAT 00,001 1o HK$AT, Sk, D00
HE$1 14,500,000 to HE$115, 000,000

— -

During the year, no emoluments were pakd by the Group 1o any of the directors of the Tive highest paid
individuals (including direclors and employess) a5 an inducement to join of upon joining the Group of as
compensation oo loss of office (2021 Nilk

There areé nd forfelled contribution thal may be vsed by the Group as Uhe employar o reduce the exisling
level of Contidufions,

110 WHGROUP LMITED *
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

TAXATION
2022
US55 million LIS% million

Chima income L {(241) {1964
LS. income tax (205) {45)
Ewope mcome taxes (23 {24)
Cdhes income taves —_ ="}
Withirolding tax {57} 323
Deferred taxation 444 (109

(482) {402)

Under the China law on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law™) and the Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the fax rale of the China subsidiaries is 25% excepl for the following:

iy

{ii}

(i}

{ivh

According to the Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law and the EIT exemptions regulation set ool
in’ the Cucular of the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration on Releasing the. Primady
Processing Ranpes of Agricultural Products Entilled 1o Preferential Policies on Enlerprise Income Tax
(Toal Implementation) (T Shun [2008] Moo 149) and the requirements of Article 86 of the
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the income from vanious China subsidianies of the Company
engaging in primagy processing for agricudbual prodects B exempled from EIT

Pursuant o the refated regulations o iespect of the Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the ncome
i vanows China subsidiges of the Company engaging in propects of animal-husbandry and  poalbry
feeding was entitied 1o exemption from EIT during both years

Pursuant to the related repulations in respect of the Molios of Exdension of Income Tax Policy lor Enterpaise
Invoboed - in Western  Ching  Development issued by the Mmistry of Fance, the State Tawabion
Administration and ihe MNational Developmenl and Reform Commession (Notice of the Ministry o
Fimance, the Stale Taation Administration and the National Development and Refoom Commission
{20200 MNec23), various China subsidiaries of the Company were entiled 1o a preferential incons bax
rate of 15% during both years,

According o the Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law and the Circular of State Administration of
Taxation on Issues Conceming Implementation of Preferential Income Tax Enjoyed by
High-and-new-tech Enterprises (Guo Shul Han [2009] No, 203), high-and-new-lech enterprises are
levied enlesprise mcome B al 15%. Vaious China subsidiaies of the Company are classilied as
high-and-new-lech enterprises and were entitled 1o enjoy a preferental income. tax ate of 15% during
both years.

According to Articles 3 and 27 of the EIT Law and Article 91 of its Implementation Requlation, dividends
distribubed to foreign Bvestors out of the prolils generated by China subsidiaries are subject 1o EIT at 109 o
a reduced tax rate i & tax teaty or arangement applies. Undes the relevant lax amangement, the
withhofding tax rale on dividend distribulion to the qualifving Hong Kong resident companies is 5% Deferred
tax Nabilities on the undistributed profits earmed by the China subsidianes have been accrued at the fax rale
of 5% lor the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 Decémbar 2021,

Leessi than LSRR million

'WH GROUP LMITED
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

11. TAXATION (Continued)
The LLS, lederal tax rate 5-21% for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021

Fou the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's businesses in Ewrope wene: subject o the local
corpoiale income taxes at rates anging lrom 9% to 21% (2021 9% to 21%)

Dahey overseas taxalion @ calculated at the rates prevaling in the respective junsdictions

The taxalion charge for both years |s reconciled to the profit before tax as follows:

2022
UES millian

Prodil bedore tax 2,132 1,706
Tax at the applicable rates (Mote) (4821 (23.1) (Ad) (23.8)
Tax aflect of share of prodits {losses) al

associates and jolnt venlures 3 i ! 4
Taw effect of income that is nol taxatds in

determiming cunent year taxabde profit ] 0.2 4 02

Tax efect of expenses thal ane ol
deduclible in determining current year

laabile poaoli [R5 2.2} (320 {1.9)
Tax eflect ol tax lesses nol recognised (5% 0.2 [§at)] {1.7)
Lilsation of kax losses previoushy nod

recognised —_ —_— 1 0l
Elect o lax exemplions and prelereniesl

tax rates granted o China subsicianes 52 24 22 13

Ellect ol tax exemptions and preferential
L2 rates granded o LS. and Eurogs

subsediaries 18 0.8 13 0.8
Wilhholding tax on undistributed eamings

ol subrsidisnies (491 2.3} (320 {1.59)
Recognition of defened tax arising from

lae losses previously nob recognised — = 4 (2
Chhproviston i prior years = — 21 1.2
Tax effect of tax lsses recogmsed on

intra-group fransaclions iz 1.5_ 23 1.4

Tax charge and effective tax rate o
the yesr (482} (22.8) (402} {23.6)

Mobe: A& the Boups revenue = penedbed | deveial juisdclions, The difecions of the Dompasy codsided thel il 5 mofe medsmgiul 16

AgEIeTale ihe SEDEEIE MeCOnCibriced pespured Ly e Jomeshc rabe i eaoh indiiedual juisced

[Deetaiks of recognised and unprovided deferred taation ae sat out in note 31

e LSS milken

WHGROUP LMUITED -
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

12. DIVIDENDS

2022 202

US S million LiSE million

Davidend recognised as distnbution during the year:
021 hinal divedend of HK14.0 cents per share

(2020: HK12.5 cenis) 29 237

A2 imdenm dwvidend of HES cents par share
(Z021: HES cents) B2 95
311 332

The final dividend of HK25 cends per share in respect ol the year ended 31 December M22 has been
proposed by the directors and is subject o approval at the foerthcoming annual general meeting

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and dilvted eamings per share atlribulable o oaners of the Company is based
on the Tollowing data

2022

US$ million LIS$ million

Earmings.
Pralit 1or the year atiributable 1o owners of the Company Tor the

purpese of baske and diubed eamings per share 1.370 1,068

million million

Humber of shares
Welghled average number of oichnary shares 108 Wive Pl pose ol

basic earnings per share 12,830 14,142
Effect of chlufive polentsd ordinegy shares: shane options (Mole) - 4
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose ol

dilded earnings per share 12,830 14,145

LT TED wirk e dame gs e BaSio sarnings par Ahare 34 ihe Group had

'WH GROUP LMITED [RE}
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant,
machinery

Freehaold Mol and  Comstiuciion
(ETT] Eatldingd ielicled el p e I paogiedd

1 danusty F0 618 3,756 181 5,124 720 2077
e pesiceh oy i5 (170 i3 R (428 (279
Additions - 1 14 “ 1,207 1.266
- - - 4 - - - 4
et 2 547 1 s82 {1,118 .
N {53} (709 - () = (13n
5P ) (35} L] oz 2) (151) 4
568 340 in 5451 765 10,584

114 WHGROUR LBMITED *
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT {Conlinuead)

Plani,

misching ry

Frechald sl Camvirpc@ion
Fand Biildifg equipineal i pregrest

Depreciation and impairmest:

= 108 (2] 2.528 = 1610
— a4} () (83} — {1204
vt the yea — 168% }) 78 — =]
1] = 1 - -— - 1

1] i b
Mode 240a]) — {18} = 2] — (1%}
posa il = {5} 6) (61} = (76}
: - s 1 e ~ 4w

Carrying valwes:

Al 31 Decemps 2 SEE 2,500 o2 2,50 763 850

Cerlain of the Group’s bulldings of USEL 280 milion as at 31 December 2022 (3021: US$F47 milllon) are
erected on land held i China whale the rest are erected on freehold land situated in the LS. and Europe

As atl 31 December 2022, the application for oblaining the ownership cetlificales of buildings in China with
Bl ﬂfy:"ll'?'_ﬂh_'! carrying waliee of ﬁm.-lllxlllﬂtel:,r UE{??“_M midlion (2021 l]ﬂl‘:i'.'r" milBon ) was sHI in progiess

Property, plant and equipment with a carying amount of approcimately USED million (2021: US4 million)
have been 1|.|||'( |I|'||.|.'=.Iir1‘.1'| and ecognsed in profil o loss Tt year ended 3] December D022

'WH GROUP LMMTED 15
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

15. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
Propestees under development expected o be oomplabed

Within the normal operating. cycle included under current assels

2021

LIS % il leon

2022

US%' million

117 (EH]

Properties under development expected to be completed within the normal operating cycle and recovered,

Willsin ofe yvisw
After one year

2022 Gl |
USS'million LSS millson
38 ¥t

1] 121

17 1 5

16. LEASES
(a) Right-of-use assels

The carying amounts of the Group’s nght-of-use assets and the movements during the year are as

Talkriis

Fland,
machinery
anid

Buildings equipment

Contiact
farms

Motor
vehicles

nd 1 January 228 28 £l 43 123 T
trancy realignmen — {25} (1] - - (28)
Additicn 127 =] 21 21 20 224
oSl {45) (] (e} (18) (43} 1an
minated (19) (3} 1} {5) (1} (28)

5 202 7% 30 41 101 749

WHGROUP LBITED -
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

16. LEASES {Continued)

b}

{c]

{d)

Lease liabilities

The camying amound of lease labilities and the movements during the year are as follows:

2038

WSS million LSS ml lson

As at 1 January 487 456
MNew loases 213 146
Interest expenses 3 18
Payminls {141) (142}
Terminated {43) 8
Currency realignment {5 (4}

As at 31 December 534 i

Analysed for reporling puarposes a5
Cairrant labikiles a5 (R LK)
Mom-cument liabiities 449 AT

534 487

The maturity anatysis of lease liabilties is disclosed in note 37 to the consdlidated financial statements.

The Gioup has eaily adopted the amendment to IFRS 16 and applied the practical expedient to all
eligibbe renl concessions ganted by the lessors for leases of certain property, plant and equipment

during the year

The ameounts recognised in profil o loss in melation o leases e as. follows:

2022 2021

Us$ million LIS g millron

Inferest on bease lublibes
Daesprecialion of righl-of -use assels
Expenses relating o shal-term leases

Varsable kease payments not included m the measuremenl o

lease liabililies
Impairment of right-of-use assets

3 19
131 130
105 95

2 17

— 1
286 262

Extension and termination options

The Group has keases with remaining lease terms ranging from more than [ year to 33 years, The
|zAs e I‘.:III"I!HiI'III'IR extansion and bermination oplions ang rm-mageu locally and vary in terms. The LETLT]]
has included exdension o lermenalion opbions o the messurement of The lease obligations when i s

regsonably certan o exercise the options

212/302
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

16. LEASES (Continued)
(e} Variable lease payments
The Group has leases confaining variable lease payment lems nol depending on an index or rate for
hog raiseng Boilties, buldings, motor vehickes, machinery and equipment. Management 1S responsible
for megatiating the lease terms and each term may vary depending on the undelying asset and
eportable segmenl. Varable lesse payment lerms are based on a mulliple of factors including the
averall usage of the underlying assel, mainlenance and repair serdoes, properly axes and swance,

The Group expects the overall fimancial impact fof lulure years lo be conseslent with the arable lease
payments thal were mcumed during the year ended 31 Decembar H22

(1) The total cash oanlflow for leases and Tuture cash olflows relating to leases thel have not yel commenced
are disclosed in nodes 35 and 37, respectively, 1o the consolidated financial statemenis.

17. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS
The biclogecal assels of the Group are live hogs and poultry al vanious stages ol development, includng
suckling hogs, nursery hogs and finishing hogs and brodlers which are classifed as current assets. Bhodogical
assels also inclide breeding stock {(hogs and poultry), which are used to produce future live hogs and
broilers, are classified as non-cunent assels of the Group, The quandilies of live hogs, beoilers and brecding
stock owned by the Group 8t the end of each reporting period are as follows

2022

Head 'million Head ‘million

Live hogs
suckling 2 2
LIPSy 2 2
- fimishing | & 9
12 13
Breedng stock (hogs) 1 1
13 14
Broiles 17 11
Broedemg stock (poultey) 2 2
19 13

Hogs

In general, once a sow is inseménated, it will pestate for a period of 112 10 115 days. New born hogs ane
classified as “suckling”. The suckling hogs will stay with their mother for three lo four weeks at which time
they will be weaned, Once the suckling hogs ae weaned, al approximately | bo 8 kilograms, they are
transfened to the “nurseny’,

118 WHGROUP LMITED ©
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

17. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Continued)
Hogs {Conlimued)
The nursery facilities are desgned 1o mee the needs ol newly weaned pigs. They are fed with a series o
specially formutiled dicls o meel thew changing nutilionsl necds. The pigs will sty m the nursesy lof
approdimately & weeks where they will grow to approximalely 7 to 45 kilegrams and then be transfemed o
the “finkshing” am.

Finishing hogs typically stay im this phase for 12 o 19 weeks, During that time, they will grow o
approdimestely 23 1o 132 kilograms and be considercd as a e hog with market value. Once the hog
reaches (he ideal weight, they are loaded onto specially designed trucks lor ransport to the processing
facifity.

Poultry
In general, once a pullel lBys eges, the egas Wil be senl to the lelchery and it will ke approzimately 21
days {0 be hatched, The halched chicks are then sent to ihe broder faom

The chicks ane fed with & segies of speckally fomulated deets to meet thesr nutrition needs. The chicks will
stay i the broiler farm for approsimately 38 to 42 days whede they will grow 1o approximately 2 kilograms
and then be considered as a broiler with market value

Once the brodler reaches the markel weight, they ame aded onlo specially designed bucks for franspoil 1o
he processing Tacility.

The Group s cxposed 1o a nuenbes of risks related to its biological assels. The Group is ecgposed (o the
following operating risks:

{i}  Regulatory and environmental risks
The Group is subject bo laws and regulalions in the location m which it operales breeding of hogs and
poultry. The Group has established environmental polickes and procedures aiming 8l complying with
local environmental and olber bws. Managemen! performs. regulyr reviews 1o identify environmental
risks and 1o ensuare that the systems in place are adequate 1o manage these gisks.

{ii} Climafe, disease and other natural risks
The Group's bidogical assels are exposed 1o the risk of damage lrom climalic changes, dseases and

other natual forces. The Group has exlensive processes in place aiming 8l monitoring and milegating
those risks, inchiding regular inspections, disease controls and nswance,

'WH GROUP LMITED 1na
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

17. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Conlinued)
Carrying value of the Group's hiological assets

Live aps Breeding dleeh kgl BemilEis Beeriding nleek (pattey)

032 Fies) poivrs ImE

[1=5 TSP £ 129 H T i U S mallian i n U milfies

wTYE i o | ey 1242 2 16 1 n T 143
mdgent (1] i 1] 2 ] . 111 1 L] !
B e L] 173 44 e b 22 (i At
A '
it = = = — =
x L b a0
(13} A (43 7 W = i 1 (Fe ]
forbe 2
peiird o it AR AR L] [E5] L H] 21 T 3 0911 &,
(o T i _!I'-'-'I‘ IR Ey |i.'l_:. 43 —_ i .u” ] I"ii? el
g i o
| December 1,508 (e L] 181 ] . ] 1,540

Analysed for reporing purposes as;

2022 g |

USS million LIS S il o

Current assels 1,343 1,263
Mon-curient assels am (15,
1,544 1,431

Fair value measurement — Level 3

2022 bied |

UES ' million LR il lon

Biredogical asseds

Live hogs 1,208 1,243
Bresding siock {hagsh 193 1461
Broilers s 20
Breeding stock -!p-f,'t_lllw:- _3_ i )
1,544 1,431

o L1 )
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

17. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Confinued)
Fair value measurement — Lavel 3 (Conlinued)
The fair values of breeding stock (hogs and pouliry) are determined based on the average of (ke historical
sellmge prece of hog and poulliy of senils breed aind genetic meil ess costs o sell (Level 3). The estimated
fair valwe will significanily increase when there & a slight increase in the average historical sefling price, and
vich versa

The tar values of live hogs and brolbess are mamly determined based on the price of hogs and broders in the
aclively traded maekel, subdracting the brecding costs required lo rase the live hogs and brodlers 1o be
slaughterad and the margims that would be required by a raiser and less costs fo sell {Lewvel 3). The
estimaled T2 value will increase when there is an increase in the madked price of hogs and broiless or
decrease in (he breeding cost requited bo raise the bve hogs and beoilers, and vice vessa

Changes in fair value less costs o sell ol bological assets include changes in the Tai value of the hogs and
poultry at the end of both years. The Group's Dological assets were valued by the independent quatified
valoer, Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limiled (“JLL") situated al 7/F, One Taikoo
Place, 979 King's Aoad, Hong Kong

Sel forth below are the key assumplions and inputs adopled in the valuation process of biclogical assets

US5 million LIS$ million

China
Bresding slock (hogs)
Per head markel price’ 2,504 2582

Suckling hogs
Per head costs 484 193

Fnishing hogs

Per head market pnce 1,268 g
Per head weekly average brocding costs required fo mise o
finishing: hogs™ 109 128

Breeding stock (poultry)

Per b rsarket |:|r|-.’:;:"‘ 25 =5
Broilers

Per head markel price™ 16 16

Per head average breeding costs required 1o rasse 1o broiles™ 23 22

'WH GROUP LMITED (il
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

17. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Conlinued)
Fair value measurement — Level 3 (Confimued)

U5, and Mexico
Breadmng stock — Sow (hogs)
Pt head mienkel poce™ 184

Breedng stock Bioar (hogs}
Per head matket plu\.f:! 62

Suckling hogs
Fead head aost ag

| |r|:|'.h||'|]:: higs

Per head market price 198
Per head weokly average beeeding costs péquired [0 rase to
fimishing hogs™ 4.3

115

2

Europe
Bresdmp stock S0 (hogs)

Per head matket price’™ 1M 135
Breedmg stock Boar (hogs)

Per head menket poice™ 103 a7
Suckling hogs

Per head cost 3 30
Finishing hogs

Ped head markel pooe® 206 143

Per head weekly average breeding costs required to raise to

fimishing hogs" 3.6 20
WHGROUP LMITED -~
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

17. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS {Confinued)
Fair value measurement — Level 3 (Conlinued)

Hefter

s of breading

Costs of suckding hogs

3 Warkel |
hogss

18, GOODWILL

1= ab e oo

spanding Sock valusion date
Ppune. Ay

i Fognbioliers (which am finshing hogubrodsm Shat aco. cid
d useng thei mares] prce. at th
% wked N 1Be valuabon afin Ene wilh the sSRud

B3] K

2022 2021

Cast:
Al 1 January
Aoquisiion of subsiddianes (Note 34)
Disposal of assets of a subsidiary (Mote 34)
Currency realignmsant

At 31 December

Accumulated impairment losses:
A1 January and 31 Decembser

Carrying value:
A 31 December

Uss million LS million

2,070 2008
— T8
{47}
{31 {16]
1.9'52". 20
1,802 2070

Impairment testing on goodwill

Based on the Group's business units, poodwill has been allocated for impainment testing purposes 19 the

folloeing CGLS:
. Pork

. Packaged meats

218/302
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

18. GOODWILL (Continued)
Impairment testing on goodwill (Continued)
The camying amount of goodwill allocated to the CGUs s as follows:

2022

USS'million LIS 3ol

Allocated o

Pork China a8 L
Packaged meats — China 138 150
Paok LS and Mexico 112 115
Packaged meats s 1,489 1,536
Pork and packaged meals Eugaogme 2 217

1,892 2070

An impairment review of These CGUs s underlaken annually or when évenls or circunstances indicate that
the carmmying amounts o LS ey nod e recoverabde, The recoverable amounts of these CGLS e Dien
determined by the value in use method using cash flow profections performed by the management tor both
years ended 31 December 2002 and 31 December 2021

For the purpose ol impairment testing, the Group prepates cash flow projections and the recoverable
amounts of hese CGLEs are calcubMed by wsing pee-tax cash flow progections based on a 3.yeanD-pea
financial budget approved by management and extrapolalion of cash flows beyond the F-yearS-year budget
peeniodd

Fey assumplions used in the cash flow  projections of pork in China'the US amnd Mesico covering a
J-yeanBeyean budgel pediod and exrapolated cash (lows beyond the budgel pencd are a5 Tollws:

0.5, and Mexico

2022
%

Revenue growth rate {MNote 1) 14.4=28.3 {13553 {12.3=10.4 20
Long-tenm growth rate {MNote i) 2 2 2-3 2
Discount rate (Mole bi) 12 14 T=10 B

124  WHGROUP LMITED °
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

GOODWILL (Confimued)

Impairment testing on goodwill (Continued)

Key assumptions used in the cash flow projections of packaged meals in Chinafthe LS. covering a
A-yeanyear budgel persod and edrapolated cash llows beyond the budgel penod e as Tollows:

China

2022

Rewvenue growlh mate (Mole i) 8.7-138 G0-202 0 2.1
Long-term grosth rate (Mode i) 2 2 2 2
Discount mbe {MNote i) 12 14 7 G

Ky assumplions uséd o the cish (ow projections of pork and packaged meals i Europe covenng & S-year
budget pericd and extrapolated cash fows beyond the budget period are as Tollows:

LI5S million

Rewvenue growih rate (Node i} a0 %5
Lang-term growth sate (Mole i) 4 4
[Mecount mmte (MNote i B G
i) vl B 4 B DAl pardd with rab 0 Iha Pt D for Mance I
Wk o [ o o Eriasid the * ol Tate BS Iha riall panEuchioh DlUtSesds ih whigh o il
Thve (Ecoumt rabe whed & e D% BRCoUA T30 Jppkpd 10 B8 Cash Tiw [HONCIONS Whith efiects specie risks (elnng 10 1he

Mo impaimeent loss is recognised at the end of bath years based on the impaimment assessmant performead
Managemenl befieves thal any reasonably possible change inoany of these assumplions would nol cause the
aggregate canying amount of the CGLS to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the CGlLs,

'WH GROUP LMITED 125

220/302



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

19. INTANGIELE ASSETS

Ruphis med
Trademarks L [ peimils

St
AE T 1.5 r B ar i i
3 3 i
31 Decenber 001 and
Lanesiy S02] 1694 5 1 -1} 40 L] 1833
¥ Foakgniment 33} =4 = — == = (ko))
R i - - - - - 2
T 00 1.EE] - 1 -1} 40 k] 1,802
Astistion o |BpEIBER
o Fiegt S o ' ' .
il g t [
-
13 - 1 41 17 2 T8
— —_ —r -— r —
L i o h 2 = = 5 2 = B
[SE Chiscopm b 15 - 1 48 1] 2 BS
Carping weues:
At 3E Decamber 2002 1,848 § = 15 Fdl 4 Ln?
AL EE Decsmber 2021 1631 § 75T

Customer relations, contract farm relations and nghls and permits are amortised over their estimaled useful
lives ol 5 to 25 years

Trademarks and distribulion nebwork acquired in the business combinations are identiied and 1ecognised as
mlangiike assets wlh imdelinte aselul lives amnd cameed 8l histoncal cost vwilhout amodisstion fof the Bl by
TEASTS:

they are capable of being renewed indefinitely at insignificant cost; and

there B no foreseeable el 1o the perod over whech the assel 15 expected o genesate nel cash (bows,
basid on an analysis ol all ol the relevant laclors.

Livss then LESEE milkon
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221/302



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment testing on intangible assets
Based on the Group™s business units, bademarks and distribulion network have been allocated  for
impainment leshing purposes 1o the lollowang CGLIs-
- Pork
. Packaged meats

Thi carying amaunts of rademarks and disinbulion network were allocated 1o CGls ag follows:

2022

US55 million

Allocated o

Park Chima i 52
Packaged meals China 284 08
Pork — LLE. and Mexico 235 235
Packaged meats s a1 981
Pork and packaged meats — Europe 105 114

1,653 1,686

An impairment review ol these CGUSs s undertaken anneally or when events or cilcumstances indecate that
the camying amounts of CGUs may nol be recoverabla, The recovaerable amounts of these CGUs have been
determined Ir:,l the value i ise method sng cash llow piojections by management 1oF the years anded
31 Docember 2022 and 31 December 2021

For the purpose ol impaimment lesting, the Group prepares cash flow progections based on a 3-yearS-year
fimancial budgets approved by management and extrapolation of cash flows beyond the F-year/S-year budgel
Jreriod

Ky assumphbons wsed i the cash llow projechons of ademarks and detributon network of pork coverng a
I-yearD-year budget peried and estrapolated cash llows beyond the budget period are as lollows:

China U5, and Mexico

2022

a

Revenue growih tate {(Note [} 14.4-28.3 {01553 2.0 2.0
Long-term growth rate (Mobe i) 2 2 2 2
Dascount mbe (Mot §il)d 15 17 7 o

'WH GROUP LMITED [k
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment testing on intangible assets (Confinued)
Koy assumptions wsed inothe cash flow projections of rademarks and distribution network of packaged meals
covermg & J-yeanDoyear budgel perod and exdrapolated cash flow beyond e budgel penod are as Tollows

China

2022
%

Revenue growth rate {Mobe 1) 8.7-1318 G.0-20.2 0.0-3.0 21
Long-term growth rate {Mobe i) 2 2 2 b
Discount rabe {Mole §i) 15 17 T G

Ky assumplions used i lhe cash ow projections of tademarks and distribulion network of pork and
packaged meals in Eurogse covering a Seyear budgel period and extiapolated cash flow beyond the budget
period are as follows:

Revenue growth rate {MNate 1 D035 a5

Long-term growth rate {Note i) 3 4

Discount rate {Mole #i) 8 &
Firas,

| d Ihe revenue piowth rake over @ -JysanSear bedget perid wilh refersnce 10 e pasl perioimance and it
b Ceseloermng
wpted dots nol axcoed the long-term growth imie for e mesd prodecton business in whch @ cperales
distount ral appied to the cash fow profections which sflsch specific nsia relating I the

The Group has not recognised any impasment oss in respect of rademerks and distibulion network Tor e
yvear ended 31 December 2002 (2021 Nil) based on the mpairment assessment performed, Managerment
befieves thatl any reasonably possible change inany of these assumplions would nol cawse the ageregate
carmying amount of the ademarks and distribubion network o excesd the aggregate recovesable amount ol
these assels,

128  WHGROUP LMITED ©
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

INTERESTS IM ASSOCIATES

2022

US S million LiSE million

Share of net assets 126 [

All the Group's associates are nol consklered as individually matesal as at 31 December 2022 amd
31 December 2021, The apgregate amounts of fs shane of these associates are el out in the consolidated
Tiainicial statemients,

Agpregate information of associates that are not individually material is set out below

2022 i |

US§ millson LSS millio

The Group's share of prodils and total comprehensve indome for

the year 8 G

Dividends received durimg the year & 1

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

LSS million LISt ||;|.I5|.--

Share of net assets 128 191

All the Group's joinl venlwes e nol considered as individually materal as at 31 December 2022 and
31 Decamber 2021, The Hgmrepate amounts ol #s share of Hhese poant veplures are sel oul im the
consolidated financial statements.

Fl'{q.:hwt{e inlormation o jeind venlures thad are nof ||k!|w||||:|:,1ll:,r maleral B sel oul belokw

2022 2021

USS million LSS million

The Group's share of profits {losses) and lotal comprobensive

incomwe {expense] lor the year {4) 25
Davidends meceived durimg e yesn = 5
'WH GROUP LMTED
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

22. INVENTORIES

UES million

2022 021

LISl lson

Raw materials
Waork in progress
Finished poods

1,286 1,222

152 (IF 13
1,417 1,258
2,855 2025

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

USS million

Trade ecenables

lmpsasr et

Bills receiable

2022
Vs mallon
1,080 1,070
{113 {14}
'I,DTQ 1,055
] 2
1,087 1,063

The general credil term allowed by the Group o its customers is within 30 days In China operations while
the credit terms vary depending on the sabes clannel and cwstormers for the WS and other countries
operations The {olbowing 15 an AgINg analysia ol the trade and bills recevables el of loss  aliewance
presented based on the dates of delivery of goods which approdimated the respective dates on which

PEVENILIE WOS Tecognised

UsE millian

Current (o 30 days
31 o 90 days
gl o 180 days
COwer 180 days

2022 2021
LSS mllson

089 912
96 142

2 9

— ]
1,087 1,064

Before accepling any new customers, the Group pses pasl experience [0 assess the potential customers”

credd qualily and defines credst imits Bor the cuslomers. Limits alinbuled 1o customers are foviewed

regLkanty,

4 then USE] milken
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continused)

In determminmg the recoverability of the lrade receivables, the Group monfors the chamge m the credit quakity
of the bade receivables since the credil was granted and up to the reporting date. The directors of the
Company consikdered that the concentrabion ol credit nsk is lmited doc 1o a bege and uniglaled custormer
base of the Group

Mo mterest B charged on biade recelvables, Loss allowances are wede based on the estimated ivecoverable
amemits from the sales of goeods by reference o past delaull experience and objeclive evidences of
impainmint determined by the difference betwesn the camrying amount and the present alue of the estimale
future cash lbows discounted at the orginal effective interest rate

Az oat 31 December 2022, tawde recehables of USEE74 million (2021 USH632 million) were phedged as
seurity for cefain credit facilities of the Group (Nole 40),

Movement in boss allwance for impairment of brade receivables;

At 1 January {14} {24)

Rewersal of impaiment losses, ned 2 1

Currency realignment 1 ®

At 31 Decermbir (1) {14}
Impairment

Animpairment anahyas 5 performed @l each repoting date using a provision maltic to measure expected
credil bosses. The provision mtes are based on days past due for groupings of various cusiomer segments
with similar loss patterns (e, by goographical region, product bype, cuslomer lype and tating, and coverage
by Betters of credd o ofher lorms of credd mswance). The calcubalion reflects e probabality-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and suppottable mformation that i available at the
reporling date aboul past evenls, cumenl conditions and Torecasts of fulure dconomic conditions. Genesally,
trade receivables are wiitten off § past due for more than one yesr and are not subject 1o enforcement
aclivily.

Le=s tman UPSEL milon

'WH GROUP LMITED
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES {Conlinuead)
Impairment (Continued)
Sel oul below ks the information about the credit sk exposure on the Groups bade receivables using a
provision i

Al 31 December 2022

Current to More tham
80 days 21-180 days 180 days
past due past doe past due
Expected bss rate 0.015% 87.88% B4 B3% 0.98%
Gross carymg amount
(USE miltion} 1,078 B a 1,080
Loss allmwance provision
{USE million} = 1] 5 11

Al 31 December 2021

Expected boss rate 0.015% 44.13% 58.35% 1.34%
Gross CRrymg Amant
S million} 1,047 I& 7 1,07
Laowss alloamde praveion
(USSR million) ' [ i 14
WHGROUP LBITED
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

24. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

2022

USS million

Prepayments &9 &9
et spvestments at amorlised cost T82 130
Loans. receivables R A
Dregrossits paed bo supplees 59 =
Recevables from financial instilutions 14
Degeosits. placed with fmancial institution an 42
Derivative financeal insliuments (Mole 26) T4 gl
Value-added tax tecoverable 123 178
Assel held Tor sale (MNote a) 118
Chers 218 103
1.058 735

Analysed lor reporling purposes as:

Currept assels a8 bl
Non-currenl assets _'J'l} &7
1,058 735

{ the Burvesd and

ceising facikly in ¥emon,
b
i ihe is

2 o abiey and L3 ¥
tpenses snd othor payables® ae 31- 31 Decerdss 2000

i A QpOER] CRITEES, SUCH 3% BOODHOrangd dhaphed

i wihd PeCOfnied in pooll o SR duitng e R

RN CIMEc el W

wnied 31 Deternier

'WH GROUP LMITED 133
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LDSS

2022 21

UES'million LIS il lson

Unlisted investments:

Femancial products 149 232
Equity investmenis 11 12
180 244

Analysed (of iepolting puiposes as

Cumrent assets 149 232
Mon-current assels L 12
1680 244

The: mwestments Classified as curren? @l 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 are mainly weaiih
management products ssued by banks and fimanceal institutlons in China. They were mandalonlly classilied as
linancial assels al fair walue through profil or loss as their contractual cash flows are nol sobely payments ol
principesl and inferes) Th  poy-curraant Sqully Invesiments were measorsd o FYPL as the Group hag nat
elected lo recognise the lair value gain or loss through other comprebensive Income,

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Derivalives under hedge accounting

2022

Assels Liabilities fssels Liaatulities
UsS million Us% ' million LIS milbon LSSl lson

Far walue Ilc'-.lgi_;-::{.
Grain contracts =2 — 3
Livestock conbiacts =3 = 1
Cash flow hedpges
Foreign currency lorward

coplracts 1 [ 1
Graan contracts 12 4 28 5
Emsigy contiacts 3 a
Livesiack conliacts B — = S

22 18 ¥ 8
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Conlinued)
Derivatives under hedge accounting (Conlinued)
Fair value hedges
The Group entered mbo demvative instruments (primarily forward conlracts) o minimase (s exdposans to B
value changes of its commitments o buy grains and livestock. The directors of the Company consider thal
thoese derivalive struments aie highly  elfective  bedging  instrumends. Major terms ol the  dedivalive
insttuments are sel oul bedow

Al 31 December 2022

Change in Lt value
wred lor measuring
Nolions| veleme bedge ineflectivent sy

Der ative: insiruments Minimmm Maximum  Melsic Matuarity for the year

UEE million

{19)
155,000 1,580,000  Bushels Up la lanuary 2024
( 2530000 15510000  Bushels Up 1o Janusry 2024
L ean hog 12000000 48640000  Poumds Up lo Becember 2023 {5}

Al 31 December 2021

The hedge ineHectiveness can anise from;
. changes to the foecasied amowunts of cash flows of hedged iterns and hedging instruments
- differences i e iming of cash kows ol the forecasted transachons and the hedging instruments

The commodities contracts &5 at 31 December 2027 and 31 December 2021 are recorded in “Prepayments,
olher receivables and olther assets” and “Accued expenses and other payables” in the consolidated
statement of financial pesition

'WH GROUP LMITED 135
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Derivatives under hedge accounting (Confinued)
Cash fMow hedges
Al 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the Group entered into denvalive instruments, such as
fulures, swaps, oplion conlracts and foseign exchange forward contracts . desiggnated a5 highly effective
hedging instruments in order 1o manage the Group's exposuie 1o the vadability in expectéd future cash Tlows
atribedabde to commodity price risk associaled with the ferecasted sabe of Bve hogs, pork, and the forecasted
purchase of cotn and soybean meal as well a5 forelan currency 1k sssociated with Nuctuating forein
currency rates. The beoms of the denvative insbruments have been negotialed o malch the terms of the
respectve despnated hedged tems Ths m;pim e ol these conlracts are as follows

Al 31 December 2022

Chaage in lair value
wied for mesiwing
Netional vedume bhedge ineffectivessss

Dervalive instuments Minimum Maximum Malarity fov e pear
5E millhaa

1,760,000  G48.500000  Pomds Up ta Decesber 2023 )
k|
14,840,000 63880000  Busheli Up s lanusry 2024
{atur - 13200000  Brifiah themial  Up b Decesber 2026 (5
unils
noturency Bward  USEEIABAS5EY  USSESITO0NS  Wariem Up b lamury 2023 -
CUITERGies

Al 31 December 2021
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Conlinued)
Derivatives under hedge accownting (Conlinued)
Cash Now hedges (Continued)
The hedge ineleciveness can anse from
. changes ko the foecasled amounts of cash flows of hedped items and hedging instruments

. differences in the tming of cash flows of the loecasted transachions and the hedging insttuments

Thi et of major hedped tems on the consolidated linancial stytemens 15 as olbows:

Amaunt
fain (loss} reclassified from Change in fair

recopaised n other Hedge Beferred net value used for
other  comprehensive  ineffectiveness pain {loa5) measwing hedge
compieherdive  income to profi recognised in  included In other Inefleciiveness
Wcome or lnis predi| or loss TEsErvE for the yaar

&g ai 31 December 2022

franzactio z7) 1300 =1 (3] 27y

The commedities contracts, inberest mle contracls and foreign cumency forsand contracts. as al 31 Decembe
2022 and 31 December 2021 are recorded in “Prepayments, ofher receiables and other assels” and
Sheciued expenses and other payables” in the consolidaled stalerment of linancial position

The hedge inefectiveness Tor forecast lean hog and grain fransactions is recognised n "Revenue” and “Cost
of sabes” i the consolidated statement of profil o kess and olher comprehensive ncomd, respectivzy,

'WH GROUP LMITED [N
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Derivatives not under hedge accounting

2022 el
Assels Liabilities Lisadilities
UES million UES million LSS million LIS § million
Grain contracls 8 8 5
Livestock conlracts 1 4 E | >
Energy contracts G2 — 43
Foreign cutrency forward contiacts =k S 2
64 12 57 7

Major terms of such derivatives are as Tollows:

Nalinead velume

Benvalive inshumesty Himimum e e

Matmity

W 275,000 1,435,000  Bushels Up 1o Jely 2023
kl 313552 178,627 Tem Up fo March 2023
B00,000 221,405,087  Pounds Up fo December 1023
12,624 613 41,911,329 Bushely Up o December 2023
b 260,000 5795000 Bushal Up o Famuary 2024
Malyral g 5,150,000 10,220,000 British therssal unity Up fo December 2023
Heating - 240,000  Gallans Ug o Fehrassy 2003
k biellies — 18,600,000  Pounds Up fo Jema 2023
= 3,250,000  Pounds Up to March 2023
14,112,000 1,580,000  Gallens Up o December 2023
= 4,500,000  Pounds Up in beme 2023
crybes e 600,000  Pomds Up to March 2023
Wind eneqy 2,842 230 3101676 Megawatl-haur Up o December 2032
ton tency Mrward confracl US%45 299,788 USSBE 042849  Varess cumencies Up 1o Maich 2021
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Confinued)
Derivatives not under hedge accounting (Conlinued)
Major termes of such derivaltives are as follows:

Moliamal volume

Derivative insirmments Mizistum Maxigam  Melric Malurity

Derivative financial assets and liabilities of US$32 million, US842 million, US35 mélion and US$13 million
(021 USE30 mallion, USES] mallken, nil and US$E3 million) are recorded as non-current assels, current
assels, non-cumen habilibes and cuirenl habilitics, respectively.

27. PLEDGED/RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Al 31 December 20022, bank balances camry interest al markel rales ranging from OUO1% 1o 6,007 (2021
001% o 4.13%) per annum. The pledped and restricted bank deposils carry inferest af fized rales @anging
from 0.01°% to 4.000% (2021: 0.02% to 4.13%) per annum

Al 3] December 2022, pledged bank deposits représented deposits of USE5 million (2021 US$3 million)
pledged to banks for securing bankang and trading facilities such as letters: of credit and bank loans granted
to the Group, and US$2 million {20321 USE3 million) pledged for secuming a boan from a third party. These
pledaed bank deposits will be released upon the seltfement of the relewant borowings of the relesse of the
relevant facilities

Al 31 December 2022, bank balance of US$2 milion (2021: USE3 million) = pledged fof workes's
compensation insurance claims in the WS, and China

At 3] December 2022, a subsidiary of the Group, which B engaged i linancial services was governed by the
law 1o place USS6T milkon (2021 US$36 million) of a statufory dieposit in the People’s Bank of China. In

addition, USH6 million (2021: USE6 milllen) was placed at a designated bank account by a subsidiary of the
Group which is engaged in property development as gusantes deposils.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

28. TRADE PAYABLES
T AVETagE: crédit penod on perchase. o g-::-ca-ch' B abogl 30 d.ijp i China operatons and the credil teoms
vary depending on the vendor for the WS, and other countries of opeations. The Group has financial risk
management polcss in place lo ensure thal all payables are paid within the credit imeframe.

The following & an analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date

2022

UsSS'mifhon LSS il leon

Within 30 days 1,384 1,128
31 to 90 days & 13
91 o 180 days 1 B
181 1o 365 -:LI:,I'-. _?__ 5

1,395 1,149

Inchuded i trade payables of UIS$F milllen (2021 nil) were amounts due (o jomt ventures (Mote 42(b)),

Included m trade poyables of USEL mallion (2021 US$12 million) were amounts due to associates (WNote
4 b))
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

29. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES

2022

US S million LISE million

Aoorued stall costs 5az2 G
Deposits received &7 99
Sales rebates payables 176 223
Pavables in respact of acquisilson o property, plant and
equipment in 157
Acotued insurance 130 151
Inferest payable 24 23
Batance of contingent consideration in respect of acquisition of
subsidienios 200 177
Lo s panables Fii-] 45
Pension liability (Note 33) 24 24
Dregvative Iinanceal instiaments (Nole 26) 18 3
Accrued professional expenses a8 g
Aociued sent and ulilities 39 35
Davidend payables 12 2L
Contract liabilities (Mote) 536 523
Other accreed expenses 478 455
Other payables 17 118
2,921 2,754

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Cairrent leabilsles 21513 2371
Man-current liabilities 408 383
2.9 2,754

eCahred [Hom cutlomeds I mlafion B0 salen of mad prodoelts and Siles proceedd mid Irdem Buyess

W of peopertier Az ab ] Januasy 2027 conleact Rabditen AT

Aonirect: Rabdiess include Bdwances
o o il e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

30. BORROWINGS

2022

UsSS'million

Seniol unsecumed noles

4 250% senior unsecured nodes due February 20027 598 =97
G % senkor unsecured noles due Apell 2029 396 £t
0005 senws unsecured noles due Oclober 2030 431 490
20255 senor unsecured notes due Seplembser A0E1 431 Wy
1,976 1573
Commeéencial papers (Mole i =
Bank bkoans {Mole a)
Secured B 5
LiInsecured 1,381 2033

Loans from third paties { Mt il

Secured 1 1
Unsecured ] Z
Tolal borrmwings 3,368 4,014
Eorrowings are repansable a5 folkews (Maoke vk
Within ane year agz2 874
O 1o bwo yeans 148 29
Two to live years a75 1,141
Alter five years 1,381 1,975
3,366 4,014
|'|:‘1‘>' Amounls due w_|II1||| o year 'L!1Ilr'|'ll u||_-J1'I carent Ilublll_tl:.:ﬁ i&ﬁ_z!_ {874}
Amvounts due after one year 2,504 3,140
Tolal borrowings:
A Tied Fates 2,55? 2515
At fleating les a0e 1,499
3,366 4,014
Analysis of borrowings by cuttency
Denomanaled in USE 2178 2,153
Dencmanated in RMB 573 n3g
Crenvcaminated in HES 370 1,135
Denominated in other curiencies 247 1445
3,366 4,014
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

30. BORROWINGS (Continued)

31

A EE

monotis Thie progreen aBoes tha Geoup b

paper sgresment, (he Qoo pays 8 daie
5 The madurSes of the susd papers

LUsder B feims Of e

of ihe BSuance and maske

use e peroceads 10 fund cperading cash requarémen
of interest based oo, among other factces, the mats
7

Hiugrs, The deusnde of

ey vy, Dul may mob seoeed 397 dwye 1
svaiable Equidty by an 1 1o the princips
undar 1he pregrem & LIS G0 miton, Thess waig no 0

MEIA T (LA

o 12558 10 5 80% [202]: LE0% 1o S.80%) and Moasing faies ¢
Decomber 2002 (2021 LIBOR + 0.58% 10 ROBOR + 0.EX par an

Fiosd ra3s Gaak Wlfs cany 45 Al fiied rabes fang
from S0FR + 0.65% fo WIBOR + |.2% po annuwem a3
Leans from thisd- partes canry. interes! ol 2 faod rate of OO% per anooum-at 31 December 2022 (2021 08% per anmam)

The smounis dus sie based on sohediulsd epayment dales sof el in Be oan B reeTI

The Group's borrowings contain - allermative and negative covenants that, among olher things, limst o restnct
e Group's abilily 1o creale béos and encumbrances, mcur debl, enter indo quidation, enten info change o
contrel transactions of change the scope of the basiness, of dispose of of tansier assels, in each case
subject bo cerlam qualifications and cxceplions. The Group had no materal defaull in payment of the bank
borewings, noe did B beeach any melevant linance covenants for the yesrs ended 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2021, Details of the assels pledged to secure such borrowings are sel oul in nole 40 to the

comsolidaled financial stalements.

DEFERRED TAXATION
For the purpose ol presentation in the consoldated statement of financsal position, ceran defermed tax assels
amnd labilties have been offsel. The following s the analysks of the defered tae balances for fmancial

reparling puiposes

USE million LSS million

[afprrod tax Asselts S8 i3
Deferred tax labidities (a7 (725
(638) (BE3)
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

T 1nl!.e:r.-\.'|r|3 are the major deferred 1ax assetsiabilines recognised ij the Group, and e movements
thereon during the year

Tax effect of deductible temporary differences:

tnpzrmmi

P gl
deinbnaied
Fer
gkl

wreprry,  Saresinl W

tnpuamyl o plast ami i o

Gl mis s e
o_a ¥

M it e (I
- it m
" ol
X 14

el ] b o ¥

1 H i 2 it 13 % 1 an
{=1) iy =1 =1 » 1 - - i i
in =1 i in % - H 2l it E+

} - - - - - i - - - an

i T D - (] ] 1 " " n % I I

T4  WHGROUP LMITED *

239/302



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

oOoOooodn

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Conlinued)
Tax ellect of laxahle ti,"l"j.i:llﬂl'!'l diflesEnces

Fair valug Fair valme
changes changes
Rpcelerated  Undistiibated arising Hom ariting Hom  Oiher taxable

Tax eamings of busimess binlogical bemporary
deprecistion  subsidiaries  combination aaeh differences

(&3} (38} (452} )] (783 {1.155)

T 5 1 10 ~ B iz
iy 3 - - - - i)
6 I 14 17 (14} - (25) ()

: o I—*1 = ="} =" 11 11

il Dicdrriber 200 {567} (B) (456} (Th (BE) {1.124)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Conlirued)
At 31 December 2022, the Group had unused tax losses of LS3529 midlion (2021: USE505 million) availatde
for offselfing against future profits of which a deferred ta assel has been recognised in respect of UIS$E310
milhon (2021; USE208 million) of such losses. Mo deferred tax assel has bien recognied @ fespect of such
losses of USEZI9 milon (2021 USEXT million) due io the unpredictability of future prodit stream
Unrecognised b losses amounting fo US$F2 milkon (2021 USHESH6 milkon) may be camied torward
indelindely, The remaining unrscognised lax losses will expive on or belore 2042 as Tollows:

2022 2021

UES million LIS il Lo

By end o

22 e 16
M3 3 4
AR 28 7
225 40 Hi
226 52 3
2027 or after 24 | 14

147 151

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount o temporary  differences  associated  wilh
undelibated eamings of subsidianes for which defered lax Eblities have nol been fecognised was
U534 424 mllion {2021: USE3.853 millken). Mo Kability has been recognised in respect ol these differences
bercawse the Group B ina position 1o controd the iming of the reversal of the tempoary differences and the
Group has defesmined that this porion of geolits derved trom these operating subssfiares will be retainesd by
these subsidiaries and will nd be distributed in the loresseable future. Therelome, it i probable that such
dillerences Wil not reverse i the foreseeable fulure.

32. DEFERRED REVENUE

2022

UsE'million US43 million

Govarmament granl B E ]

The deferred revenue for the years: ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 represents
povernment grant received in relation to the construction of property, plant and equipment o the Group, As
the ralated assels are undes conslruction, the grand teceived Trom the govemment will be relessed bo profit o
loss a5 other imcome over the useful lives of the relaled amounts after the construction is completed.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

33. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMENT BEMEFITS
Defined benefit plans
The group enlities ‘which operate in the LS. operate funded defined benefit scheme for all their qualified
employees, and pension bahelits provided are cumently ongamsed primsrty though delined benelll pension
plans, Sakaried employees are provided with benefits based on years of service and average salary levels
Houirly employess are provided with benelits ol staled amounts for each year of séivice,

The defined benelt plan s administered by 2 separate fund that is begally separated from the entity, The
board of the pension lund i composed ol an equal number ol representatives from bolh employers,
employees and (former) employees. The board of the pension furd is required by law and by its articles of
association 1o act in the interest of the fund and of &l relevant slakeholders in the scheme, e active
employess, inactive employees, relirees and employess, The board of the pemsion Tund 5 responsible for the
investiment policy with regard o the assels of the fund.

Under the plans, the employees are entilled o retiement benedits based on the final average salary on
attainment of a retirement age of 65, Mo other post-relirement banefils are provided 1o these employess.

The plan in the L5 exposes the Group lo actuarial isks such as investment sk, interest rate risk, longevily
risk, salary risk and price risk as Tollows:

Investment risk

The presesd valwe of the defined benefil plan lability is caloulated using a discount rate determéned by
reference 1o high quality conporate bond yeelds; if the return on plan assel is bebow this ate, it will cresle a
plan deficit. Currently the plan has a relalively balanced investment in equily securities, debt instruments and
real eslates. Due 1o the long-lerm nature of the plan lablity, the board of the pension Tund considers it s
approgriate that a reasonable portion of the plan assets shawld be invested in equity securities and in real
estafes fo leverage the return genemated by the fund,

Interest rate risk
A decrease i the mterest mte of Tked income products will increase the plan Babilsty; howeser, this will be
partially offsel by an increase in the refum on the plan’s debt investmenis.

Longevity risk

The present walue of the defined benelit plan liabality is calculated by relerence to the best estimate of the
mottalily of plan paficipants both during and after their employiment. An increase in the e expectancy of
the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Salary risk
The present value of the defmed benefit plan lability s calculated by reference o the futwe salanes of plan
participants, As such, &n increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liabiality.

Price risk

An increase in the markel price of equity investments will increase the plan assets,

The most recent actuarsal vabuations of plan assels and the present walue of the defined benefit obligation
ware carried out at the end of the reporting period by Metcer (US), Inc.. The present value of the defined

benafil obligation, and tha ielated currenl serice cost and pasl service cosl, wers measured wsing the
Projected Lnit Credit Method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

33. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

Defined benefit plans (Continued)
The principal assumplions used for the puarposes of the acluarial valuations were as follows

Valuation at 31 December

2022 2021

5.2% 28%
A4.0% 4.0%

Diiscount rate
Expmscted rafe af salary increase

The actuarial valuations showed thal the markel valse of plan assels was USEL51E8 million as at

31 December 2022 (20021: USE2.194 mallion)

Amounts recogiised in proll or boss in resped of these defined benelil plans ae as lollows:

2022

UEE million
Curent seivees ool 24 2%}
Gain upon madilication of defined benefl plan (MNote) —_ (105}
Mel inlerest sapense 14 12
< {400

Tatal

Remeaswrament of the net defined benalit habilty included in other comprehensive income (expense) is as

Pl lews:

202 2021

USS million LSS mallion

Rehurm on Man assets (excludmg amounts includged in net

inlerest expense) {833} 111
Actuaisal gains (Iesses) arsing iam change i lmanceal
assumptions 763 (8s)
130 23
Deferred taxation (Nofe 31) (28) {150
102 4

Tatal
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

Defined benefit plans (Conlinued)

The amounl included i the consolidated statement of financial position arsing from the Group's obligation in
tespect of its delined benefit plans s as Tollows:

2022

USS milleod

Prosen! value al lended defined benaelil oblggations 1,804 2 b
Fain valwe of plan assels {1.518) (2, 154)

Funded status and net labdity ansing fiom defined

benefit obligation 76 A5
Oher relirement benelits, nel |I L 12
386 H

Included in;

Current labildes (MNote 29 24 24
MNon-current liabilities B2 478
388 H02

Movements in the present value of the defined benefil obligation m the cument year were as Tollows:

2022 202

US% million LISE million

Defined benclil obligation &t 1 Janway 2,684 2,658
Cimrent semice cosl 24 53
Inferest cost T4 [is
Benafits paid {125) {126)
Gain upon modification of delined benefit pension plans -_ {105)

Remeasurement {gains) losses,
FActuaral {gmns) losses ansing from change in
financial assumgtions (T63) /e

Defined benelil obligation at 31 Decembes 1,804 Z had
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

33. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)
Defined benefit plans (Continued)
Movemants in the present value of the plan assels in the current year were as follows:

2022 1

USS'million LIS % million

Fair value of plan assets al 1 January 2,194 2,123
Indesast incoinme B0 4
Contributicns from the employers x2 22
Benehls pand {123} [ 126}

Remessurement gains (losses)
Retuny on plan assets {excluding amoums incheded monet
interest expense) {633} 111

Fair value of plan assels at 31 December 1,518 2,194

T Tair vabees of the plan assels a5 at the cnd of the epoitimg persod lol each calegpory ane a5 Tollows

Fair value of plan assels
al 31 December

2022

UES' million
Cash and cash equevalents 112 |§ 1]
Equity securilies 538 S
Dbt securiles 5 -2 |
Allemnalive investiments 5 5
Limibed partnerships 296 261
Tatal {1am value 1473 2176
Unesebibed bransasctions, el a5 18
Tatal plan assels 1,51ﬁ 2. 1594

The: fair vadues of lhe above equity and debt mstroments are detesmined based on quoted markel peices in
active markels whereas the fair walues of allernative investments and Bmited  partnerships are nol based on
quoted markel prices in- aclive markets. As al 21 December 2022, USESTA million, US$503 million and
UIS$208 million of plan assets (2021 USISET millken, USSSTE mdlion and 55261 million) are cassified as
Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3, respectively

The aclual retum on plan assels was =0.39% (2021 B24°%) ovwer D years.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

33. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Conlinued)
Delined benefit plans (Conlinued)
Significant acluarial assumptions. for the determination of the defined obligation are discount mte, pepected
salary increase and modally. The sensilinly analyses below have been determined based on reasonably
possile changes of the respective assumplions occurming at the end of the reporting period, while holding all
ol assumplions conslant.

If the discount rate is 50 bass points higher (lower), the defined benefil obhigaton would decrease (increase)
by USHL12 million (2021 decrease (morease) by US$21L0 milion),

The sensitivity analysts presented above may nod be representative of the actual change in the defined benchl
obligation as it is unbkely el the chamge in assumplbions would occur m isolation of one anollwer as some ol
the assumgptions meay be corelated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit oblgation
has been calculated wsing the Progecied Linit Creddt Method al the end of the reporting period, which & the
=ame 85 that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation Eabilty recognised in the consolidated
statement ol financial position

Pension plan assets may be invested in cash and cash equivalents; edquity securities, debl securifies and
elternative assols {including  allorative investments, limited partnerships amd  insurance contracls). The
investment policy for the pension plans s 1o batance risk and retum through a divessified portiole of
high-quality equity and fixed income securifies. Equily targels [of the pension plans are as indicaled in the
lollowing table. Maturity for fised ncome securibies is managed such that suflicient liquidily exisis to meel
nesi-term benelil payment  obligations.  The  plans relain oulsie investmenl  advisors 1o manage  plan
investments within parameters established by the plan trustees.

Thie Tollowing table presents the fair value of the qualified pension plan assefs by major assel category as al
the end of the reporting penod. The allocation of the pénsion plan assels s based on the tamgel ange
presemted in the Tollowing tablbe.

At 31 December 2022

"million Targel range

Assel calegories
Cash and cash equivalents, nel

of unsetiled hansactions 157 0-10% 128 O=1101%
Eqquity securities 538 5-55% e it A0-F%
Dl secanrities 521 35-55% 831 205
Alteinative assets 01 0-20% b 520,
Tokal 1,518 2,194

The Group expects to make a conbribution of US323 million fo the defined benefil plan duwing the nexd
fimancial yean.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

33. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)
Defined benefit plans (Conlinued)
The follwing are descriptions of the valuation methodologees and key inpuls used o measime pension plan
assels recorded alb [ wahee:

Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash equivalents include highly Bauid investments with onigingd moluntics of Wiee months oF kst Due to
their short-term nature, the carrying amount of these instruments approdimates the estimated fair value.
Activaly raded money merket funds ane measured ab their net asset wlue, which approwimates to Eir value,
and classified as Level 1. The fal values of cerain money market funds for which quoted prices are
awailable bl raded lass trequently have been dassilied as Lovel 2.

Equity securilies

When awilabde, the fain wmloes ol équity securdies are based on gquoled prices in active markels and
classilied as Level 1. Level 1 linanceal instruments include highly Bauid instrements with quoted prices, such
as edquities and mutual funds traded i active markets.

0 quoled prices are not avadlable, falr valwes are ebtained from pricing serdces, booker quoles of olher
model-based valuation techniques with observable inputs and classified as Level 2, The nature of these equity
secinities - inchsde securities for which quoled prices are availablde bul traded less frequently, secunties whose
fair value has been detived using a model where inputs to the model are directly observable in the markel,
oF can be derbred principally from o corroboraled by observable market data and securities thal aie salued
using other fikancial instuments, the parameters of which can be direclly cbsernved. Level 2 equily securities
mclude prefened slock and commingled funds thal are not actively lraded.

Dehbt securities

The faar values of debd secunbies are oblained from pricing serdces, broker quotes of other model-based
waluation lechniques with obsesvable inpuls and classitied as Level 1 o Level 2. The nalwre of these debl
securifies includes instruments lor which quoted prices e awilable bul baded less Trequently, instruments
whose lai value fas been derved wsing a model where inputs to the model are directly observable in the
marketl, of can be derived principally from of cofroborated by observable market data and securities thal are
valued using ofher financial instruments, the parametars of which can be directly obsersed, Level 1 debt
secinities include corporate debl securties and government debl securlies. Level 2 debl securilies inchode
commingbed lunds, asset-backed secanities and emerging market securities,

Altermative invesiments

The fan walues of alternative mvestments are obtained from pricing  services, broker quoles: of ol
model-based valualion lechniques with obsenable inputs and classified as Level 20 The natwre of ihese
altermative investments inclisdes instruments for which quoted prices are available but taded less frequently,
mstruments whese fan value has been denved using a model where inputs o the model are. disectly
observable in the markel, or can be derived principally from or corroborated by observablke markel data and
sgcurifies thal are valued using olber financial insbruments, the parameters of which can be direclly
observed. Level 2 alternative investments include diversified investment funds,
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

33. PENSION LIABILITY AND OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Confinued)
Defined benefit plans {(Conlinued)
Limited parlnerships
The valuation of fimited partnership investmens requires the use of sipnilicant unobsenabde mputs due o the
absence of quoted market prices, inherent lack of hquidity and long torme nature of such assets and is
classified s Level 3. These investments are initially walued ol cost with quarberly valuations  performied
ulilising available markel data lo determine the fair value of these investments, Such markel dala consists
primagily of the obserations of badieg mulliples of public companes considered comparable fo the
investmaends, with adjustments Ior investment-specific issues, the lack of liquidiy and other Hems.

Defined contribution plans

The Gioup's qualiying employees in Hong Fong partecipate i the MPF Scheme in Hong Kong, The assels o
e MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in fund under the confrol ol rustee. Under the
MPF schema in Hong Kong, the employer and its employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees redevant income, subjedt to a cap of montbly relevant income: of
HEE30,000, Contnibutions to the scheme ane vested mmeadiately.

The employees ol the Group's China subsidiaries are members of the state-managed retirement benefits
scheme opetated by the China government. The subsidiaries are required o contribule a ceraln percentige
of their payioll Lo the retirement benelits scheme 1o lund the bepelits, The only obligation ol the Giosgp with
respact to the retirement benefits scheme is 1o make the required conbributions under the schemse,

The Group has defined contribution plans (A01(K) plans) covering substantially all LS. employees. The
Group's contribubions to the plans are pimearily based on esch contribution: and cannol exceed the magimum
allowable lor lax purposes

The ameant charged to proft o foss of approxenately US3147 million during the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021; USE119 million) represents contributions paid or payable o the plans by the Group a1 males
specified B the rules of he plans.

34, BUSINESS COMEBINATIONS & DISPOSAL
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Disposal of Saratoga Specialty Foods aperations (“Saratoga’)
On 3 October 2022, the Group exccuted an agrecment lo sell Samatoga, which develops and  preduces
sphoes, seasonmgs and marinades for use In the Group's intemal production of various packaged meats
products and for sale to the loodservice industey in the LS.

The sale was completed on 31 Oclobes 2022 with consideration of LIS3SIE million, The gain on disposal of
US%414 million, net of exit costs; was recognised in profit or loss during the yea ended 21 Decamber 2022,
The amount of assels disposed included allocation of goodwill of LISET milbion,

Exit ol Korsan

Asat 31 December 2021, the Group had a jeni-venture interest in Norson; an inlegrated hog producer. and
processor in Mexico. During the year ended 31 Decamber 2022, the Group offered o purchase the shares o
Mosson tat were bheld by the joint-venture parnes bol was belng rejected. As o resull, e joint-veniure
partner was irrevocably committed to purchase the Group's shares i Nosson purseant to the joint-venture
agreement. In Movember 2022, the Group completed the sale of all the shares in Notson and recognised a
o5z on disposal of LS$12 million
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

34. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS & DISPOSAL (Confinued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 {(Continued)
Imvestments in renewable matural gas joint-ventures
The Gioup has several joinl-venteres i v LS which ae engaped n converting waste lrom s hog laming
operations into carbon negative renewable natural gas o power homes, vehickes and: businesses. Align was
tormed with: Dominion Energy RHNG Holdings, Inc., and Monarch was formed with Roeslein Altermative Encrgy,
LLE. In February 2022 the Group loomed Viceroy Bio Energy, LLE (*Viceroy"} with ils pariners in Monaich.
Wpan the formation, Monarch contributed cemain assels related o biggas operations In Viceroy. Alse in
February 2022, Monarch issued addiional shares sepresenting a 33% ownership inferest o g climate
investor, TPG Rise Monsoon, LP. As a resull, the Group's ownership Inlerest in Monarch was reduced lrom
0% o 33% and a gain on desmed disposal of US$52 million was ecogmised during the year ended 31
December 2022

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Acquisition of MECOM GROUP s.r.0., Schneder Food, s.r0., and Kaiser Food Kit. {(“Mecom Group')

On 17 June 2021, the Group completed the acquisition of 100% of the equity interests in Mecom Group
from an indepéndent thied paity. Mecom Group has two meal processmp plants in Slovakia and two
specialised sites in Hungary that prodwce salami and other packaged meat products,

The Giotip mcumed Eansscion costs of less than USE] million (o the acquisition, These ansachon costs
hawe been expensed and are inchuded in other expenses in profit o loss

Since the acquisition, Mecomn Group contributed US$EE million to the Group's revenue and USEA million to
the: consolidated profit before tax for the year ended 31 December 2021

The revenue and consolidated profit before tax of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 would be
L5327 455 millon and US$], 708 malion o the acquistion of Mecom Group had taken place at the beginning
of thve year,

Acquisition of Granjas Carroll de Mexico (collectively, “GCM Growp”™)

On 7 July 2021, the Group acguired the additional 16% of the equity interests from the joinl venture partner
of GCM Group to inciease e Group's equily inberest i GCM Group from 50% o 66%. GOM Group = &
main producer of hogs in Mexico and pasticipates in hog processing

The Group incuried fransaction costs of less than USE!D million for the acquisiion. These Wansachion cosis
hawe been expensed and are included in other expenses in prolit of loss

Since the acquisition, GCM Group contributed USH159 million 1o the Group's revenue and USE20 million to
the consolidated prodil before tax for the year ended 31 December 2021,

The revenue and consolidated profit before tax of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 would be
L5327 611 milkon and US$1, 740 million 1f the acquisition of GCM Group had taken place at M begmnmg
ol the year,
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

34. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS & DISPOSAL (Continued)
Fair value assessments
The tair valees of the dentifiable assets and liabilities acquired during the year ended 31 December 2021 as
thedi respective dates of acgusition are-sel oul below:

GOM Group

Propely, plant and egquiprmsnt 14 52 380 g3
Intangitde assels 19 4 1
Beoloppeal assels 1/ 11x] 1]
Inventones I5 4 39
Trade and bills receivables 13 18 1
Prepayments, other receiables and other
assels o 13 13
Other currend assels 2 2
CAhes non-current assels o
Cash and bank balances 1 17 18
Trade payables (14} {211 {35)
Aoorued expenses and other payables {3 1] (8}
Bogrowings - (1:23) (123
Defersed taxations 31 {68 (B8]
Other liaklities [#88) {1y {12}
Total kentiliable net assels af fair value a7 337 304
Goodwill 18 18 78
V7 15 a1z
i e 1 5
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

34. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS & DISPOSAL (Confinued)
Fair value assessments (Conlinued)

LIS3 millian

Saleshied by

Cash 57 18 5
[hefiinid paymrnl B3 i
Mon-cash oonsideration b4 27
Redecmabde non-controlling mnberest 141 141
Fair value ol & pre-existing interest 166 166
af 415 472
Anahsis of the cash Hows in respect of the
acqusition s a5 follevs
Cash consideration (57} {18} (75}
Cash and bank balances acquined ] 17 (§:4
Met outflow ol cash and cash equivalents in
caash flows used Ininvesting achivitics L5 £13 [f=7a ]
Transaction costs paid during the year
included in cash Uows from operaling
activities
(5} {1 )]
Ly |:f. | |
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
{a) Major mon-cash transaclions
[Cuming the year, the Group had non-cash additions o righl-of-use assels and lease [@bilities of LISE197
million and USE213 mdllion, respectively (2021 USH143 million and LES146 mallion),

{b) Changes in liabilities arising from linancing activities

Bomowings and

other loans

LISE million

At 1 January 2021 14 476 2636
Changes from financing cash flows {&15) {142} 1.242
Mew leases 14

Interest expense 19

Tesmination (8}

Cavidends declared Gl

Increase arising from acquisition of
s e s 55 123
Cumency realsgnment 5 {4} 13

Al 31 December 2021 and

| lanuary 20237 B0 487 4,014
Changes from linancing cash Nows (6100 {141) (B0
Mew leases -_ 213 -_—
Interest expense == 23 —
Temination = {43} Es
Dividends declamd 623 — -
Cumancy realygnment _l.'Eﬂ {_5] {43:
Al 31 Decsmbey S22 12 534 3,366

{c} Total cash outflow for leases
The total cash outflow 1or beases incheded in the statement of cash flows 5 as follows

2022

UsE million LIS il oy

Within operating activilies 132 152
Within investing aclivities 27 11
Withun financing actvities 141 142

300 265
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36. SHARE CAPITAL

il LIS il lson

Ordinary shares of US$0.0001 each
Fupthorsed
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, 1 lamary 2022
and 31 December 2022 50,000 5

lssnied amd (ully peaed

A1 January 2021 14, 74521 1
Issue o shates on exerciss ol share optaons (Mobe 4 1.93 -
ancellabion of shares repaichased (Mole (il C1.916.94) -
At 31 December 2021, 1 Jamary 2022 and 31 December 2022 12,830.20 1
Midtas
] The share opliong exercisd during the yeams s usder (hé pee-lPO share. opthon schame

Curng the yor ended 31 December
at'm considergbon of 5
Auing LRTEY
By the par walue

ERNEACIcn coaty,

e Company repurchased o own cedimaey shares of 1 BLE0ET. 202 on e Slock Exchange
] on 5 All repurchased ordinary’ shaoes wore cancelind by Ih
tehasad. the i shaié capitsl of the (:.:lr:-w:, W s

pme o theso cancelled shares of USEL 951 mikion, including

All the shares ssoed during the year ank pani passu with the then exsting shares i all respects

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group manages s capital o enswre thatl enliies i the Group will be able fo confinue a5 a gowng
concern while maximising the return o owners through the optimisation of the debt and equily balance. The
Group's overall stiatesry remaans unchanged during the years

The capital structure of the Group consists of nel debl, which includes the borrowings disclosed in nobe 30
b the consodidated Tinancial statements, el of cath and cash equivalents and otal edquity, COmrsing s

share capital, reserves and retained profits. As al 31 December 2022, the Group's nel detd to equity ratio
was 18.9% (2021; 25.4%)

‘ Lo then L2831 milksn
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37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Conflinued)
Categories of financial instruments

Finamcial assets
Al 31 December 2022

Agsel 1:.:'1t=p.|:rri £

Uinlsted eqialy mwvestiments
Unlisted financial products
Dregivabive linancsal assaels
Other non-current assels

Trade, bills and olher recenabbes

ofher assaeEls
Pledgedirestricted bank deposits
Cash and bank balances

Total

Fimancial assels
al tair value
thrmugh

profit or loss®
UsE million

at amorlised cost
UsS million

Tuolal
UsS'million

n = 11
149 = 149

74 - 74
139 - 138

and

23 1.945 1,568

— 82 az

- Ll 3108
386 3.021 2417

Ar 31 December 2021

Financial assels

at lan walug

Unlisted equity investments 12 12
Unlisted financid products a3 232
Derivative financial assefs Bl 81
Other non-current assets 181 181
Trade, bilks and olher recevables and

odhel assels 2 1,384 1,064
Pledgedirestricted bank deposils 51 51
Cash and bank Balances 1 556 1,556
Total 526 2,961 3,517

. The financhl assets ol fak value nough peofd o es sre mandatonly measured at TP
'WH GROUP LMITED
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Categories of financial instruments (Conlinued)
Financial liabilities

2022

USE million

Al amortised cosl

Trade and olher payables 2,078 1 657
Lease liabilities 534 487
Borowings {fixed and Noating mates) 3366 4,014

5,978 6,158

Ab tair value through prodit o boss
Dierivative linancial labilities 8 3

Financial risk management abjectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments indude pledped bank deposits, cash and bank balances, financial
assels at FVPL, dermative tinancial instruments, rade, bills and other receabbes, other non-curenl assels,
trade and other payables, lease liabilities, obligation under finance leases, bomowings and bank overdrafls,
Detaits of the financial Instruments. ane disclosed in the respective nofes. The risks associaled with these
financial instruments include matkel risk (curency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The: padicies on how bo mitigate these rsks are sel out below, The management of the Group manages and
moniors these exgposures o ensure that approgaate measures are implermented in a timely and effective
AN,

Markat sk
The Growup's activities eapose | primarily 1o the financial risks of changes in foreign cunrency exchange rates

and interest rales

Theré has boen no changs to the Group's exposura 1o markel risks o the manner in which it manages and
measures the nsk
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Conlinued)

Foreign currency risk management

Cerlain group  entities - have certain foreign currency  sales, purchases, cash and bank balances amd
boirowings denosminaled in USE EUR, GBP, HK$ RMB and JPY, which edpose the Gioup o Roisign
currenscy risk at these individual group entities lavel In order 1o mitigate the foreign curmency risks, foreign
currency forward conbiacts are entered inte by the Group for certain malenial lorgign cumency transactions
The critical téoms o these Toreign curmency forward contracts are similar o those of the hedged payments
and recaipts denominated in forelgn cumencies. These foreign curtency fonsard conliacts ane deskgnated as
hedging - insbuments and  hedge accounting s appled a5 the conbrads are considered haghly efective
hedging flems. The carrying amounts of the Group's Toreign currency denominated monetary assets and
monctary liabdlities at the end of the reporting period are a5 folbows:

US5 million

Assels
s S
Cash and bank balances 2 3
ELIR
Cash and bank balances 2 hn
Trade, bills and other receivablbes B0 43
KEMEBE
Trade, bills and ofher receivables B B
I
Cash and bank balances = L&
Trade, bills and other receivabbes G =
GEF
Trade, bills and othes receivables 15 12
Liabilities
usg
Trade and other payables = 1
Bianowings 1 1
EUR
Trade and other payables an 22
Bonowings 86 2
HES
Trade and other payables il i
Bomnowings 378 1,135
- Lems traae RISEE mnililcen
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Foreign currency risk management (Confineed)
Sensitivity analysis
The Giotip is madnky exposed b the effect of USE against the functional currencies of the iespective grodp
entities, except for HEKY as it is pegeed to the USE

Thee Tollowing tabde detaals e Gioup's sensiiily to a 5% (2021 5%) inciease and deécrease in US$ against
funclional currencies of the respeclive group entities which represent management's assessment of the
reasonably  possible change in foresin exchange mbtes. The sensitivily anabsis includies only  oulbstanding
foreign cuntency denominated monetary itens and adjusts their ranslation te the functional cunencies of the
respective group enlilies at the year end lor a 5% (2021: 5%) change in foelgn currency rales. A posilive
{negative) number below  indicates an increase {(decreasel in post-lax profit where LISH strengthens 5%
(2021: 5%) against the rebevant curmency.

Ust mmpact {2} 3

In management’s opinien, the sensitivity analysis s uniepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange sk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the respective year,

Interest rate risk management

The Group's fair valee interest rale oisk relates primanly to i#s fmancial assels at FYPL and  fived-rate
bosrowings (see notes 25 and 30 respectively fof details). The Groep curently does mol enter inlo. any
derivative conlracks to hedge @s exposure bo changes in fain values of financial assets at FVPL, fixed-rate
borrowings and finance keases. Howewves, the mansgement of the Group will consider hodging skimificant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group's cash flow inferest rate risk relbles primarily to floating rate bank belances and borrowings (see
nodes 27 and 20 respectively lor details). The Group's exposures 1o inferes! rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the hquedity nsk management section of s nobe

Sensilivily analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure o inferest rales lor non-deriative
instruments at the end of the reporting period, For floating rate bonrowings, bank overdrafts and Bank
balances, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of asset and liability cubstanding al the end of e
reporling peviod was outstanding Tor the whole: year, A 25 basts points increase of decrease is used fof
sensilivily analysis which regeesents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Conlinued)
Foreign currency risk management (Confinued)
Sensitivity amalysis (Continued)
It interest rales decreased (increase) by 25 basis poinls and all other wrables were held constant, the
potential effect on post-tax profit is as Tollows:

LSS million LSS million

(Decrease) increase in post-lax profit 1 "

Thiere would Be an equal and opposile impact on the post-lax profl where the inferest mbes increased by 25
basks points and all other variables were held constant

Credit risk management

The Group's credit risk & primarily attributable to Bs trade, bills and other receiables, bank badances and
pledged bank deposits. A the end of the reporting period, the Group's maximem exposure fo credd risk
which will cause a linanckal loss 1o the Group due to the fadure to discharge an obligation by the
colnterparties and arsing from the camang amount of the respective recognised financial assefs stated in the
comsolidated statement of financial position

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management ol the Group has delegated a leam responsible for the
determination of credit Nmits, credit approvals and other monitonng - procedures to ensure thal follow-up
action is taken o recover overdue debls. In addition, the Group reviess the recovwsable amount of each
indvidual debt at the end ol each repofling penod o ensure thal adeguate impainment losses are msde lor
irmecoverable amounts. In this regard, the management of the Group oosiders that the Group's credit isk is
significantly reduced

The Groug has no significan concentiation of credit sk on trade, bills and other receivables, with exposure
spicad over a large number of counlérparties and cusbomers,

Informalion about credd sk exposure on the Group's Irade receiables using e provisson meldnx s
disclosed in note 23 1o the consolidated financial siatements, As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021, the b=z allowance provision Tor pledgediestricted bank deposils, cash and bank balances, bills
receivable and Tinancial assels included in prepayments, other recenables and olher assels was nol maleral

The ECLs for financial assets incleded in prepayments, other recénables and ofher assels are based on
assumplions about the protability of default and the expected loss rates, The Group uses judgement in
making these assumplions and selecting mpuls to the ECL calculations, based on the Group's historical loss
recind, current condifions as well as Toeward-looking information

el LSS i
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37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contineed)

Credit risk management (Conlinued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tabdes below shows the cedit quality and the maximum exposure 1o credit nsk based on the Group's
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due information unless other infoomation s available without
undiee cosl of eflof, and year-¢nd slaging classification a5 al 31 December. The amounts presented ane
gross cadndng amounts for financeal assets and the exposure 0 credit fisk for the linancial guaranies
confracts,

At 31 December 2022

12-month
ECLs Liletime ECLs

Simplified
Stage 1 Sage 2 Stage 3 approach Tatal
USE million USE million US%million U5 million USS'million

Trade and bills receiables ] = = 1.079 1,087

Financial assels incheded in prepagyments,
other receivables and oflser assols A58 _ _ _ 458
Pledged deposits a2 == = — a2
Cash and bank baltances 1,394 = = — 1,384
1,842 = = 1,079 3.0

At 31 December 2021

E2-mith

LAetime ECLS

Trade and bills feceivabiles 8 1, 056G ], W3

Financial assets inchuded in prepayments,
ather rece@aides and ol assels 0 320
Pledged deposits 51 Al
Cash and bank batamoes 1.556 1 55
1,935 1,056 2541
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Conlinuied)
Liquidity risk management
The uwlimsle responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with mansgemenl, which has bailt an
appropriabe liquidity sk managemen! ramework lor e mansgemant of the companies camprising the
Group's shoil, medium and long-terme funding and Bquidity managemen! requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by mamtaining adequate reserves and bomowing facilities, by continuously monitoing lorecast
and actual cash llows and malching the maturity proliles of Iimancial assels and  labilities.

Azl 31 December 2022, the Group had available unutilised banking facilities of approamately US$S, 725
milllbon {2021 LISES 796 million}

The lallowing lable detsils the Group's remaining comtraciual maturity Tor ils non-derhative Tmancial [Ebilities
The table has been deswn up based on the undiscounted cash llows of financial Eabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required 1o pay. The table incledes bodh interest and principal cash
flews. To the extent that inlerest rales ae Tiating, the undiscounted amount s derved from inlemest rale at
e e of the reporting pariod.

In addition, the following table alse detalls the Group's analysis of its demvative financial instrurments that are
sellbed on a net basis, based on their (aic walue recorded in liabilities as al the end of the reporting pericd.

On demand
and 1 year 110 2 2t 5 Mare Ehan

ar less years YEATE 5 years Total

USH milion  USEmillion  USEmillion LSS malleos 5% million

At 31 December 2022

Tiade peayabdes 'I,m = — - 113'55
(dher payables G683 250 = = 833
Leswse blitios 112 a3 198 312 122
Botrowings {fixed and floating rates) 252 &a7 B4 1,518 3,806

3142 as6 1,028 1,230 5956
Dregivative financel lEbilitios, net 13 5 - = 18

Al 31 Decenyber A0

Trade payables 1,149 - = 1,149
Other payables HE 508
Lease |@bdities 116 133 B 204 535
Bosrowings (lwed and lloating rates)y a0 1,23 ETS 2,144 4575

2,733 1,367 323 2348 5,771
Detivative financial liabilities, net ] - —= - i
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37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [Continued)
Fair value measurement
The directors of the Company consider thal the carrying amounts ol curren! financial assels and financial
liatyillees recorded al amodtsed costl i the consolidated financial stalements appioximabe o ther Tar values
thee to the short term maturities of thess instruments

The fair values ol nob-current inancal assels and financial [Bbilities have been calculated by discounting the
expecied fulure cash flows using ates cumently available for instruments with simikar terms, credit risk and
remaining malurities. and mansgement has assessed That the ir vales of non-current financial assels and
financial lE@bildies approdmate lo thelr carying amounts. The Group's own non-performance sk Tor
non-cument financidl liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 was assessed 1o be
|m|l.;n:1:mu.r

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position

The folliawing tlabde provides an a:mtysﬁ ol fimancial instruments thalt are measured 5ubﬁmucnl o indsd
recognition al fair value, grouped into Lewels 1 10 3 based on the degree fo which the f&ir value is
obserable.

. Lovel 1 fair value measurements are those derived rom quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assels of habilities,

L Level 2 talr value measurements are those derved from inpals other than quobed prices mcluded within
Level 1 That are obserable lor the assel or liability, either directly (ie as grices) o indirectly (e,

denved (rom pricas)

. Level 3 Lair walue measwements ane lhose derived from valistion techniques that inchede inpats Tor the
astel on liabilty that are nol based on observable markel data (unoebsersable inguats)

2022

Level 1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Tatal
USS million Ws% million UEE million UsS million

Financial assets at fair value through

ol on boss — 1 149 160
Derivative financial assets 20 12 54 BG
Other nen-current asseals ia -] 12 129
Financial assets inchuded in prepayments,

other recerables and other assels = 23 = 23

58 135 215 408
Derivative financial liabillies 17 13 _— 30
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Confinued)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position (Confinuesd)

LISE million I LISE millicn LISE million

Financial assels al fair value through

profit or loss 12 232 244
Darivative financial assels 7 3 3 93
Other non-current assels B 114 14 181
Financial assets included m prepayments,

other receivables and olher assels - 20 - 20

O} 18 280 538
Derivative finamnceal lakilities 12 3 15

Financial assets at FVPL incheded {a) unlisted investmenis in equily securties whose fair values are
determuned by income. approach based on discounted cash flow analysis on the expected mtenest rates (Level
2), and (b) unbisted financial products whose fair values are determined based on significant unobservable
inpats (Level 3) including expecied ale of returmn of 1L6% o 4% (31 December 2021 1.5% to 4.8%)

The fair values of dervative financial assets/abilties are determined by quoted prices in active markels
{level 1} or using the income approach based on discounied cash flow analysis on the expected Inférest
rates {Level 2}, as appropriate.

Other non-cumrent assets inchude mulual lunds and  Institutional funds which are valued based on their
quoted prices in aclive markets (Level 1) or derived from the net assel value per share of the imvestment
{Level 3), as approprate, and insurance conlacks which are wlwed at their cash sunendes value using the
daily asset unit value which s based on the quoted market price of the undertying securilies and classified
within Level 2.

There were mo fransfers befween Leval | and Level 2 fair value messorements during the year, and no
lransiers into o oul of Level 3 fair walue messurements during the years ended 31 December 20022 and
31 December 2021

Sensitivity analysis

The fair value of flinancial assels and lnancial liabdlities that are chssified as Level 3 15 deflormined using
wluation techniques. including Monte Carlo simulation. In delermining the tair walee, specific valuabon
lechniques are used wilth relerence 1o inpals such as RMB risk-free inlerest ate, LIBOR and other specilic
inpat relevant o those paricular financial assels and financial liabilities.

Changing uncbsarvable inputs used in Level 3 valuation to reasonable alternative assumplions would nol have
a significant impact on the Group's prolit or loss.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position (Confinued)
Movemeants in fair value measurement within Level 3

The movements n fae valee medsurements within Leved 3 daring e years are as follows:

Finamcial assets al Derivative

lani walae Ihrul}zh lnancial  Olher AoR-cirmem

profit or loss instruments assels

s million LSS maillion LSS wmillpon

Al 1 January 2021 HEZ (&) ]
Total gain {loss) recognsed in profit or loss
ncluded in cost of sakes and other gains

and {lossas) 24 58 {16y
Purchases 1,429
Dispomals {2,112} {16&)
Lurrency realgnman 9
Al 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 232 34 14

Total gain {loss) recognsed in profit or loss
included in cost of sakes and other gains

and {losses) 8 a2 {2}
Purchases 1.078 e =
Disgrosals {1.,174) 22 =
Laurrency realgnmeant 5 — =
Al 31 December 2022 149 54 12

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
Some ol the Group's assels and labdities are measwred at i walee lor nancial epoting parposes.

In estimating the far value of an asset or a Rability. the Group uses market-obsarvable data to the extent il is
available. Where Lewel 1 mpuls are not awailable, the Gioup engages thied party quablsed waluers 1o pedorm

the vaduation. The management of the Company woks clsely with the qualified extermal valuers o establish
the apgropriale wluation techniques and inputs Lo the madel
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Conlinued)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Conlinued)
Finamcial assets and financial liabilities swbject to offsetting emlorceable master metfing arrangements and

similar agreemenls
The disclosure set out in the tables belw inchedes financial assels and financial [@bilities that:

- ar olfsed i e Group's consolidated statement of nancial position: o

> ae: subject o an enlorceable master nelting arangement or similisn agreement That. covers simikar Tinancal
Instruments, irmespective of whether they are olisel in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
pasHion

The Group cummenlly has a legally enforceable right o set off the derivative financial instruments and the
Groap imdends to scitle ihese balances on @ net basis

At 31 December 2022

Net amounts o

Finang ial Related mmounis not st o

Sisfement o sdaemedd o 1 Cash coliseral
timancie y liancial eE [ d Ned esaunt
UsSmillan 0 IS5 millies WSS mi s WSS miilien US5 millin

Nt amous
linancis! asseis. linancial linhil Related mmounts nod sef
set off i the  pressmed n the & Ehe
sty o nlidaed comsolidaied
siatement of snemest of Fi | Gash colimenal

fimancial positien  Hinancial positie ) pledged e amaunt

Usm it uss ! 2] EEmillien Ui 'milion
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continused)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities subject o offselting enforceable master netling arrangements and
similar agreements (Continued)
Ar 31 Decembear 2021

38. SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES
Fre-IP0 share option scheme
The pre-lPO share option scheme was adopted pursuant to a witten resolubon passed by the sharehobdess of
the Company on 21 January 2014 as amended on 4 Aprl 2014, the purpose of which s lo mcenlivise and
eand 4=.|i;.;il.-||=. paticpants - of the scheme mcliding difectors and employess ol e Company of s
subsidiaries by reason of their conlrsbution o poteplial conhibulion to the Company andfor any of s
snnbsediarnes,

In July 2004, The number of shares in respect of which options had been granted under the pre-IPO share
option scheme: was .‘,ﬁ-’l_.'"-."b,hf_ri;.. with @n exercise prce ol HERS, 20 pr shane, representing no more than
5% of the then msued share capital of the Company upon complelion of the Esting on the Slock Exchange.
Mo consederaton was pasd by the grantecs lor e granl of the prelPO share oplions. The pre-IFO shane
option scheme will expire in 10 years after the date of lisling of the Company (e 5 August 2014)
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

38. SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES (Continued)
Pre-IPO share option scheme (Conlinued)
The fair walue of the pre-lPO share options granted using the Binomial Option Pricing Model was HEKE 1 883
millody {equivalent 16 approxmately USE243 million), which was measired by an independent qualified
valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle Corpoate Appraisal and Advisory Limited.

Thie key inputs inte the model were a5 follows

Share price HESE B6
Exercise price HESE. 20
Opdicon lite 11} yeams
Expiscled voladility 2%
Risk-free rale A06%

Thie expecied volatility was defermined by using the histoical volatility of the selected comparable companies
in the sanmee mdustry

The following lable discloses details of the Group's outstanding share options under the pre-IPO share option
scheme and their movements during the year:

o IPD) v dpmon 4 heen ki 10, 300 T TRAT (& w0 A R I6L 63T
Lt ihie: of the o LA LR

{ By pe

In respect of the share oplions exercised dunng the year, the average share price at the dates of exercise
was HE$5. 20 (2021 HK36.24)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no shase-based payment expense was recognised (2021: MNil} in
relation to the pre-IPO share oplon schemi.

The tolal numbser of Shares thal may be ssued in respect ol oplions granted under the pre-IPO share oplion
scheme of the Company as at 31 December 2022 was 432 481,710 (as at 1 Januay 2022 435,191,637},
which rapresanted approximeately 3.4% of the weighled average number of Shares in Bssue lor the year ended
31 December 2022 (as at 1 January 2022 appromimalely 3.47%)

As al tha date of this annual report, the tolal numbér of Shares that may be isseed in respect of oplions
granmted under the pre-IPO share option scheme of the Company was 430145346, which represented
approximalely 3.4% of the lotal number of Shares in issue as al that date
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

39. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the Tollowing capital commaments & the end of the reporting period:

2022 A1

LSS million LIS % mdllion

Contracted, bat nol provided for
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 1 Bl

In addibon, e Group had the lollowimg commitments provided 1o joint ventures (including the Group's share
ol commitments made joinily with olher joint venturers), which are not included in the aboee

Vs million LIS mllbon

Contracted, bul nol provided for
Capital contnbution i ] |

40. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

2022 2021

USS' million LIS il lon

|'T1’!(!|I:'IM bank balances 9 =

As al 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, cerain of the Group's principal LS. subsidiaries are
oty and severally e for, a4 primadsy obligors, the oblgations under cedain banking facilitics

Smathfield Receivables Funding, LLC (*Smithfield Receivables”), a wholly-owned subsidiary ol the Group, has
A secunlsation Aoty that maiues in Nosember 203, A pant of the armangement, cefain rade recenvabhes
are sold to a wholly-owned “bankruptcy remole” special puipose vehicle ("SPY7). The SPY pledpes the
receiables as security for loans and letters of credil. The SPY & mcluded in the consolidated statement o
flinancial posilion of the Group, However, the ltade ecehables owned by the 5PV are separate and distinct
from the other assets and are not awilable o ofher creditors of Smithfield Recerables i Smithfield
Receivables was 1o become (nsolvenl As al 31 December 2022, the SPY held USEST4 million (2021
L53632 million) of ade recemables and had oulstanding bomowings of USHEXS million (2021: LS$26 million)
on the securilisation facility. Mo financisl or other support 1o this SPY was provided by the Group as at
31 Decemnber 2022 and 31 December 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

41. REGULATIONS AND COMNTINGEMNCIES
The Growp s subject to wanous laws and regulations admenistered by unsdictional govermment entibes: The
Group had nolices and inquirses from regulatory. authoriies and others asserting from Hme 1o fime that the
Grodp 15 Aol in compliance wilh e respective laws and regulalions. In some ivstances, litigation ensues and
inchividuals may indiste litigation against the Group.

The Giotp's pelicy fof establishang accruals and dischsures lor conlingent Habilibes s sel ot In nole 3 1o
the financial statements. The Group established a reserve for the estimaled expenses to defend agamst these
et simikar polental claims, which was subsequently e-cvaluated.

Expenses and. other Eabilities assoceted with these claims will nol affect the Group's profits or ksses in
fudure periods unbess the provision proves to be insuficient of excessive. However, legal expenses incurmed in
the Group's defense of ihese claims and any payments made lo plaintifis through unaverable verdicts o
olherwise will negalively impact its cash llows and its hiquidity posilion. The directors of the Company will
continue to evaluate and adjust the provision as necessary upon changes i facts and circunrslances,

The Group had the following signflicant Bigations dunng the vear ended 31 December 2027 and
31 December 2021:

Antitrust Litigations

Smithfield, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has been named as one of 16 defendands in a seres
of purporied class aclions alleging anfitrust violabions in the pork mdushry (the “Antiust Litigations™). The
purported class cases have been fided by three different classes ol named plaintiffs: () direct purchasors
{companies that parchase pork products directly from pork producers), (8) commescial indirect purchasers.
{companies such as restaurants and holels thal purchase pork lrom wholesalers lor resalel, and (i}
individual indirect purchasers (such as people who purchase pork al grocery stores). Inoall of these cases,
the plaintis alleged that starting m 2009 and conlinuing through at least June 2018, the delendanl pork
producens agreed to reduce the supply of hogs in the United States in ordes to raise the price of hogs and
all pork products. The plaintiffs in all of these cases abso challenged the defendant pork producers’ use of
benchmarking reports from detendant Agn Stats. Inc, alleging that the reports allowed the pork producers o
share proprictary informabion and monitor each producer’s compliance with the supposed agreement lo
reduce supply. The direct purchasers soek treble damages, attormeys’ fees, and costs under the federal
antitrust laws of the Uinited States and the wo groups of indingel purchasers seek treble damages, altormeys’
feas, and cosls under vanous slate anti-trust and consumer-protection statutes of the United States.

In the fall of 2018, Smithfield joined with the other defendants in filing two joint motions to. dismiss. and- also
filed s own individual malion o demiss. On 8 August 2009, the counl ganted the delendants’ bvo joint
medions lo dismiss and dismessed all plainii's claims i all cases withoul prejudice. The counl granbed
plaintiffs in all cases permission to fiks an amended comglaint within 90 days. The plaintifts Gled amended
complaints. Smethlecld again joined with the other defendants in filing bwe joint molions to disness the
amended complaants, Additionally, Smithfield filed s own individual mation to dismiss the amended
complaints.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

41. REGULATIONS AND CONTINGEMCIES (Continued)
Antitrust Litigations (Conlinued)
On 16 Oclober 2020, the courl mostly denied the defendants’ renéwed mobions 1o dismiss, excepl it
dismissed all claims agwnst Indina Packers Corposation, dismissed damages clams anising from ceitsin lme
periods as barred by the statule of limitations, cerain state law claims in the indirect purchaser suls. and a
claim under Puerto Rico law

In addition o the puative class actions filed in: 2018, Smithlield has been named a5 a dedendant in similar
antitrust lawsuils brought by a numbrer of indivedual purchasers and not on behell of & class. The plaintiffs in
these nos-class cases asserl the same anfitrust clains a5 the plaintiffs in the putative class aclions and filed
amended complaints. The Altorneys General lor the Slates of New Mexico and Akska have cach filed a
sinular complant on behall of their respective states, its agencies and its cllizens

Under an agreement dited 29 June 2021, the Group has agreed lo seltle all dived-purchasers class claims
tor @ single payment up o LISEE3 milllon, The terms of the setflement were approved by the lederal cour in
Minnesola following notice to all class membstrs. Due to the number of dass members who ebected to opd out
of the selthement, wider the terms of the settlement agrecment, he (inal seftlement amount was USEFT
millican

Uncler an apreement dabed 19 March 2022 the Group agreed o setthe all comanerceal and instutionat
indirect-purchaser class claims lor a single payment of 5342 million, The lerms of the settlement received
final approval Trom the court on 19 Oclober 2022

Under an agreement dated 4 August 2022, the Group agreed to settle all consumer indwect purchaser class
chalms for a single payment of US$F5 mélllon. The terms of the settiement were preliminanily approved by the
court on 9 November 2022, bual remain subject to final court approval following nodice to class members. The
USHFS mullon payment was funded into an cscrow- account on 29 Novermnber 2022,

The Group intends lo continue to vigorously defend against e rensaiming class chime on the Antitrust
Litigations

Maxwell Foods Litigation

On 13 August 2020, Maxwedl Foods, LLC ("Maxwell”} fBed a complaint against Smithfield in the General Court
of Justice, Superion Court Division lor Wayne County, Morth Caralina. The complainl alleged that Smithiieid
breached the Production Sales Agrecivent (“PSA") between the parties (a5 well a5 the duty of good taith and
fair dealingl: (1) by failing to provide Maxwell with the same pncing as other majr hog suppliens in viodation
ol a purported “Mosl-Favored-Mation Provision” found in a & December 199 ketter to Maoowell; (i by lailing
o comply with an implict duly to negoliate the PSA lo provide aliemative pricing o Maoswell when the
lowa-Southern Minnesota market allegedly ceased lo be viable: and (i) by faling o purchase Maowells
entine output of hogs since Apnl 2020

Smathlield filed a notice of removal to the Uinited States District Coart of the Eastern Distrect of Mosth
Carolma, Smithliekd also filed a mation to dismiss severad of Maxwells clams. On 22 Febivary 2021, the

L5, Dastrict Court granted Meaoowell™s moion o rermmand the case to the Superior Court of Wayne County and
ledt Smithiiekd's partial modion (2 dismiss the complaint for consideration by the stabe court in Wayne County.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

41. REGULATIONS AND CONTINGENCIES (Conlinued)
Maxwell Foods Litigation (Cantinued)
On 1 March 2021, Maswell filed an amended complaint, which added a claim under the North Carolina
Untaai and Decepdiie Trade Practices At Smithlield fled a notice of designation secking assignment of the
case to the North Caroling Business Court. Maxwell objected fo such designation, and on 13 Agail 2021 the
Business Court overmiled Maxwell's objection

The Busimess Cowrt has desmissed two of Maswell's claims: the implied duty to negoliate clam and the
LUDTPA claim. The “Most-Favored-Mation Provision” clamm and the claim that Smithlleld tailed 1o puchase
Maxwells entive oadpul of hogs since Aprll 2020 remain, The parties are engaging in eectronic discovery.

The Group intends to vigorousty defend against these clims.

Barden Hog Farm Litigation

On 18 May 2020, a claim was filed by 20 plaintiffs in the LS Destrict Cowrt for the Eastern Disbrict of North
Carolina againsl Smithlield and Murphy-Brown LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Smathleld. The claims all
arise from: hog tarms in Magnolia, Duplin County, which purportedly allow “odor, urine, leces, manuse, flies
amd other vectors to respass. onto Plaintiffs’ properties.” Counts brought by the plaintifts are trespass,
negligence, civil conspiracy, unfalr and deceplive iade practices, and wnjust enrchment.

On 13 July 2020, Smithficld filed a motion 1o dismiss lo narrow plaintiffs’ legal theories, and a molion 1o
sirike certain objectionable allegations n the plaintiis’ complainl. The plaintifs voeluntarily dismissed  their
unfair and deceptive trade mactices claims, and on 15 March 2021, the count granted in parl and denbed in

part the motion to dismiss, dismissing plainkifts' cinl conspiracy and wnjust enfchment claims with prejudice.
The cowt also denied the delendants’ motion 1o stiike cerlain objectionable allegations in ihe complaint

Discovery has been completed, and the Group liled a mation for sumamary judgment secking desmissal of all
claims on 30 December 2022

The Group intends to vigorousty defend against these chims.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

{a) The [i1-:'.|r|| ] the odloaweng '-_nt:mlnc:{nﬂ tramsactions with assocatesfoint sentures dudng e years

2022 2021

USE million LIs% million

aales of poods 0 aSsociabes 2] 21
Sales of poods fo joint ventures 20 17
Purchasse of poods and sesvioes Irom associales 207 144
Purchase of poods and services from joinl ventures 22 19

(b} Balances wilh associalesfjoint venlures ab the end of the reporting peniod:

2022

UsS' million

Includad in

Trade and bills receivables i

Prepayments, ofler recerabdes and ofher assels —

Tiade payables a 1z
EoCiatesfow] venioes ae ensecuied, Inten sifipe and sepayable on Geemand as- 3] Decernber 2022 and

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group
Thie temuneration of ky ||1::|1,s||_.-.1l11u:||l personmed, representing amaluments of deedors of the L}e'-||||_n.':r|j|
and senkd management of the Group paid/payable during the period under review is set oul below:

Year ended 31 December
2022 2021

USS million LIS S il o

Directors’ lees -

Basic salaies and allowances 11 I
Paglowrrsmee Bonyuses 1] o9
Termination benefits 7 9
Retirermient t:—-.'lb_l*'lﬁ schemme confributeoes | i 1 ! 1
Tatal comgeensation paid to key management personnel 2% ]
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

2022

US S million LISE million

MON-CURREMT ASSETS
Iferesis oy unlsled subs s 5,138 5139

CURRENT ASSETS

Amounis due Trom subswd@nie 151 121
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets ey 1
Cash amd bank balances | L J

152 152

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Amounts due to subsidianes 1,867 1,126
Cibes panaabrles 1 1
1,868 1,127
HET CURRENT _LIAEILITIES ¥ iL'.I"Iﬂ]-_ {975)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 3.423 4,164
MON-GURREMT LIABILITIES
Amounts due o subsidiares 3E2 1.128
MET ASSETS 3,071 3,036
CAPITAL AMD RESERVES
Shewe capital {(Mote 36) 1 1
Shawe premium 1,083 1,633
Translation resene 61 &1
W [T 219 220
Retained profits 1,707 1.671
TOTAL EQUITY 3,071 CRLE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Movements in the Company's reserves

Share Share  Translation
capital premmm nesene

Dithveer
resene

Retaimed
prafits

220

[

218

1,671

(31}

3,006

(311}

178 WHGROUP LMITED *

273/302



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

44. NOM-WHOLLY-OWNED SUEBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
The table below shows the details ol non wholly-owned subsidsaries of the Group thal have matedal
non-comtralling interests at the end of the meporfing perod:

Comiry of

incerporation  Preportion ol swnership

aad principal  imdereats and veling rights

place ol el by non-canirolling Pial attiibilahle & Aecwmniilated non-conliolling

Mame of subsidisry BEinest imeress non-comrefling imerests imberesh

203 202 20
LSS million £ Ui millinn

INEELRDEEGHRLE [ i 2087 20E7 il | e i)
Henan Shuangh s i &

(“Shasnghul Development
Indvidimlly mmalerial subsidiaie 19 b:]

wil A Ao inlipes

0 212 939

Summarnsed financial information in respect ol Shuanghui Development thal has material non-coniroliing
interests: i osel oul below using the: same accounting  policies of the Group The summsirsed imancial
information below represents the amounts belore intragroup oliminations.

As al 31 December
2022

LSS million LS million

Mon-curant assels T.905 2 559
Cuerent assets 2,328 2,755
Currenl lakalities {1.948) (1,562
Mon-cinrent Rabilties (106} {135)
Ecpuity attributable o owners of Shuanghui Development (3,134) (3,566)
Mon-controlling nterests of Shwanghul Development's subsidianes 45 &1
Mon-contrafling interests of Shuanghui Developament 158 831

803 932
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

44, NON-WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON-COMTROLLING INTERESTS

(Continued)

Az at 31 December
2022 i) |

LSS million LIS % il lion

Revenue 9237 10,285
Talal expanses {8,208} (52410
Prodit and tolal comprehensive income for the year 841 Jas
Prodit attributable to owners of the Company 582 522

Prodid attributable to e mon-controdling mberests of ‘.;.r||,L;;|||::|||;||
Devalopment's subsidiaties 14 3

Prodit attributable to the non-contredling mterests af Shaanghuo
Deveboproent 245 220
a1 745

Divedends paid to non-controling interests of Shuanghui

Development's subsidiaries ] I8
Met cash inflow from opesating activities 1,181 922
Mel cash oulllow used in investing activilies {35%) (78}
Mal cash outibow used in linancing activiles {854} (G300
Met cash oulibow {248) (85}
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

45. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (EXPENSE)

2022

US S million LiSE million

Other comprehensive income (expense) includes:

S et ol o Be reclEssiied subsegquently o ovalt oF kess;

Remeasurement on defined benefit pension plans 130 23
Ineomse e welating ko defined beinet [_u,:rl','n'-ll el {28} {153
102 |

Mems that may be reclassiied subsegquently fo ol or oSS

Exchange differences ansing on transtation of foreign opetalions (354) 2N
Fam value change in cash llow hedge {45) {36)
Inoome tax relating o cash flow hedge 12 14}

(38T} (5:3)
Other comprehensive expense, nel ol & (285) {45)
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

46. PRINCIPAL SUESIDIARIES
Details of the Company's poncipal subsidesnes ol 31 December 2022 amd 31 December 2021 are a5 fallows:

kiinbotahle proparien ol

Teswed and lully paidl whawe

Hame of ubsidiary speralion

Frinogal actmei

£ T
£ - L
Fegrrgied [ i wik RS 464 550 7] T33% ng.
Iy T ol
1 W
iy 8 " 1 (s = " i
& ale &l
M |- tha Shenares 5 schorgan and regsbes ] | ] 3 s
Mihe b DAl ¥ i tha ¥ ares ol e auk 1 -

The aboe table lists the principal subsidiaries of the Company which, in e opinion of the direciors of The
Campany, pincipally affected the results for the year of formed a substantisl podion ol the cosolidated net
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR"S REPORT

Ernst & Young Tel : +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place Fax 1 +852 2868 4432
979 King*"s Road 979 ey.com

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong 27

To the shareholders of WH Group Limited
(Incorporated iIn the Cayman Islands with Iimited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of WH Group Limited (the
““Company””) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the ““Group””)
set out on pages 64 to 182, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and
of 1ts consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (““IFRSs””) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(““HKSAs””) 1issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(““HKICPA~?). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
Sstatements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA®s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the ““Code””),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided
in that context.
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We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor*s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section
of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

Fair value measurement of live hogs
included in biological assets

The carrying value of the Group®s live
hogs included in biological assets
amounted to US$1,308 million,
representing 6.6% of the Group®s total
assets as at 31 December 2022. The
carrying value of live hogs was
measured at fair value less costs to
sell, which was determined based on
the price of hogs in the actively
traded market, reduced by the
estimated breeding costs required to
raise the hogs to be slaughtered, the
estimated margins that would be
required by a raiser, and estimated
costs to sell with reference to the
latest budgets approved by management.
The Group engaged an independent
qualified valuer to perform the live
hog valuations. We identified the fair
value measurement of live hogs as a
key audit matter because of the
significant degree of judgement
involved in the valuations to
determine the fair value less costs to
sell of live hogs.

Disclosures of determination of the
fair value less costs to sell and the
key assumptions involved are included
in notes 4 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

299/302

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Our procedures in relation to assessing
the fair value measurement of live hogs
included in biological assets included:

O understanding how management
determined the fair value
measurement of live hogs included in
biological assets, including the
involvement of the independent
valuer;

O evaluating the competence,
capabilities, independence and
objectivity of the independent
valuer;

O reviewing the valuation model
prepared by the independent valuer
in determining the fair value less
costs to sell of live hogs;

O comparing the market price of live
hogs used as inputs for the
valuations with available market
data; and

O evaluating the estimates of breeding
costs required to raise the live
hogs, the estimated margins that
would be required by a raiser and
estimated costs to sell against the
historical performance and budgets
approved by management.
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Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor®s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view In accordance
with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group®s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group®s financial reporting process.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor®s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when 1t exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
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reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

O

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group®s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors® use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group®s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor™s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, i1f such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor-"s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events In a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor™s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated In
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor®s
report is Ms. CHIU, Caroline Su Yuen.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2023
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